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Form A should be completed and submitted with each response to this RFP. This is intended to provide the State with
information on the bidder's name and address, and the specific person(s) who are responsible for preparation of the

bidder's response.

Form A

Bidder Contact Sheet
Request for Proposal Number 5995 Z1

Preparation of Response Contact Information

Bidder Name:

PromiseShip

Bidder Address:

2110 Papillion Parkway
Omaha, NE 68164

Contact Person & Title:

Dave P. Newell, President & CEO

E-mail Address:

david.newell@promiseship.org

Telephone Number (Office):

(402) 445-7926

Telephone Number (Cellular):

(402) 982-9613

Fax Number:

(402) 445-7998

Each bidder should also designate a specific contact person who will be responsible for responding to the State if any
clarifications of the bidder's response should become necessary. This will also be the person who the State contacts
to set up a presentation/demonstration, if required.

Communication with the State Contact Information

Bidder Name:

PromiseShip

Bidder Address:

2110 Papillion Parkway
Omaha, NE 68164

Contact Person & Title:

Jaimie Anderson-Hoyt, Director of Development & Communications

E-mail Address:

jaimie.anderson@promiseship.org

Telephone Number (Office):

(402) 215-5903

Telephone Number (Cellular):

(402) 215-5903

Fax Number:

(402) 445-7998




REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR CONTRACTUAL SERVICES FORM

By signing this Request for Proposal for Contractual Services form, the bidder guarantees compliance
with the procedures stated in this Request for Proposal, and agrees to the terms and conditions unless
otherwise indicated in writing and certifies that bidder maintains a drug free work place.

Per Nebraska’s Transparency in Government Procurement Act, Neb. Rev Stat § 73-603 DAS is required to
collect statistical information regarding the number of contracts awarded to Nebraska Contractors. This
information is for statistical purposes only and will not be considered for contract award purposes.

X NEBRASKA CONTRACTOR AFFIDAVIT: Bidder hereby attests that bidder is a Nebraska Contractor.
“Nebraska Contractor” shall mean any bidder who has maintained a bona fide place of business and at least

one employee within this state for at least the six (6) months immediately preceding the posting date of this
RFP.

| hereby certify that | am a Resident disabled veteran or business located in a designated enterprise
zone in accordance with Neb. Rev. Stat. § 73-107 and wish to have preference, if applicable, considered in
the award of this contract.

| hereby certify that | am a blind person licensed by the Commission for the Blind & Visually Impaired
in accordance with Neb. Rev. Stat. §71-8611 and wish to have preference considered in the award of this
contract.

FORM MUST BE SIGNED USING AN INDELIBLE METHOD (NOT ELECTRONICALLY)

FIRM: .
PromiseShip
COMPLETE ADDRESS: .
2110 Papillion Parkway, Omaha, NE 68164
TELEPHONE NUMBER:
(402) 445-7926
FAX NUMBER:
(402) 445-7998
DATE: .
April 1, 2019 P g
SIGNATURE: %2 Va Z//
TYPED NAME & TITLE OF SIGNER: X y 4
David P. Newell, President and CEO
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RFP 5995 Z1
PromiseShip. CORPORATE OVERVIEW

SECTION VI. PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS

Includes references to the following subdivisions in Section V. Project Description and Scope of Work:
e G. Readiness Review
e H. Financial Requirements

A.2. CORPORATE OVERVIEW

A.2.a. Bidder Identification and Information

RFP Instructions: The bidder should describe its corporate structure. It should provide the full company or corporate name,
address of the company's headquarters, entity organization (corporation, partnership, proprietorship), state in which the
bidder is incorporated or otherwise organized to do business, year in which the bidder first organized to do business and
whether the name and form of organization has changed since first organized. Per Neb Rev Stat. § 43-4204, the Subrecipient
must have a board of directors of which at least fifty-one percent of the membership is composed of Nebraska residents who
are not employed by the Subrecipient or by a subcontractor of the Subrecipient. Failure to provide a plan that sufficiently
addresses the statutory requirements, in the sole discretion of DHHS, may result in a rejection of any bid. Any new entity
created will have to execute all final contractual documents, but the entity does not have to be created unless awarded the
subaward. The bidder should describe how it will comply with the requirements of the governing board and financial liquidity
as described in Neb. Rev. Stat. § 43-4204.

While the bidder does not have to be a “non-Federal entity,” as defined by 45 CFR § 75.2 as it may be amended from time to
time, the Subrecipients (if a new entity is created for the purposes of this contract) must be a “non-Federal entity” as
provided in said regulation.

Corporate Structure

PromiseShip is currently led by President and CEO, David Newell, CSW, ACSW, who joined the
organization in 2010. Newell reports to the PromiseShip Board of Directors, which provides oversight of
the organization as outlined under the Nebraska Nonprofit Corporation Act, as amended from time to
time. As President and CEO, Newell leads an executive management team that is responsible for the
major operational units of PromiseShip. Effective May 24, 2019, Newell step down from his position to
take on a new opportunity in another state. At that time, Ron Zychowski will assume the role of
President and CEO of PromiseShip.

e Ron Zychowski, MBA, Senior Director of Executive Operations

e Lynn Castrianno, PhD, MLS, VP of Continuous Quality Improvement (CQl) and Data
Management

Robin Chadwell, LCSW, VP of Network Services Innovation

Viv Ewing, PhD, VP of Administrative Services

Stacy Giebler, CPA, Chief Financial Officer

Monika Gross, JD, General Counsel and VP of Legal

Melissa Nance, MA, VP of Programs

See section A.2.i. Summary of Bidder’s Proposed Personnel/Management Approach for details about
each team member and each organizational unit.

TECHNICAL PROPOSAL | Corporate Overview Page 5 of 385
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Full Corporate Name and Address

Nebraska Families Collaborative
dba PromiseShip

2110 Papillion Parkway

Omaha, Nebraska 68164

(402) 492-2500

Corporate General Information

Entity organization: 501(c)(3) nonprofit corporation

Incorporated state: Nebraska

Year organized: 2009

Name change: Legal name is Nebraska Families Collaborative and as of January 2018 is
doing business as PromiseShip

Other changes: No other changes to the legal status or form of the organization have
occurred

Nebraska Rev. Stat. § 43-4204: Governing Board Compliance

By July 1, 2019, PromiseShip will be fully compliant with Neb. Rev. Stat § 43-4204 (2)(a), requiring “A
lead agency used after April 12, 2012, shall...have a board of directors of which at least fifty-one percent
of the membership is comprised of Nebraska residents who are not employed by the lead agency or by
any subcontractor of the lead agency.” To meet compliance, PromiseShip amended its by-laws in June
2018 to expand the number of Board Directors. We will add two additional Board seats to allow for
expansion of the Board to 15 members, 8 of whom will be both Nebraska residents and community
members.

PromiseShip’s Board of Directors is currently comprised of fourteen members, none of whom are
employed by PromiseShip. Of the fourteen members, thirteen (93%) are Nebraska residents and of
those, seven (50%) are not employed by PromiseShip and are not employed by any subcontractors of
PromiseShip. Below is the composition of PromiseShip’s Board of Directors.

Corporate Officers:

e Theresa Barron-McKeagney, Chair; College of Public Affairs & Community Services (CPACS),
University of Nebraska at Omaha

e Peg Harriott, Vice Chair; Child Saving Institute

e Judy Rasmussen, Treasurer; Father Flanagan’s Boys Home

e John Jeanetta, Secretary; Heartland Family Service

TECHNICAL PROPOSAL | Corporate Overview Page 6 of 385
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Board of Directors:

Board Affiliation Voting WELENE] Community Neb. Resident

Pasition Member Resident Member & Community

! Member

Theresa Barron- Chair, University of Nebraska at Omaha Y Y
McKeagney Director
Peg Harriott Vice-Chair, | Child Saving Institute Y Y

Director
John Jeanetta Secretary, Heartland Family Service Y Y

Director
Kathy Bigsby-Moore Director Independent Consultant Y Y Y Y
Eve Bleyhl Director Nebraska Family Support Y

Network

Mary Ann Borgeson Director Douglas County Commissioners Y Y Y Y
Virginia (Gini) Collins | Director SOLVE Y Y
Alex Hayes Director Mutual of Omaha Y Y Y Y
Nick Juliano Director Father Flanagan’s Boys Home Y Y
Morgan Kelly Director OMNI Inventive Care Y Y
Cindy LaPole Director First National Bank Y Y Y Y
Dave Reed Director Father Flanagan’s Boys Home Y Y
Kevin Riley Director Gretna Public Schools Y Y Y Y
Carolyn Williamson Director Girls, Inc. of Omaha Y Y Y Y
(To be filled) Director (To be filled) Y Y Y Y
TOTAL 15 14 9 8
% OF TOTAL 100% 93% 60% 53%

Members of the Board of Directors also serve on several Board committees that include PromiseShip
staff representation. Below are the Board committees:

¢ Audit Committee: This committee is responsible for: (i) overseeing the financial audits; (ii)
ensuring an appropriate audit is completed; (iii) reviewing the annual audit of the financial
statements of the Corporation. The books and records of the Corporation are audited annually
by an independent accounting firm selected by the Audit Committee. This is an independent
oversight committee that oversees the financial integrity of the organization’s financial
management system and financial reporting. The Committee ensures the independence of the
annual audit and that internal controls are in place to prevent or detect financial
mismanagement or fraud. PromiseShip staff members cannot sit on the committee, including
the CEO or CFO.

e Business Practices Committee: This committee is responsible for: (i) reviewing the budget
prepared by the Board Treasurer and thereafter submitting a recommended budget for input by
the Board; (ii) overseeing and choosing which funds shall be invested; (iii) requiring reports
concerning such investments and assuring that the income, after deductions of legitimate
expenses, is paid into the proper fund of the Corporation; (iv) property and physical assets,
including the purchase, care, maintenance, use of the buildings, grounds, equipment and
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furnishings of the Corporation; and (v) human resources, including the employment and welfare
of personnel.

o Executive Committee: This committee, in the interim between meetings of the Board, exercises
all the power and authority of the Board, except the power and authority to amend Articles of
Incorporation or the Bylaws, sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all the assets of the
Corporation, reorganize or merge with another entity, or those actions requiring at least two-
thirds (2/3) majority vote or more as designated in the Bylaws. The corporate secretary of the
Board prepares and maintains records of all meetings and all action taken by the Executive
Committee. Such records are submitted to each Director as soon as practical following each
meeting.

e Nominating Committee: This committee is responsible for: (i) developing and implementing a
recruiting plan for Directors, according to the strategic plan of the Corporation and the
requirements of the Bylaws; and (ii) nominating seven (7) to thirteen (13) Community Member
Directors, in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation, the Bylaws, and the restrictions of
Section 43-4042 of the Nebraska Revised Statues. The Nominating Committee meets as often as
necessary to elect qualified persons for seats on the Board of Directors.

e Strategic and Community Impact Committee: This committee looks for opportunities in the
community, discusses business relationships and strategies, and leverages key strategic
partnerships for the growth and development of PromiseShip. The committee also plays an
important advocacy role, determining for what, when, and how the organization should make
its voice heard—and conversely, when it should stay silent—in order to increase public
awareness and assert the mission, vision, values and guiding principles of the organization. The
committee helps discern and assess issues on which a PromiseShip stance is needed, and
prepares and recommends appropriate statements, strategies, and courses of action to the
Board of Directors. As appropriate, it collaborates with other PromiseShip committees and with
other professional organizations in these tasks.

Nebraska Rev. Stat. § 43-4204: Financial Liquidity Compliance

PromiseShip is fully prepared to be compliant with section (2) (b) of the Neb. Rev. Stat. § 43-4204,
which requires: “A lead agency used after April 12, 2012, shall complete a readiness assessment as
developed by the Department of Health and Human Services to determine the lead agency’s viability.
The readiness assessment shall evaluate organizational, operational, and programmatic capabilities and
performance, including review of...financial liquidity and performance...”

PromiseShip is ready and willing to complete a readiness assessment upon request by DHHS prior to the
Operational Start Date of a subaward. PromiseShip will fully cooperate with DHHS to provide sufficient
information for the operational and financial readiness review that adequately addresses all provisions
of the subaward with a particular focus on assessing PromiseShip’s ability to meet the requirements in
the following areas:

a) The adequacy of the distribution of providers for in-home and Resource Family care services;
b) Staffing adequacy;
c) Subcontracts / subawards;
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d) Quality assurance/continuous quality improvement;

e) Case management;

f)  Utilization management;

g) Financial management;

h) Information processing and system testing;

i} Continuity of care;

j) Grievance and appeal process; and,

k) During the readiness review, the Subrecipient must provide to DHHS staff access to Subrecipient
staff, operational documentation (including a demonstration of computer systems), private
workspace, and the internet.

Furthermore, PromiseShip’s financial liquidity is constantly monitored by the Chief Financial Officer, the
Business Practices Committee, and the Board of Directors as part of its oversight responsibilities.
Financial sustainability through diversified revenue streams is a strategic goal of PromiseShip.

As the current sole organization providing full service case management for child welfare services for
the entire Eastern Service Area, we are already fully operational and will be ready to continue

management of all referred child welfare cases on the Operational Start Date.

45 CFR § 75.2 Compliance

Nebraska Families Collaborative (dba PromiseShip) fully complies with the 45 CFR § 75.2 requirement
that the Subrecipient must be a “non-Federal entity” as provided in said regulation. As defined in 45 CFR
§ 75.2, “Non-Federal entity means a state, local government, Indian tribe, institution of higher
education (IHE), or nonprofit organization that carries out a Federal award as a recipient or
subrecipient.” PromiseShip is a registered 501c3 nonprofit organization in the State of Nebraska under
federal EIN 26-4436716.

Furthermore, as defined in 45 CFR § 75.2, “Nonprofit organization means any corporation, trust,
association, cooperative, or other organization, not including IHEs, that: (1) Is operated primarily for
scientific, educational, service, charitable, or similar purposes in the public interest; (2) Is not organized
primarily for profit; and (3) Uses net proceeds to maintain, improve, or expand the operations of the
organization.”

Nebraska Families Collaborative (dba PromiseShip) is a nonprofit corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Nebraska. It is also recognized as a tax-exempt organization by the
Internal Revenue Service under 26 U.S.C. § 501(c)(3). As such, we meet both definitions for “non-Federal
entity” and “non-profit organization” per 45 CFR § 75.2.
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A.2.b. Financial Statements

RFP Instructions: The bidder should provide financial statements applicable to the firm. If publicly held, the bidder should
provide a copy of the corporation's most recent audited financial reports and statements, and the name, address, and
telephone number of the fiscally responsible representative of the bidder’s financial or banking organization. If the bidder is
not a publicly held corporation, either the reports and statements required of a publicly held corporation, or a description of
the organization, including size, longevity, client base, areas of specialization and expertise, and any other pertinent
information, should be submitted in such a manner that proposal evaluators may reasonably formulate a determination
about the stability and financial strength of the organization. Additionally, a non-publicly held firm should provide a banking
reference. The bidder must disclose any and all judgments, pending or expected litigation, or other real or potential financial
reversals, which might materially affect the viability or stability of the organization, or state that no such condition is known
to exist. The State may elect to use a third party to conduct credit checks as part of the corporate overview evaluation.

Financial Statements

Nebraska Families Collaborative (dba PromiseShip) is a nonprofit corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Nebraska, and as such is not a publicly held corporation. PromiseShip will
continue to provide DHHS with financial statements for review on a monthly basis. Financial statements
will include balance sheet, income statement, statement of cash flows, accounts payable aging report,
and reconciliation of accrued expenses to the balance sheet.

Providing monthly financial statements will allow DHHS to monitor the financial position of PromiseShip
and the case management subaward, as well as allow DHHS to gain insight into operational issues and
changes uncovered by analyzing financial data.

One of the primary benefits provided by child welfare privatization is financial transparency.
PromiseShip financial statements will include all costs in one statement, giving transparency to both
expenditures and revenue. Administrative and salary expenses are paid from one cost center, making it
easy to separate child welfare from other types of expenses and see the true cost of providing case
management.

With transparency comes accountability, which is crucial to an organization being a good steward of all
State and Federal funds. All PromiseShip financial information will be backed by supporting
documentation, which DHHS will be able to review and determine the reasonableness and
appropriateness of each expenditure. -

Regular financial reporting benefits DHHS, PromiseShip, and subcontractors of our provider network.
Monthly review of detailed financial data during the development of financial statements allows the
organization to see red flags that might be indicators of problems with spending, billing, or payment.
The financial data used to produce statements for DHHS is also used to review and improve operations.

Financial data is not relevant unless it is timely and user-friendly. PromiseShip will continue its practice
of submitting financial statements to DHHS within 30 days of month-end to provide the most accurate
data as early as possible. Specifically, PromiseShip will provide the following financial statements to
DHHS each month:

TECHNICAL PROPOSAL | Corporate Overview Page 10 of 385



RFP 5995 71
PromiseShip. CORPORATE OVERVIEW

e The Statement of Financial Position: This statement provides a snapshot of PromiseShip’s finances
as a whole on the last day of each month. By reviewing this document, DHHS will have an overview
of PromiseShip’s financial condition as of the date of the statement. Furthermore, PromiseShip
believes that the best way to maintain good relationships with providers is to make every effort to
ensure that they receive their payments in a timely manner, and we agree that a monthly accounts
payable aging report allows DHHS to review PromiseShip’s performance related to provider
payment. Therefore, PromiseShip will provide DHHS with an Accounts Payable Aging Report by
provider with payables divided into amounts aged 0-29, 30-59, 60-89, 90-119, and 120+ days. The
detailed aging report is reconciled to the payables balance on the Statement of Financial Position
every month.

e The Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets (i.e., Income Statement): This
statement provides a summary of the financial activity throughout the year. By reviewing this
document, DHHS will have a high-level overview of expenses and revenues with sufficient detail to
see which expenses may have been higher or lower than expected. It will also provide information
about population changes reflected through revenue and expense activity. PromiseShip will produce
two versions of this statement in order to provide a comprehensive overview for DHHS, which
includes: 1) a month-by-month statement that shows activity during the current State fiscal year;
and 2) and a cumulative statement that shows year-to-date activity for the current State fiscal year.
The cumulative statement will include the effect of non-reimbursable expenses and show the
difference between contract revenues and contract expenditures for reconciliation purposes.

e Statement of Cash Flows: This statement provides an overview of spending and cash receipts over
the most recent month. This statement is an indicator of the financial health of PromiseShip and will
provide information about changes in payables and receivables that may be indicators of
PromiseShip’s ability to remain current on its payment processes.

o Statement of Functional Expenses: PromiseShip will provide DHHS with financial details so the
DHHS Initial Assessment team is able to prepare its Statement of Functional Expenses. This
statement will be used to reconcile contract revenue and expenditures in order to calculate the
following month’s payment.

PromiseShip will prepare all of these statements from financial detail information contained in its
Banner and FAMCare systems. The Banner system is the General Ledger (GL) finance system
administered by Boys Town to which we are provided access for entering, tracking, and reporting
revenue and expenditure data for PromiseShip. FAMCare is the billing and utilization management
system administered by PromiseShip for entering, tracking, and reporting provider services
expenditures.

The Banner and FAMCare financial reports will be included with the financial statements provided to
DHHS for review and testing purposes. PromiseShip will perform a preliminary review of the financial
detail in order to identify and segregate non-reimbursable expenses. The financial statements will be
prepared using only paid items as expenses in order to more easily determine the actual amount of
contract money spent during the month. The financial detail and statements will be updated every
month as the balance of paid claims changes.
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Audited Financial Statements

PromiseShip is a Nebraska nonprofit corporation, which is tax exempt pursuant to section 501c3 of the
Internal Revenue Code and satisfies the expectation of the State that a Bidder provide a copy of its most
recent audited financial reports and statements. Please see Appendix 1 for a copy of the 2017 Audited
Financial Statements with the A-133 Single Audit, which are PromiseShip’s most recent audited financial
statements.

At PromiseShip’s fiscal year end (December 31), PromiseShip’s financial statements are prepared on an
accrual basis and audited by an independent third-party auditing firm, KPMG, LLP. These include a: 1)
Statement of Financial Position; 2) Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets; 3)
Statement of Cash Flows; and 4) Statement of Functional Expenses for the current and prior year.

The independent auditor also performs a Single Audit as required by DHHS and governmental auditing
standards. PromiseShip has achieved unqualified opinions in all audits, with no significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses found in their controls over financial reporting. A copy of PromiseShip’s most
recent audited financial statements with the A-133 Single Audit for calendar year 2017 is attached (see
Appendix 1).

Banking Reference

PromiseShip’s banking institution is:

First National Bank

Attn: Jake Holdenried, Vice President
1620 Dodge Street

Omaha, Nebraska 68197

(402) 602-5396

First National Bank is an Omaha-based, family-owned banking institution with a century-and-a-half
history of serving individuals, families and businesses. A banking reference letter is included as

Appendix 2.

Disclosure of Judgments, Litigation, or Real or Potential Financial Reversals

Judgments: There are no outstanding judgments against PromiseShip.

Litigation: Nebraska Families Collaborative (dba PromiseShip) has been named as a defendant in two
lawsuits.

e Nebraska Families Collaborative (dba PromiseShip) was named as one of numerous defendants
in a civil action filed September 1, 2017, in the United States District Court for the District of
Nebraska by Catherine Y. Wang Anderson, Case No. 4:17-CV-03073. Ms. Wang Anderson is
seeking damages for alleged violations of state and federal statutes and common law. On
September 28, 2018 the court dismissed many of the claims against NFC and its employees. NFC
does not expect a judgment to be entered against it or any of its employees in the matter.
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e Nebraska Families Collaborative (dba PromiseShip) was named as a defendant in a second
amended complaint filed in the District Court of Douglas County, Nebraska on December 20,
2018, by Bryon January and Monique January seeking damages for alleged negligence. NFC filed
its answer denying the allegations on February 4, 2019. PromiseShip does not expect a judgment
to be entered against it in the matter.

Financial Reversals: There are no other real or potential financial reversals that might materially affect
the viability or stability of the organization.

Credit Checks of the Organization

PromiseShip agrees to comply and fully cooperate with any third-party entities

the State of Nebraska and/or the Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) chooses
to use for the purpose of conducting credit checks as part of the corporate overview evaluation of
PromiseShip as a Bidder for RFP 5995 Z1.
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A.2.c. Change of Ownership

RFP instructions: If any change in ownership or control of the company is anticipated during the twelve (12) months following
the proposal due date, the bidder should describe the circumstances of such change and indicate when the change will likely
occur. Any change of ownership to an awarded vendor(s) will require notification to the State.

PromiseShip does not anticipate any change in ownership or control of the organization during the
twelve (12) months following the proposal due date or at any time during the term of the subaward
period.
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A.2.d. Office Location

RFP Instructions: The bidder’s office location responsible for performance pursuant to an award of a subaward with the State
of Nebraska should be identified.

PromiseShip is located and operates in the communities in which it serves, which covers Douglas and
Sarpy Counties. We are co-located with DHHS Division of Children and Family Services Initial Assessment
staff at our Sarpy office. Our locations include the following:

Headquarters

2110 Papillion Parkway
Omaha, NE 68164
(402) 492-2500

East Office Location
11340 Blondo Street
Omaha, NE 68164

Sarpy Office Location

4530 Maass Road, Suite 200
Bellevue, NE 68133
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A.2.e. Relationships with the State

RFP Instructions: The bidder should describe any dealings with the State over the previous ten (10) years. If the organization,
its predecessor, or any Party named in the bidder’s proposal response has contracted with the State, the bidder should
identify the contract / subaward number(s) and/or any other information available to identify such contract(s) /
subaward(s). If no such contracts / subawards exist, so declare.

Over the previous ten (10) years (2009-2019), Nebraska Families Collaborative, now doing business as
PromiseShip, has been awarded five contracts and subawards with the State, including the current
subaward (#76910-04) to provide case management services for all child welfare cases in Douglas and
Sarpy Counties. See Table 1 for a list of all contracts and subawards held with the State.

PromiseShip began providing service coordination and service delivery for children and families in
November 2009, and later added case management services, through a contractual public-private
partnership with Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS). Since 2009, PromiseShip
has served more than 20,000 children and their families through the DHHS child welfare contracts and
subawards listed in Table 1.

Table 1. List of PromiseShip Contracts and Subawards with the State of Nebraska

Contract or
State Contract or Subaward Name Subaward
Number

Case Management Subaward between the Nebraska 76910-04 | 7/1/2017 | 12/31/2019
Department of Health and Human Services, Division of
Children and Family Services and Nebraska Families
Collaborative (dba PromiseShip), as amended. 7
Case Management Subaward between the Nebraska 71468-04 7/1/2016 6/30/2017
Department of Health and Human Services Division of
Children and Family Services and Nebraska Families
Collaborative, as amended.
Case Management Subgrant between the Nebraska 22706-Y3 7/1/2014 6/30/2016
Department of Health and Human Services Division of
Children and Family Services and Nebraska Families
Collaborative, as amended.
Foster Parent Stipend Contract between the Nebraska 56833-04 | 7/1/2013 6/30/2014
Department of Health and Human Services Division of
Children and Families Services and Nebraska Families
Collaborative.
Amended and Restated Service Delivery, Coordination 41449-04 | 11/1/2009 | 6/30/2014
and Case Management Contract between the Nebraska
Department of Health and Human Services Division of
Children and Family Services and Nebraska Families
Collaborative for Eastern Service Area, as amended.

Effective Completion

Date Date
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A.2.f. Bidder's Employee Relations to State

RFP Instructions: If any Party named in the bidder's proposal response is or was an employee of the State within the past
twenty-four (24) months, identify the individual(s) by name, State agency with whom employed, job title or position held
with the State, and separation date. If no such relationship exists or has existed, so declare. If any employee of any agency of
the State of Nebraska is employed by the bidder or is a subcontractor to the bidder, as of the due date for proposal
submission, identify all such persons by name, position held with the bidder, and position held with the State (including job
title and agency). Describe the responsibilities of such persons within the proposing organization. If, after review of this
information by the State, it is determined that a conflict of interest exists or may exist, the bidder may be disqualified from
further consideration in this proposal. If no such relationship exists, so declare.

PromiseShip declares that there are no individuals (i.e., Parties) named in the proposal who have been
an employee of the State within the past twenty-four (24) months, nor do we subcontract with any
employee of any agency of the State of Nebraska as of the due date for RFP 5995 Z1. As such,
PromiseShip declares it has no conflict of interest with the State to the best of its knowledge.
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A.2.g. Contract Performance

RFP Instructions: If the bidder or any proposed subcontractor has had a contract / subaward terminated for default during
the past ten (10) years, all such instances must be described as required below. Termination for default is defined as a notice
to stop performance delivery due to the bidder’s non-performance or poor performance, and the issue was either not
litigated due to inaction on the part of the bidder or litigated and such litigation determined the bidder to be in default. It is
mandatory that the bidder submit full details of all termination for default experienced during the past ten (10) years,
including the other Party's name, address, and telephone number. The response to this section must present the bidder’s
position on the matter. The State will evaluate the facts and will score the bidder’s proposal accordingly. If no such
termination for default has been experienced by the bidder in the past ten (10) years, so declare. If at any time during the
past ten (10) years, the bidder has had a contract / subaward terminated for convenience, non-performance, non-allocation
of funds, or any other reason, describe fully all circumstances surrounding such termination, including the name and address
of the other contracting Party.

PromiseShip has not had any contract or subaward terminated for default, convenience, non-
performance, non-allocation of funds, or any other reason since its inception in 2009 or at any time
during the past ten (10} years. To the best of our knowledge, none of the proposed subcontractors in
this proposal have had a contract or subaward terminated for default during the past ten (10) years.
PromiseShip has fully performed all its subaward and contracted services as outlined in the Contracts
and Subawards.
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A.2.h. Summary of Bidder’s Corporate Experience [CO-2]

RFP Instructions: The bidder should provide a summary matrix listing the bidder’s previous projects similar to this RFP in size,
scope, and complexity. The State will use no more than three (3) narrative project descriptions submitted by the bidder
during its evaluation of the proposal. The bidder should address the following:
i Provide narrative descriptions to highlight the similarities between the bidder’s experience and this RFP. These
descriptions should include:
a) The time period of the project;
b) The scheduled and actual completion dates;
c¢) The Subrecipient’s responsibilities;
d) For reference purposes, a customer name (including the name of a contact person, a current telephone
number, a facsimile number, and e-mail address); and
e) Each project description should identify whether the work was performed as the prime Subrecipient or as a
subcontractor. If a bidder performed as the prime Subrecipient the description should provide the originally
scheduled completion date and budget, as well as the actual (or currently planned) completion date and actual
{or currently planned) budget.
fi. The bidder’s financial management capacity including experience / ability to manage federal funds, financial
stability, systems, and cost allocation plans.

iii. Subrecipient and subcontractor(s)/ Second Tier Subrecipient experience should be listed separately. Narrative
descriptions submitted for subcontractors / Second Tier Subrecipient should be specifically identified as
subcontractor / Second Tier Subrecipient projects.

iv. If the work was performed as a subcontractor / Second Tier Subrecipient, the narrative description should identify
the same information as requested for the Subrecipient above. In addition, subcontractors should identify what
share of contract costs, project responsibilities, and time period were performed as a subcontractor / Second Tier
Subrecipient.

V. Bidder should describe previous experience with service the child welfare population or any other relevant
experience with the child welfare population. [added sentence to first paragraph]

PromiseShip’s Corporate Experience Overview

As the bidder for RFP 5995 Z1, PromiseShip will be the sole Subrecipient to implement and manage all
program requirements for full service case management for child welfare services in the Eastern Service
Area of Nebraska. All information that follows in this section describes our current and previous
experience with case management and service provision for the child welfare population.

PromiseShip is the sole organization currently providing on-going case management for 100% of the
child welfare population in the Eastern Service Area, which is the same target population for the RFP
5995 Z1 subaward. PromiseShip has ten years of experience working with the child welfare population in
the Omaha metro area, making PromiseShip strongly positioned to provide case management and
service coordination for children and families.

As a locally established and operated nonprofit organization, we are focused on serving the unique
needs of children and families in the Omaha metro area. Resources are fully dedicated to serving
families in our community. Because of our local roots and connections, PromiseShip and its network
service providers and partners know the community best, ensuring that we are able to effectively
address the safety and well-being of all children and families we serve.
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History of PromiseShip

PromiseShip was established in 2009 under the legal name of Nebraska Families Collaborative and
began providing services and service coordination for one-third of children and families in the Eastern
Service Area who were involved in the Child Welfare and Juvenile Justice Systems. A year later,
PromiseShip was one of three organizations also providing case management services. By 2012,
PromiseShip was serving 100% of the child welfare population as the sole organization providing case
management and service coordination and continues to do so today.

In the last ten years, PromiseShip and its Provider Network have:

e Helped more than 20,000 children and their families by providing case management services
and connecting them with community-based services (2009-2018)

e Facilitated adoptions for more than 1,300 children (2012-2018)

¢ Reunited nearly 6,400 children with their parents/families (2010-2018)

e Helped keep more than 1,800 families and their children together by providing services in their
own homes (2009-2018)

e Provided Prevention Services to more than 6,000 families post-case closure to help prevent
them from re-entering the child welfare system (2009-2018)

e Achieved accreditation in 2012 and re-accreditation in 2017 by the Council on Accreditation for
Case Management Services and Network Administration

Impact on Children and Families

Together, PromiseShip, DHHS, and our provider network have achieved significant progress over the
past decade. Some examples of significant impact can be seen in Table 2.

Table 2. Impact Comparison from 2009 to 2018

Impact Measure Rationale ESA ESA
2009 2018!

# of federal CFSR | The Federal Child and Family Services Review (CFSR) 20of6 60of7
measures met in | Round 2 and Round 3 outcome measures are the (33.3%) (86%)
the Eastern standard data indicators required by states nationwide
Service Area to indicate safety and wellbeing of children served by
(ESA) the child welfare system. The goal is to achieve 100% of

all CFSR data indicators. For the first time in the ESA

history, PromiseShip met all 6 (100%) of the Round 2

indicators.

I Numbers and percentages provided are annualized for the given year.
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ESA

2018!

entering system
as non-court
(voluntary)

then connected with services that preserve the family
unit

% of children in | Children have better health and wellbeing outcomes 65% 87%
family-based when they are placed with families rather than in (n=1,976) | (n=2,552)
foster care shelters, treatment or congregate care. Today,

PromiseShip exceeds the national average of children

served in family-based foster care, which is 84%.?
% of children in | Children have better health and wellbeing outcomes 30% 60%
relative/kinship | when they are able to live with extended family or other
care homes familiar adults with whom they have an existing

relationship or connection. Today, PromiseShip exceeds

the national average of children served in

relative/kinship homes, which is 30%.
# of children in Children have better health and wellbeing outcomes 65 36
out-of-state when they are served in the least restrictive setting (as of (as of
treatment or possible that allows them to remain in their community 3/31/10, | 12/31/19,
congregate care | connected to family and other familiar people SFY Q3'10) SFY
placements Q2'19)
% of children Children have better health and wellbeing outcomes 14% 73%
and families when they can remain intact with their families who are (2012)

Summary Matrix

PromiseShip presents a summary matrix in Table 3 of all previous projects similar to RFP 5995 71 in size,
scope, and complexity.

Table 3. Summary Matrix of PromiseShip’s Projects Similar to RFP 5995 Z1

Size, Scope, Complexity, and Similarity of Project

Project
Project #1:

Case Management
Subaward, Subgrant and
Subcontract with the
Nebraska Department of
Health and Human
Services (#76910-04,
#71468-04, #22706-Y3)

through December 31, 2019.

Size: Serve nearly 15,000 children and their families from July 1, 2014

Scope: Providing full-service case management and an individualized
system of care for families and their children who are wards of the
Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services involved in the Child
Welfare or Juvenile Court System or who are non-court involved children
and families in the Child Welfare System. Service delivery, service
coordination, and case management functions are provided for families in
Nebraska’s Eastern Service Area (Douglas and Sarpy Counties).

2 Child Welfare Information Gateway, Foster Care Statistics (2016).
https://www.childwelfare.qov/pubPDFs/foster.pdf
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Size, Scope, Complexity, and Similarity of Project

Complexity: As a “no reject, no eject” subaward, PromiseShip is
required to accept and serve all children and families referred by DHHS.
Referrals may be made at any time and PromiseShip is available to receive
referrals 24 hours a day, every day of the year. Children and families may
be court involved or non-court involved and are served unconditionally
regardless of a child or family’s diagnoses, history, presenting problems,
family composition or behaviors. PromiseShip provides a complete
continuum of non-treatment, non-Medicaid funded services, supports,
and placement resources to meet the needs of children and families.
PromiseShip is required to meet case management and outcome
measures established by DHHS and federal authorities. A Continuous
Quality Improvement (CQl) System is used to monitor and report progress
towards meeting established measures. Funding for this subaward is
based on a fixed monthly payment, including provision of all direct
services for children and families. PromiseShip manages a service provider
network, including utilization management, authorization, and payment of
direct services. PromiseShip conducts background checks and drug tests of
all subcontractors, and monitors performance to ensure they are meeting
quality standards in delivery of services to children and families.

Similarity: Serves 100% of the child welfare population in the Eastern
Service Area (Douglas and Sarpy Counties), by providing full-service case
management, coordination of care, and provider network management
for families and their children who are wards of DHHS involved in the Child
Welfare or Juvenile Court System or who are non-court involved children
and families in the Child Welfare System. This is the same target
population and services as required for RFP 5995 Z1.

Project #2:

Service Delivery and
Service Coordination
Contract with the
Nebraska Department of
Health and Human
Services (#41449-04)

Size: Served approximately 8,400 children and their families from
November 1, 2009 through June 30, 2014.

Scope: Provided an individualized system of care for families and
their children who were wards of the State of Nebraska involved in the
Child Welfare and Juvenile Services System or who were non-court
involved children and families involved in the Child Welfare System.
Service and service coordination were provided for families served
throughout the Eastern Service Area (Douglas and Sarpy Counties).

Complexity: Accepted and served all children and families referred by
DHHS under a “no reject, no eject” contract. Children and families served
were either court involved or non-court involved and were served
unconditionally regardless of a child or family’s diagnoses, history,
presenting problems, family composition or behaviors. Provided service
coordination for treatment and non-treatment services for court involved
and non-court involved children and families, as defined in the approved
Operations Manual. Also provided non-treatment services and
coordinated all aspects of care, organization, and planning for the children
and families. Provided a complete continuum of non-treatment, non-
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Project Size, Scope, Complexity, and Similarity of Project

Medicaid funded services, supports and placement resources to meet the
needs of children and families. Ensured appropriate and timely mental
health, behavioral health, and substance abuse treatment services were
provided to adult family members and children. Conformed to child
placement best practices, including placing children in an appropriate
approved or licensed home or licensed facility, upon prior approval from
DHHS. Under the contract, required to provide aftercare services for
children and families, as defined in the Eastern Service Area’s Operations
Manual. Funding for this subaward was based on a fixed monthly payment
and a variable monthly payment, the latter of which was based on the
accumulated total number of days case management was provided for a
child during the month. Services and supports were compensated at the
daily variable rate for each child specifically identified in the
Safety/Risk/Prevention Assessment as requiring services and supports and
named in the written referral from DHHS. Variable payments for services
and supports were based on actual days in care and excluded any child
committed to a Youth Rehabilitation and Treatment Center. Managed a
service provider network, including utilization management, authorization,
and payment of direct services. Background checks and drug tests were
conducted on all subcontractors, and monitored performance to ensure
they met quality standards in delivery of services for children and families.
Similarity: Served a portion of the child welfare population in the
Eastern Service Area (Douglas and Sarpy Counties), by providing service
and service coordination for families and their children who are wards of
DHHS involved in the Child Welfare or Juvenile Court System or who are
non-court involved children and families in the Child Welfare System. This
is similar to the target population and services required for RFP 5995 Z1.
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Narrative Project Descriptions

Since 2009, PromiseShip has served more than 20,000 children and their families involved in Nebraska’s
child welfare system in the Eastern Service Area. Below are two narrative project descriptions of
projects similar to RFP 5995 Z1 in size, scope and complexity, including the current Subaward (#76910-
04 and all its amendments) that PromiseShip holds with the State of Nebraska.

Narrative Project Description #1: Case Management Subaward #76910-04
PROJECT DESCRIPTION

a)

b)

d)

Time Period: 7/1/2014 — 12/31/2019

Scheduled and Actual Completion Dates: The subaward is currently in effect as of the date of
the RFP 5995 Z1 bid opening. The scheduled completion date is 6/30/2019, and the actual
completion date is anticipated to be 12/31/2019, per Amendment Four (August 2018).

Responsibilities: The purpose of this subaward is: To provide case management and an
individualized system of care for families and their children who are wards of the Nebraska
Department of Health and Human Services involved in the Child Welfare or Juvenile Court
System or who are non-court involved children and families involved in the Child Welfare
System. Service delivery, service coordination, and case management functions will be provided
for families served in the Eastern Service Area.

Customer Reference: The customer for this project is DHHS Division of Children and Family
Services. As such, it would be inappropriate for DHHS to serve as a customer reference and it
would be in direct violation of the RFP requirements that would create a conflict of interest for
objective evaluation of this proposal.

Prime Subrecipient or Subcontractor: PromiseShip is the Prime Subrecipient for this subaward.

e Original scheduled completion date: 6/30/2019

e Original budget: Not to exceed $71,500,000 per year
e Currently planned completion date: 12/31/2019

e Currently planned budget: Not to exceed $71,500,000 per year

TECHNICAL PROPOSAL | Corporate Overview Page 24 of 385



RFP 5995 Z1
PromiseShip. CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Narrative Project Description #2: Service Delivery & Service Coordination Contract #41449-04
i. PROJECT DESCRIPTION
a) Time Period: 11/1/2009 —6/30/2014

b) Scheduled and Actual Completion Dates: The scheduled completion date was 6/30/2014, and
the actual completion date was 6/30/2014.

c) Responsibilities: The purpose of this subaward was to: Provide an individualized system of care
for families and their children who were wards of the State of Nebraska involved in the Child
Welfare and Juvenile Services System or who were non-court involved children and families
involved in the Child Welfare System. Service and service coordination were provided for
families served throughout the Eastern Service Area (Douglas and Sarpy Counties).

d) Customer Reference: The customer for this project is DHHS Division of Children and Family
Services. As such, it would be inappropriate for DHHS to serve as a customer reference and it
would be in direct violation of the RFP requirements that would create a conflict of interest for
objective evaluation of this proposal.

e) Prime Subrecipient or Subcontractor: Nebraska Families Collaborative was the Prime
Subcontractor for this contract.

e Original scheduled completion date: 6/30/2014

¢ Original budget: Not to exceed $19,185,452.00
e Actual completion date: 6/30/2014

e Actual budget: Not to exceed $181,134,004.12
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ii. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT CAPACITY

RFP Instructions: The bidder’s financial management capacity including experience / ability to manage federal funds,
financial stability, systems, and cost allocation plans.

Experience and Ability to Manage Federal Funds

For the past ten years, PromiseShip and its Finance team have successfully partnered with DHHS to
implement the current case management subaward and similar previous contracts, including managing
effective financial reporting.

Leading PromiseShip’s Finance team for the past decade is chief financial officer, Stacy Giebler, CPA,
who also has four years’ prior experience as an independent auditor with a focus on governmental and
non-profit entities and Single Audits. PromiseShip’s Finance team has proven to be flexible and accurate
as contract and subaward terms and conditions have changed over the years to meet the growing need
for accountability to the State of Nebraska, the Federal Government, and external stakeholders for the
child welfare system.

PromiseShip has worked closely with DHHS to increase transparency through financial reporting and to
maximize Title IV-E funding to the State. In addition, PromiseShip has tracked population and service
delivery trends and has produced accurate expense projections throughout the life of the subaward and
contracts that have enabled DHHS to obtain the funding necessary to provide quality services and to
increase positive outcomes for children and families involved in the child welfare system.

In addition to its own finance experience and sophistication, PromiseShip’s relationship with Boys Town
greatly increases its resources with access to Boys Town’s finance systems and the combined experience
of Boys Town’s various finance teams. Use of Boys Town’s Payroll, Accounts Payable, Treasury, and
Banner financial reporting systems gives PromiseShip a strong finance infrastructure at a lower cost.
Payment systems and general ledger systems are already in place, the use of which costs PromiseShip
only the time of Boys Town’s Finance team members who are dedicated to completing PromiseShip
finance tasks. Boys Town'’s finance and financial reporting teams provide a vast resource of experience
and knowledge, giving additional levels of support and review for PromiseShip’s finance team.

Although PromiseShip utilizes the financial backbone systems of Boys Town, we are audited separately
by independent auditors, issue our own financial statements, issue a separate IRS Form 990, and have
an independent Board of Directors. PromiseShip has the best of both worlds — a smaller, private
independent agency with the vast resources at our fingertips of one of the largest not-for-profits in the
nation.

Financial Stability and Systems

Source Documentation / Service Expenditures

PromiseShip’s financial reporting systems are designed to separate direct Resource Family care
payments from other service delivery expenses. The majority of service costs, such as foster care, visit
supervision, and costs related to delivery of services to children and their families will be tracked in
FAMCare, PromiseShip’s utilization and billing system for service providers.
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Service providers will enter billing directly into the FAMCare system. Reports from FAMCare will provide
the detail necessary to trace these billings to referrals, authorizations, and documentation of services
performed, regardless of payment type. Any direct services or assistance not recorded in FAMCare will
be segregated and tracked in detail in two specific accounts in Banner, which is PromiseShip’s General
Ledger (G/L) finance system. Details of all expenses will be provided to DHHS each month. Detailed
reports from the Banner and FAMCare systems will be readily available for DHHS review and traceability
to source documentation in a format acceptable to DHHS.

Inputting Documentation for Services

The simplest, most accurate method of recording paid services is for the PromiseShip Finance team to
enter it directly into the NFOCUS system. As a result, PromiseShip will dedicate 40% of its Finance team
to input documentation for services provided to children and families in the DHHS NFOCUS system using
a format prescribed by DHHS. PromiseShip Finance staff and supervisors have worked closely with DHHS
employees for continuous improvement to the data entry process, such as completing crosswalks
between services and granting improved system access for PromiseShip staff to enter complete data
into NFOCUS. PromiseShip will continue to work closely with DHHS under the new subaward to ensure
documentation is entered timely, accurately and completely.

PromiseShip Finance staff work closely with other departments within the agency to improve the
documentation and billing process and to track provider document submission. PromiseShip will also
enable direct service providers to upload documentation of services directly into FAMCare, streamlining
the approval process.

Payment Timeliness

PromiseShip has systems and processes in place that will ensure timeliness and accuracy of billing,
payments, and financial reporting. In order to ensure timeliness and accuracy of provider billing,
providers bill electronically by entering information directly into PromiseShip’s FAMCare system.
PromiseShip staff will provide initial and ongoing training to all providers in the use of this system to
ensure accurate and complete billing procedures are followed.

Timely payments begin with strong relationships with providers. Toward that end, the Finance team will
be in constant communication with providers, being as helpful as possible to ensure that billing and
payment processes run smoothly, and providers receive their payments timely.

Notwithstanding the above, PromiseShip will make all payments before the final deadlines set forth in
“Section I.N. Contract and Grant Close-Out” (RFP section V., subdivision H.7. Payment Timeliness”).
Prior to contract and grant close-out, PromiseShip will notify providers of the deadline for service
billings. PromiseShip Finance staff will then work with providers to reconcile services provided to
billed items, ensuring accuracy and completeness. Finally, Finance staff will process all billings prior to
the contract close-out date.
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If PromiseShip is unable to process billings from providers due to late receipt of invoices, pending
Medicaid claims, pending insurance claims, or PromiseShip is court-ordered to pay a previously unbilled
service subsequent to the subaward close-out, then PromiseShip will request an extension from DHHS
as soon as we become aware of a delayed claim or invoice. The extension request will be submitted in
writing and will include a request for reimbursement supported by all documentation necessary as
evidence that the claim could not have been paid prior to subaward close. DHHS will determine if
reimbursement is appropriate based on the documentation received and reviewed.

PromiseShip understands that these provisions shall survive the expiration or termination of the
subaward.

Financial Systems

PromiseShip compiles its financial statements using detailed reports of paid expenses from the Banner
and FAMCare financial systems. Banner is a General Ledger (G/L) system, while FAMCare is a utilization
and billing system. These detailed reports will be updated each month and used to compile the monthly
financial statements that will be submitted to DHHS. PromiseShip will continue to keep DHHS up to date
on financial information and detail every month. In addition, changes to Title IV-E direct service costs
will continue to be updated in NFOCUS and through the Title IV-E reporting process.

Cost Allocation Plan / Administrative Expenditures

PromiseShip will provide a cost allocation plan outlining and allocating administrative functions in order
to maximize Federal funding claims under Title IV-E. As a subrecipient of the State, PromiseShip’s cost
allocation plan will be consistent with DHHS cost allocation plans and will be made available to DHHS for
review and approval.

PromiseShip is submitting a cost allocation plan for SFY 2019 with this proposal (see Appendix 6
following the Technical Approach section). This will allow DHHS to review the plan and claim any
administrative funds possibly related to the time period.

The cost allocation plan provided with PromiseShip’s response includes cost pools, allocation
methodologies, and benefiting programs. All PromiseShip cost centers are set up based on cost pools
that support the cost allocation plan and to enable quick submission of supporting documentation for all
expenses. PromiseShip has and will continue to submit any and all documentation related to expenses,
as requested by DHHS, in a format that allows DHHS to easily trace costs to their source documentation.

in development of the cost allocation plan, PromiseShip worked with consultants considered by their
peers to be national experts on Federal programs, Title IV-E, and, most specifically, cost allocation plan
development in order to ensure that the cost allocation plan is consistent with all requirements of the
Title IV-E program and is in furtherance of all program objectives as set forth by DHHS. The consultants
have made themselves available as a resource for any questions raised by PromiseShip or DHHS.

In addition, PromiseShip resources include Boys Town financial professionals with many years of
experience in developing cost allocation plans and working with Federal program reporting. These
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experts have worked and will continue to work side by side with PromiseShip Finance team to
continuously improve Title IV-E reporting in order to maximize Federal funding.

Random Moment Time Studies

PromiseShip will complete all steps required for accurate claiming of Title IV-E funding, including
conducting monthly centralized random moment time studies.

PromiseShip will implement random moment time studies to track employee time spent on Title IV-E
eligible cases and activities in order to develop a federally compliant method to accurately determine
proportions of service worker time spent providing certain services to particular groups of clients as the
Family First Prevention Services Act is implemented. These activities include:

e Assisting in Title IV-E eligibility determinations or redeterminations;

e Recruitment, licensing, and rate setting of foster homes;

e Placement of children into foster care, group home, shelter care and residential care;

e Preparation for and participation in judicial determinations;

e Case management and supervision, such as scheduling and communicating with service providers;

¢ Development and review of case plan;

¢ Referral for services; and

e Transportation for foster care administration, such as transportation to and from out-of-home
placement, intake assessments, supervised visits and to court hearings or studies.

PromiseShip will work with the Baldacci Group to design and implement centralized random moment
time studies to ensure compliance with the Family First Prevention Services Act. PromiseShip will submit
all changes to the cost allocation plan to DHHS for approval, will change the plan as requested by DHHS,
and will implement a monthly centralized random moment time study as requested by DHHS.

As the State’s private partner, PromiseShip will continuously work with DHHS to modify or amend its
cost allocation plan in order to maximize Federal dollars. PromiseShip has offered and will continue to
offer its resources to benefit all stakeholders by increasing Federal claiming. Working together,
PromiseShip and DHHS have already increased the accuracy and efficiency of the IV-E claim process, and
we predict continuous progress in the future as these two entities work together to maximize Title IV-E
funding as the State of Nebraska implements the Family First Prevention Services Act.
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A.2.i. Summary of Bidder’s Proposed Personnel/Management Approach

RFP Instructions: The bidder should present a detailed description of its proposed approach to the management of the
project. The bidder should identify the specific professionals who will work on the State’s project if their company is awarded
the subaward resulting from this RFP. The names and titles of the team proposed for assignment to the State project should
be identified in full, with a description of the team leadership, interface and support functions, and reporting relationships.
The primary work assigned to each person should also be identified. The bidder should provide resumes for all personnel
proposed by the bidder to work on the project. The State will consider the resumes as a key indicator of the bidder’s
understanding of the skill mixes required to carry out the requirements of the RFP in addition to assessing the experience of
specific individuals. Resumes should not be longer than three (3) pages. Resumes should include, at a minimum, academic
background and degrees, professional certifications, understanding of the process, and at least three (3) references (name,
address, and telephone number) who can attest to the competence and skill level of the individual. Any changes in proposed
personnel shall only be implemented after written approval from the State.

Project Management Approach Summary

PromiseShip has been providing services in the child welfare field for a decade. Our staff live and work in
the communities we serve, so we are familiar with the local challenges that families face on a daily basis.
PromiseShip is 100% locally managed, meaning the subaward for full service case management would
be as well.

PromiseShip is currently led by President and CEO, David Newell, CSW, ACSW, who joined the
organization in 2010. Effective May 24, 2019, Newell will step down from his role to take on an
opportunity in another state and Ron Zychowski will assume the role of President and CEO. In this role,
Zychowski will have overall responsibility for the organization’s services and programs. He will also serve
as the main contact between PromiseShip and the State/DHHS for the subaward issued under RFP 5995
Z1. Zychowski will report to a Board of Directors that is comprised of 46% founding member
organizations (Boys Town, Child Saving Institute, Heartland Family Service, OMNI Inventive Care, and
Nebraska Family Support Network) and 54% community members (see Corporate Overview, section
A.2.a. Bidder Identification and Information).

PromiseShip will be ready on the Operational Start Date of the contract to continue providing high
quality case management services for children and families who are referred by DHHS. As the current
subrecipient providing full services case management services for the Eastern Service Area, there will be
no disruption to families’ case plans or coordination of care because our staff are already familiar with
and have built trusted relationships with the families and service providers in Douglas and Sarpy
Counties.

PromiseShip employs 336 dedicated staff who live and work in the Omaha metro area. We recruit and
employ highly skilled and educated professionals, 78% of whom have a Bachelor’s degree, followed by
19% with a Master’s degree, 2% with an Associate’s degree and 1% with a doctoral degree (PhD or JD).

PromiseShip uses a collaborative approach to provide child welfare case management and service
coordination for children and families served in the Eastern Service Area (Douglas and Sarpy Counties).
Building on the last ten years of a successful public-private partnership with DHHS is essential to
continued effective management of case management and service coordination.
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Specific Professionals & Primary Work Assigned

PromiseShip’s Project Team is comprised of executive leadership, senior leadership, and other key
leadership positions who bring a wealth of knowledge, expertise, and experience that will contribute to
successful implementation of full service case management and service coordination for children and
families involved in the Child Welfare and Juvenile Court Systems within the Eastern Service Area. Table
4 outlines the Project Team members and primary work assigned to each while resumés for all named
key personnel are included as Appendix 3.

Table 4. PromiseShip’s Full Service Case Management Project Team

Name & Job Title Primary Work Assigned

EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP TEAM:
David Newell, CSW, ACSW Responsible for entire management of PromiseShip, including
President & Chief Executive Officer | oversight for: contracts; fiscal and clinical administration;
programs and services; provider network development; public
and community relations; and management of a collaborative
leadership role with the Nebraska Department of Health and
Human Services and the Division of Children and Family
Services. Responsible for involving the Board of Directors in
development of strategic vision, mission and values. On May 24,
2019, he will step down from this role and Ron Zychowski will
assume the role of President and CEO with all assigned duties.

Ron Zychowski, MBA Responsible for ensuring the alignment of agency operations
Senior Director of Executive around short- and long-term organizational goals and strategies
Operations so that PromiseShip will continue to grow and achieve

operational excellence. On May 24, 2019, he will assume the
role of President and CEO with all assigned duties. The role of
Senior Director of Executive Operations will not be filled.

Lynn Castrianno, PhD, MLS Responsible for continuous quality improvement, records,

VP of CQl and Data Management; | compliance with accreditation and DHHS standards. Oversees
and appointed Technology performance metrics analysis, design, development, and the
Coordinator liaison with DHHS for | execution of the agency operations. Also responsible for IT and
Subaward the development and maintenance of the internal data

management system, FAMCare. Will serve as the appointed
Technology Coordinator who will serve as the primary contact
between PromiseShip and DHHS to address IT related issues
and will be responsible for all requirements outlined under
item 5 in Section V, subdivision K. Information System
Requirements of the RFP.
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Name & Job Title Primary Work Assigned

Robin Chadwell, LCSW Responsible for oversight of the Network management team,
VP of Network Services Innovation | treatment/clinical team, utilization management teams, and
program support worker teams. Ensures children and families
have access to a service continuum to meet their unique needs,
including managing a network of community-based providers
(“Provider Network) and working collaboratively with them to
identify and fill service gaps. Responsible for developing and
maintaining a service continuum that will assist in the support
of children and parents while they are striving to strengthen
their families. Additional responsibilities include ensuring
accessibility, prompt delivery, and quality of services and
supports, as well as collaboration with the managed care
organizations (MCOs) for coordination of care.

Viv Ewing, PhD Responsible for oversight of human resources, training,

VP of Administrative Services communications, fund development, and administrative
support. Performs Human Resources related duties in the
following functional areas: acquisition, onboarding, employee
relations, training, retention, affirmative action, and human
resources compliance. Creates and oversees the
implementation of a strategic approach to fundraising and
donor relations. Directs strategic corporate communications.
Stacy Giebler, CPA Responsible for the accurate reporting of the organization’s
Chief Financial Officer financial position, including financial reporting, budgeting,
negotiating contract payments, cash management, and
managing the Billing and Payables Departments. Reviews and
analyzes the revenue, expense, asset and liability accounts and
reconciles discrepancies. Develops and maintains annual
operating budget.

Monika Gross, JD Responsible for administering the legal affairs of PromiseShip
General Counsel and VP of Legal by providing legal advice, representation and services,
overseeing the organization’s compliance program,
implementing risk management and mitigation strategies, and
contract administration.

Melissa Nance, MS Responsible for the oversight of all case management teams
VP of Programs that serve at risk families (non-court) and children in out-of-
home care and their families (court-involved). These include
the following services: case management, kinship, family
engagement, adoption, family finding, independent living and
prevention. Also responsible for ensuring compliance with
contractual requirements regarding state and federal child
welfare measures. Provides direction to and leadership of
program operations, thereby ensuring all programs are
conducted consistently with the agency’s mission, goals and
strategic plan.
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Name & Job Title Primary Work Assigned

SENIOR LEADERS:

Nikki Barber, MPA Directs and supervises Family Permanency teams in provision
Family Permanency Director of case management services for children and families. Brings
child welfare expertise centered on the safety, permanency and
well-being of children and families and independently performs
duties as a valued member of the Senior Leadership Team.
Megan Miller, MA Directs and supervises Family Permanency teams in provision
Family Permanency Director of case management services for children and families. Brings
child welfare expertise centered on the safety, permanency and
well-being of children and families and independently performs
duties as a valued member of the Senior Leadership Team.
Tami Nebesniak, MS Directs and supervises Family Permanency teams in provision
Family Permanency Director of case management services for children and families. Brings
child welfare expertise centered on the safety, permanency and
well-being of children and families and independently performs
duties as a valued member of the Senior Leadership Team.

Aly Ott, MSW Directs and supervises Family Permanency teams in provision
Family Permanency Director of case management services for children and families. Brings
child welfare expertise centered on the safety, permanency and
well-being of children and families and independently performs
duties as a valued member of the Senior Leadership Team.
Nicole Seymour, MPA Provides operation management for the Family Engagement
Family Engagement Director team, including the Intake and the Family Triage teams.
Responsible for partnering in the implementation of the
Coordinated Response Initiative and related strategic actions.
Brings child welfare expertise centered on the safety,
permanency and well-being of children and families and
independently performs duties as a valued member of the
Senior Leadership Team.

Anita Patterson, MS Oversees the Compliance Program to ensure compliance with
Ethics, Risk & Compliance Officer, the organization’s policies and procedures. Reviews and

and Security Administrator liaison evaluates compliance issues/concerns within the

with DHHS for subaward organization. Collaborates with other departments (Program
Audit, Finance, Legal, and Human Resources}, as well the
executive team and senior leadership, to implement
compliance programs across the organization. Reports to the
General Counsel and has a direct reporting line to the Board of
Directors. Serves as the assigned Security Administrator for all
of PromiseShip sites who will act as the liaison between
PromiseShip and DHHS and will be responsible for all
requirements outlined under item 3 in Section V, subdivision K.
Information System Requirements of the RFP.
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Project Team Leadership

PromiseShip’s project team for the DHHS Full Service Case Management for Child Welfare Services
subaward is comprised of highly educated and skilled professionals who have extensive experience in
their respective roles. Collectively, the project team has decades of experience working in child welfare
and human services serving as senior and executive leadership at nonprofit and for-profit companies.
Bios of each of the project team leaders is provided below:

1)

2)

David Newell, CSW, ACSW, President and CEO, leads the organization and the project team. Newell
has more than twenty-six years’ social services experience in direct service and leadership roles, as
well as twenty-six years’ experience as a therapeutic foster, adoptive, and birth parent. Currently,
Newell serves as the Chair of the Nebraska Children’s Commission, having been appointed to the
Commission for two consecutive terms by the current and former Governors. Newell is an alumnus
of the Annie E. Casey Foundation’s Children and Family Fellowship Program and an alumnus of the
Alaska Humanities Forum’s Leadership Anchorage program. He is a current member of the National
Association of Social Workers and the Academy of Certified Social Workers. Newell’s previous
experience includes serving as regional vice president at EMQ FamiliesFirst (2006-2010), executive
director at Denali Family Services (1999-2006), and Chair of the Alaska Behavioral Health Association
(2002-2005). Newell holds a Certificate of Nonprofit Management and a Master of Social Work from
the University of Alaska Anchorage, and a Bachelor of Science in education from Southern lllinois
University at Edwardsville. He is also a licensed social worker in Nebraska and New York. On May 24,
2019, Newell will step down from his role as President and CEO of PromiseShip to pursue an
opportunity in another state. At that time, Ron Zychowski, MBA, will assume the role of President
and CEO.

Ron Zychowski, MBA, Senior Director of Executive Operations, joined PromiseShip in September
2018. On May 24, 2019, Zychowski will become the next President and CEO of PromiseShip when
David Newell steps down from the position to pursue an opportunity in another state. Zychowski’s
proven track record spans more than 40 years of senior leadership positions in a variety of
disciplines, with more than two decades spent directly in human services leadership positions. He is
well-versed in assisting private organizations and publicly-funded systems of care transform to
improve performance, with a focus on organizational capacity, production management, and real-
time/forward-looking outcome measurement. Zychowski has experience developing and executing
multi-million dollar budgets, including the complex state and federal funding streams affiliated with
child welfare services. After serving 25 years in the United States Army, Zychowski began his human
services career in Florida as a Center Director for the Head Start Program, followed by eight years of
senior leadership positions with the Florida Department of Children and Families, serving in three
different districts and the state’s largest region. Zychowski led the transition of Florida’s child
welfare system from a public system to a community-based system of care. Additionally, Zychowski
has served as CEO for three different community-based care lead agencies in Florida. Zychowski
joined Eckerd Kids in 2009, initially overseeing Eckerd Kids’ transition as the lead agency for
community-based care in Florida’s Pasco and Pinellas counties, and later for nearly 30 different
services and programs nationwide. Zychowski retired from Eckerd Kids as the Chief Quality and
Performance Officer in 2016 and was subsequently elected to the Board of Directors.
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3)

4)

5)

6)

Lynn Castrianno, PhD, VP of CQl & Data Management, oversees the technology, quality assurance,
and data management teams. Castrianno has more than 20 years of experience in child welfare
research, evaluation, and data management. Prior to joining PromiseShip, she worked with various
non-profit agencies in developing and implementing performance outcomes through data
management and data analysis including oversight and management of a national benchmarking
study of foster care. Castrianno also served on the board of the Foster Family Treatment Association
and has been an active member of the FFTA Research Committee for the past ten years. Castrianno
received a Ph.D., Master’s degrees in Psychology and Legal Studies from the University of Nebraska-
Lincoln, and a Bachelor’s degree from the State University of New York at Buffalo.

Robin Chadwell, MSW, LCSW, VP of Network Services Innovation, leads the Network Services
Innovation Team. Chadwell has dedicated her career to working with children and families in various
capacities, including residential care, educational settings, case management, service provider, and
administrator. She has been intricately involved with service development and implementation
since 2001 and served in increasing administrative capacities since 2003. Chadwell has extensive
experience in foster care services, including recruitment, licensing, support, and program oversight
and development, having been involved with Nebraska Child Welfare reform since 2008 when DHHS
launched Safety and In-Home Services. Chadwell has served as a Program Director for foster care
and in-home services, a Director for Case Management, and as Operations Support Director at
PromiseShip prior to her current role. Chadwell received her Bachelor’s and Master’s degrees in
Social Work from the University of Nebraska at Omaha.

Viv Ewing, PhD, VP of Administrative Services, leads the human resources, training, team support,
communications and grant development teams. Her professional career has been in both corporate
and not-for-profit organizations, including serving as Executive Director of the Alzheimer’s
Association of Nebraska, Director of Government Affairs for Habitat for Humanity, Assistant
Operations Director for The Salvation Army Kroc Center, Human Resources Manager at ConAgra
Foods, Sr. Director of Human Resources & Administration at Omaha Housing Authority, and Human
Resources Representative at OPPD. Ewing’s community leadership spans several years and has
included service to many organizations including: University of Nebraska Medical Center Board of
Councilors; University of Nebraska Alumni Board; College of Public Affairs Advisory Council;
President of the Literacy Center Board; Governor’s Judicial Selection Committee; Nebraska Children
Event Committee; Vice Chair Immanuel Pathways Participant Advisory Committee; President of the
Hope Center for Kids Guild; American Red Cross Board; Sienna Francis House Board; Catholic
Charities Mental Health Committee; Holy Name Home & School Association President; Omaha Table
Talk; and President of the Human Resources Association of Midlands. Ewing received her Ph.D. from
the University of Nebraska-Lincoln in Community & Human Resources, a Master’s degree in Urban
Studies, and Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration from the University of Nebraska at Omaha.

Stacy Giebler, CPA, Chief Financial Officer, leads the Finance team. Giebler began her career in 2005
at KPMG, a Big Four accounting firm, gaining experience and expertise as an independent auditor of
government and not-for-profit entity financial statements and Single Audits. She joined PromiseShip
in October 2009 shortly after the organization was founded, expanding the Finance team as the
organization continued to grow. Stacy received her bachelor’s degree in Accounting from the
University of Nebraska at Omaha, is licensed as a Certified Public Accountant (CPA), and is a member
of the American Society of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA).
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7)

8)

9)

Monika Gross, JD, General Counsel and VP of Legal, leads the Legal, Risk and Compliance teams.
Gross has been the legal counsel for PromiseShip since March 2011. Prior to joining PromiseShip,
Gross was vice president at Fidelity National Title Group, attorney for the Nebraska Department of
Health and Human Services, and was in private practice in Nebraska, Georgia, and New York. Gross
is a member of the Nebraska State Bar Association, and the State Bar of Georgia. Gross received a
Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Nebraska-Lincoln and a Juris Doctor degree from the
University of San Diego School of Law.

Melissa Nance, MS, VP of Programs, leads the Family Permanency team and oversees all case
management services for court involved and non-court involved children and families. Nance
launched her career as an Integrated Care Coordinator working to enhance the lives of children and
families in Douglas and Sarpy counties. Nance joined PromiseShip in 2009 as a Family Permanency
Supervisor where she guided case managers to increase safety and well-being of children in care.
She was later promoted to a Family Permanency Director with a greater emphasis on staff and
program development, and eventually took the lead as Senior Family Permanency Director. In
August 2018, Nance accepted the Vice President of Programs position. Nance received a Bachelor’s
degree in Psychology and Sociology from Creighton University, and a Master’s degree in Human
Services from Bellevue University.

Nikki Barber, MPA, Family Permanency Director. Barber has been a Family Permanency Director at
PromiseShip since October 2017. Barber has been with PromiseShip since 2012 and has also held
positions as a Family Permanency Supervisor, a Family Permanency Specialist, and a Family Finding
Specialist. Barber received a Bachelor’s of Science degree in Criminology from the University of
Nebraska at Omaha and a Master’s degree in Public Administration from Bellevue University.

10) Megan Miller, MA, Family Permanency Director. Miller has worked in the juvenile court system for

over fifteen years, serving in both child welfare and juvenile justice. Miller’s passion for continuous
community improvement is the foundation of her leadership abilities. Her knowledge of the child
welfare system lends to her ability to identify areas of improvement and create system process for
improved outcomes. Throughout her ten years of employment at PromiseShip, Miller has served as
a Service Coordinator, Family Permanency Supervisor, Operations Project Manager and Family
Permanency Director. Miller received a Bachelor’s degree in Human Resources and Family Science
from the University of Nebraska-Lincoln and a Master’s degree in Human Services from Bellevue
University.

11) Tami Nebesniak, MS, Family Permanency Director. Nebesniak has been a Family Permanency

Director at PromiseShip since 2016. She has served in various positions at PromiseShip, including as
a Family Permanency Supervisor, Intake Coordinator, and Family Service Coordinator. Nebesniak has
dedicated her career to working with children and families in child welfare for the past nineteen
years, including direct care in group homes, foster care worker, case manager, child abuse hotline
worker, as well as supervisor and director level positions. She received a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Psychology from Stephens College at Columbia, Missouri, and a Master of Science degree in
Counseling Psychology from Capella University at Minneapolis, Minnesota.
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12) Alyssa Ott, MSW, Family Permanency Director. Ott has been a Family Permanency Director at
PromiseShip since September 2018. In this role, Ott oversees seven permanency teams, three of
which are in Douglas County, three of which are in Sarpy County, and the complex case team that
serves children and/or families who require enhanced advocacy. Ott’s personal daily mission is to
build strong, collaborative teams around each family that PromiseShip serves to improve outcomes
for families in both Sarpy and Douglas counties. Ott received a Bachelor of Arts degree in Psychology
from the University of lowa and will complete a Master of Social Work degree from the University of
Nebraska at Omaha by the end of 2019.

13) Nicole Seymour, MPA, Family Engagement Director. Prior to her current role, Seymour was a
permanency supervisor and then a manager at PromiseShip for six years. During that time Seymour
was responsible for developing and implementing specialized teams and initiatives, all with a focus
on improved and innovative service delivery to children and families experiencing crisis. Seymour is
driven by creating long-standing, respectful, and collaborative relationships with children, families,
and professionals with the intent of creating positive and sustainable systematic change. Seymour is
a strong advocate for child well-being and uses her experience and knowledge to engage all levels of
stakeholders to ensure families are empowered to not only use their voice, but that they are
respected as an expert. Seymour received Bachelor’s degree in Liberal Arts and Professional
Applications and a Master’s of Public Administration from Bellevue University.

14) Anita Patterson, MS, Ethics Compliance & Risk Officer. Patterson has 20 years’ experience in
organizational compliance. Prior to joining PromiseShip, Patterson worked in the Healthcare
Industry as a Corporate Compliance Officer where she served as the Joint Commission
Administrator, Risk Manager, Performance Improvement Manager, and Safety Chair. In those roles,
Patterson helped successfully resolve complex OSHA and Joint Commission findings and patients’
complaints. She also served a as Controller for the Nebraska Public Health Laboratory Full Scale
Emergency Exercise, created an interdisciplinary task force resulting in a reduction of risk for
employees and patients, and developed a Risk Rating Scale to quickly identify probability of
occurrence and severity of consequences, resulting in a 20% decrease in Incident Reports, and led
the Total Quality Management sub-committee of the Board of Directors. Patterson has served on
multiple Boards and Executive Committees, have conducted leadership seminars for women and
children, and has served in many volunteer roles. Patterson received a Bachelor of Science degree in
Business Administration and a Master of Science degree in Organizational Performance from
Bellevue University. Patterson is also a graduate of the UNMC Great Plains Public Health Leadership
Institute.
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Interface and Support Functions

In Relation to Internal Operations

PromiseShip is dedicated to providing high-quality full service case management services for children
and families involved in the child welfare and juvenile court systems in Douglas and Sarpy Counties.
PromiseShip is structured in such a way to ensure effective governance, communication, and daily
operations between its core units. The Board of Directors sets expectations for the organization and the
Executive Team implements the Board directives in collaboration with staff throughout the organization.

Each Executive Team member oversees a core functional unit of PromiseShip that works collectively
towards our shared vision of building connected communities, filled with strong families, who are self-
sufficient and empowered with great hope for the future. The core program units of PromiseShip and
their interface and support functions are shown in Table 5:

Table 5. PromiseShip Interface & Support Functions

CORE PROGRAM UNITS INTERFACE & SUPPORT FUNCTIONS :

Program Operations: e Interfaces with Network Services Innovations to:

o Coordinate case transfers from DHHS/IA to PromiseShip
Will be responsible for o Identify and coordinate service referrals to appropriate community
delivery of all case providers
management services for o Coordinate access and use of Provider Network services by
children and families children/families
referred by DHHS. e Interfaces with CQI/DM to:

o Ensure accurate data entry into NFOCUS and FAMCare

o Correct data errors

o Monitor outcome data indicators

o Assist with COA reaccreditation process
e Interfaces with Finance to:

o Submit proper documentation for case management expenses
e Interfaces with Legal, Risk & Compliance to:

o Adhere to all policies and procedures

o Comply with subpoenas

o Provide documentation and testimony for grievances and legal suits

filed by families, providers or other stakeholders

e Interfaces with Administrative Services to:

o Recruit and hire qualified case management applicants

o Attend all required training

o Address employee issues

Network Services e Interfaces with Program Operations by:
Innovations: o Ensuring seamless case transfers from DHHS/IA to case managers

o Monitoring and managing network of community-based providers
Will be responsible for o  Working with providers to identify and fill gaps in the continuum of
oversight of the initial case services for children and families
transfer process from e Interfaces with CQI/DM by:
DHHS/IA, as well as o Communication with Provider Network regarding FAMCare changes
management of the and updates

network of service
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CORE PROGRAM UNITS INTERFACE & SUPPORT FUNCTIONS

providers and the service
continuum.

o Engages Provider Network to participate in annual stakeholder
survey
o Involvement in Provider meetings
o Assist with COA reaccreditation process
Interfaces with Finance by:
o Ensuring accurate and complete provider billing in FAMCare system
o Providing accurate and complete documentation to support provider
billing in FAMCare system
Interfaces with Legal, Risk & Compliance for:
o Contract development and administration for Network and non-
Network service providers
o Service provider compliance with contract terms and conditions
o Resolution of grievances related to service provider performance
Interfaces with Administrative Services

Continuous Quality
Improvement and Data
Management (CQl/DM):

Will be responsible for
continuous quality
improvement,
accreditation, and data
management functions, as
well as oversight of the IT
and business applications.

Interfaces with Program Operations by:
o Monitoring accurate and timely data entry and documentation of
case management information
Monitoring progress towards data outcome indicators
Ensuring secure access to case management data
Providing access to IT systems, resources, and business applications
Managing document imaging and management of all case
information
o Providing reports to case management supervisors and directors to
assist with managing caseloads, case issues, and data outcome
indicators
Interfaces with Network Services Innovations by:
o FAMCare system management and enhancements to meet changing
needs
o Creating data reports about UM and Provider Network
Interfaces with Finance by:
o Creating data reports from FAMCare
o FAMCare enhancements to meet billing needs
Supports Legal, Risk & Compliance by:
o Conduct quality assurance reviews
o Conduct root cause analyses
o Provide records and other support for subpoena requests
Interfaces with Administrative Services by:
o Providing data for communications
o Developing process improvements for HR
o Provides CQl training and supervisor training for new hires
o FAMCare training for providers and staff

O O O O

Finance:

Interfaces with Program Operations to:
o Provide timely and accurate financial reporting and budget analysis
o Process prompt payment and case management expenses
o Develop internal controls and processes for timely and accurate
reimbursement of employee mileage and expenses
Interfaces with Network Services Innovations to:
o Process prompt payment of provider services billing
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CORE PROGRAM UNITS INTERFACE & SUPPORT FUNCTIONS
o Provide timely and accurate financial reporting and budget analysis
o Develop internal controls and processes for timely and accurate
reimbursement of employee mileage and expenses
e Interfaces with CQI/DM by:
o Testing billing functions in FAMCare when enhancements and
upgrades are made
o Assist with COA reaccreditation process
e Interfaces with Legal, Risk & Compliance to:
o Provide timely and accurate financial reporting and budget analysis
o  Process prompt payment of legal expenses
o Coordinate responses to regulatory bodies
e Interfaces with Administrative Services to:
o Provide timely and accurate financial reporting and budget analysis
o Support accurate recording, acknowledgement, and investment of
funds received through grants and fundraising endeavors
Legal, Risk and e Interfaces with Program Operations to:
Compliance: o Manage PromiseShip policies and procedures and ensures
compliance therewith
o Respond to and ensure compliance with subpoenas and other forms
of legal process affecting case management activities
o Provide legal advice and representation to program operations staff
related to case management activities, including juvenile court
o Respond to grievances lodged by children, families, and service
providers related to case management activities
o Track incident reports and prepare reports and recommendations
e Interfaces with Network Services Innovations to:
o Manage PromiseShip policies and procedures and ensures
compliance therewith
o Perform contract development and administration for network and
non-network service providers
o Review service provider compliance with contract terms and
conditions
o Resolve grievances related to service provider performance
o Track incident reports submitted by service providers and prepares
reports and recommendations
e [nterfaces with CQI/DM to:
o Assist with COA reaccreditation process
o Develop and monitor policies and procedures
* [nterfaces with Finance to:
o Manage PromiseShip policies and procedures and ensures
compliance therewith
o Coordinate responses to regulatory bodies
o Coordinate implementation of new business practices impacting all
PromiseShip employees
e Interfaces with Administrative Services to:
o Manage PromiseShip policies and procedures and ensures
compliance therewith
o Coordinate responses to regulatory bodies
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CORE PROGRAM UNITS INTERFACE & SUPPORT FUNCTIONS

o Provide legal advice and representation to human resources staff
related to employment law matters
o Collaborate on employee-management relations activities
o Collaborate with training staff to provide legal and testifying training
for case management staff
o Coordinate implementation of new business practices impacting all
PromiseShip employees
o Track incident reports related to employee conduct and safety and
prepare reports and recommendations
Administrative Services: e Interfaces with Program Operations to:
o Recruit and hire qualified case management applicants
o Attend all required training
o Address employee issues
e [nterfaces with Network Services Innovations to:
o Recruit and hire qualified team members
o Provide initial and ongoing training for staff
o Communicate important messages and information to staff and
Provider Network
e Interfaces with CQl/DM to:
o Assist with COA reaccreditation process
o Provide special training for CQl/DM staff
o Provide expertise/knowledge of N-FOCUS and any enhancements or
changes to system
o  Assist with recruitment and hiring process for team positions
o Develop and disseminate important messages and information to
staff
e Interfaces with Finance to:
o Provide timely and accurate financial reporting and budget analysis
o Support accurate recording, acknowledgement, and investment of
funds received through grants and fundraising endeavors
e Interfaces with Legal, Risk & Compliance to:
o Manage PromiseShip policies and procedures and ensures
compliance therewith
o Coordinate responses to regulatory bodies
o Provide legal advice and representation to human resources staff
related to employment law matters
o Collaborate on employee-management relations activities
o Collaborate with training staff to provide legal and testifying training
for case management staff
o Coordinate implementation of new business practices impacting all
PromiseShip employees
o Track incident reports related to employee conduct and safety and
prepare reports and recommendations

The core operational units will work collaboratively and collectively to ensure we deliver high quality,
full service case management services for children and families in the Eastern Service Area.
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In Relation to the State/DHHS: PromiseShip’s President and CEO, will serve as the primary point of
contact with DHHS. He will be responsible for the deliverables of the Full Service Case Management for
Child Welfare Services subaward, ensuring that DHHS's vision is realized and that priorities are
communicated to the project team.

PromiseShip will work with DHHS to develop a structured process for assuring regular communication
occurs. This will ensure our organization has clear direction from DHHS, is able to seek clarification and
create solutions, and can provide timely responses to any questions or clarifications that may be
needed. PromiseShip will build on the relationship that has been cultivated with DHHS over the past ten
years to ensure continued success of the public-private partnership with DHHS in meeting the needs of
the child welfare population in the Eastern Service Area.

Members of the Executive Leadership team will establish a schedule to meet regularly with DHHS
leadership counterparts to promote consistency for children and families during project implementation
and to ensure that project strategies across all subaward deliverables align fully with those of DHHS and
promote improvement across all systems that serve children and families in the Eastern Service Area.

Emphasizing continuous quality improvement and transparency throughout program implementation,
PromiseShip’s leadership team will continue meeting regularly with DHHS to evaluate services and
refine protocols, as necessary.

Reporting Relationships

Emphasizing close relationships with DHHS, community-based service providers, stakeholders, and the
children and families we serve, PromiseShip’s reporting relationships underscore local decision-making.
The organizational charts included as Figures 1 through 7 illustrate the reporting relationships for the
Project Team and their subordinates.

PromiseShip team leaders will promote teamwork among all operations areas. Our emphasis on

inclusive leadership fosters a structure in which we embrace collaboration to encourage a diversity of
thinking to improve the results we will achieve for DHHS and the children and families we serve.
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Figure 1. PromiseShip Overall Organizational Structure
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Figure 2. PromiseShip Program Operations Structure
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Figure 3. PromiseShip Network Services Innovation Structure
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Figure 6. PromiseShip Legal, Ethics, Compliance & Risk Structure
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A.2.j. Subcontractors

RFP Instructions: If the bidder intends to subcontract / subaward, any part of its performance hereunder, the bidder should
provide:

i.  name, address, and telephone number of the subcontractor(s) / Second Tier Subrecipient(s);

ii.  specific tasks for each subcontractor(s) / Second Tier Subrecipient(s);

iii. percentage of performance hours intended for each subcontract / subaward; and

iv. total percentage of subcontractor(s} / Second Tier Subrecipient(s) performance hours.

Subcontractors Summary

PromiseShip will retain primary responsibility for all case management services as required under the
subaward with DHHS.

However, PromiseShip intends to subcontract its placement, non-placement, treatment and
permanency services for children and families through referrals to its network of community service
providers (“Provider Network”), which can offer a full continuum of services. Based on 2018 expenditure
data, we anticipate approximately 83% of the subaward’s performance hours for direct services
provided to children and families will be performed by these subcontractors. Of the 83% of direct
services paid to subcontractors, 2.4% of those were paid to performance-based service contracts for
Intensive In-Home Services and Permanency Services.

Providers within the network include individuals and organizations qualified to provide direct services
within their specialty areas. The Provider Network includes a diverse range of providers in order to offer
a continuum of services to meet the needs of children and families we serve, including family
preservation, reunification and permanency supports, therapies and treatment services, and intensive
in-home services.

PromiseShip services offered by its Provider Network are categorized into four main types: (1)
Placement, (2) Non-Placement, (3) Permanency, and (4) Treatment.

Table 6 provides a breakdown of the four service categories by percentage of total subcontractors’
expense during the last calendar year (Jan 1 — Dec 31, 2018).

Table 6. Subcontractor Services Paid by Type (2018)

# % of % of Total
Service Type Providers Providers Amount Paid
Placement 137 52% 61%
Non-placement 95 36% 33%
Treatment 22 8% 5%
Permanency 9 3% 2%
Grand Total 263 100% 100%

Table 7 provides a full list of all subcontractors PromiseShip plans to work with, including their address,
telephone, specific tasks and percentage of performance hours.
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Table 7. Subcontractors Information

Service ] ’ % of
Category Subcontractor Name / Service Type(s) Address Telephone Perf. Hrs
2 :
A Better Way Therapy 3223 N. 169th Street, 402-403-5193 | TBD
Omaha, NE

Treatment Behavioral Health Outpatient Therapy

Alegent/CHI 6901 N. 72nd Street,
Omaha, NE 68122

402-572-2121 | 0.82%

Treatment Psychiatric Residential Treatment Facility
Behavioral Health Qutpatient Therapy

Apex 9802 Nicholas Street,
Ste 205, Omaha, NE 402-571-5400 | 6.80%
68134
Placement Foster Care
Respite
Kinship Support
Non- Integrated Family Care

Placement Family Support
Parenting Time
Apex Youth Services 9945 Maple Street,
Omaha, NE 68134

402-933-2739 | 0.81%

Non- Day/Evening Reporting
Placement
Atwood Heredia, Heather 16920 Patterson
Drive, Omaha, NE 402-320-5808 | 0.005%
68107
Non- Interpretation
Placement
Batt, Aaron 14205 N 32nd Ave
Omaha, NE 68112 402-453-3333 | 0.0002%
Non- Interpretation
Placement
Beneficial Behavioral Health 13435 A Street,

Omaha NE 68144 402-697-3923 | 5.16%

Treatment Behavioral Health Outpatient Therapy
Non- Family Preservation

Placement Family Support

Parenting Time

Better Living Counseling 7100 S. 29th Street,
Ste B, Lincoln, NE 402-476-0104 | 0.89%
68516
Non- Family Support
Placement Parenting Time
Boys Town 14100 Crawford
Street, Omaha, NE 402-498-1300 | 7.79%
68010

Placement Group Home
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% of
Telephone %2

Category Perf. Hrs
Residential Shelter
Foster Care
Kinship Support
Respite
Treatment Psychiatric Residential Treatment Facility
Behavioral Health Outpatient Therapy
Non- Family Support
Placement Family Preservation
Intensive In-Home
Parenting Time
Permanency | Adoption Incentive
Camelot Transportation 1220 Central #3
Kearney, NE 68847 308-455-1060 | 1.86%
Non- Transportation
Placement
Capstone Behavioral Health 1941 S. 42nd Street,
Ste 328, Omaha, NE 402-614-8444 | 1.06%
68105
Treatment Behavioral Health Outpatient Therapy
Non- Drug Testing
Placement Family Preservation
Family Support
Parenting Time
Cedars Youth Services 6601 Pioneers Blvd,
Lincoln, NE 68506 402-434-5437 | 0.71%
Placement Group Home
Residential Shelter
Foster Care
Respite
Permanency | Home Studies
Non- Day/Evening Reporting
Placement Family Support
Parenting Time
Child Saving Institute 4545 Dodge Street,
Omaha, NE 68132 402-553-6000 | 3.91%
Placement Residential Shelter
Foster Care
Kinship Support
Respite
Non- Family Support
Placement Intensive In-Home
Permanency | Home Studies
Relinquishment Counseling
Adoption Services
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Telephone

% of

Category Perf. Hrs
Children's Square USA 5017 Leavenworth
Street, Ste 1, Omaha, | 402-556-6765 | 3.27%
NE 68106
Treatment Psychiatric Residential Treatment Facility
Placement Foster Care
Kinship Support
Respite
Non- Family Support
Placement Parenting Time
Christian Heritage 14880 Old Cheney
Road, Walton, NE 402-421-5437 | 2.44%
68461
Placement Foster Care
Kinship Support
Club Z 8420 W. Dodge
Road, Ste 330, 402-434-2582 | 0.04%
Omaha, NE 68114
Non- Academic Tutoring
Placement
Concord Mediation Center 4225 N. 90th Street,
Omaha, NE 68134 402-345-1131 | 0.55%
Non- Mediation and Facilitation
Placement Family Group Counseling
Permanency | Termination of Parental Rights Review
Drugtek 2718 S. 148th
Avenue Circle, 402-330-5303 | 0.004%
Omaha, NE 68144
Non- Drug Testing
Placement
Family Development Service 4611 S. 96th Street
Suite 221 Omaha NE | 402-706-0751 | 1.38%
68127
Non- Family Support
Placement Parenting Time
Forensic Behavioral Health 1410 Gold Coast
Road, Ste 800, 402-557-6027 | 0.03%
Papillion, NE 68046
Treatment Behavioral Health Outpatient Therapy
Heartland Family Service 11212 Davenport
Street, Omaha, NE 402-963-9699 | 3.27%
68154
Treatment Behavioral Health Outpatient Therapy
Family Works
Better Together
Placement Residential Shelter
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Group Home
Non- Drug Testing
Placement Electronic Monitoring/GPS
Tracker
Intensive In-Home
Family Support
Parenting Time
Hill Counseling and Consulting, P.C. 1941 S. 42nd Street,
Ste 129, Omaha, NE 402-871-9979 | 0.25%
68105
Non- Drug Testing
Placement Family Support
Parenting Time
KVC Behavioral Healthcare 11550 | Street, Ste
100, Omaha, NE 402-498-4700 | 8.14%
68137
Placement Foster Care
Kinship Support
Respite
Permanency | Home Studies
Non- Family Preservation
Placement Intensive In-Home
Language Link 210 "O" Street,
Lincoln, NE 68508 192:473:29104 | 7D
Non- Interpretation
Placement
Lutheran Family Services 124 S. 24th Street,
Omaha, NE 68102 402-342-7007 | 3.43%
Treatment Behavioral Health Outpatient Therapy
Permanency | Adoption Services
Relinquishment Counseling
Placement Foster Care
Kinship Support
Respite
Non- Family Preservation
Placement interpretation
Family Support
Parenting Time
Pathways to Permanency
Midwest Special Services PO Box 82
Curtis, NE 69025 402-502-3966 | 0.005%
Non- Transportation
Placement
Nebraska Children's Home Society 4939 S. 118th Street,
Omaha, NE 68137 402-451-8707 | 3.73%
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Permanency | Adoption Services
Home Studies
Relinquishment Counseling
Placement Foster Care
Kinship Support
Non- Family Support
Placement Pathways to Permanency
Parenting Time
Nebraska Family Support Network 3568 Dodge Street,
‘Ste 2, Omaha NE 402-345-0791 | TBD
68131
Non- Peer to Peer Support
Placement
Newring, PhD, Kirk 1410 E Gold Coast Rd
#800, Omaha NE 402-557-6027 | TBD
68046
Treatment Behavioral Health Qutpatient Therapy
NOVA Treatment Community 8502 Mormon Bridge
Road, Omaha, NE 402-455-8303 | 1.48%
68152
Treatment PRTF
Non- Family Support
Placement Parenting Time
Placement Foster Care
Kinship Support
Permanency | Adoption Services
Omaha Home for Boys 4343 N. 52 Street,
Omaha, NE 68104 402-457-7000 | 0.03%
Placement Transitional Living
Group Home
OMNI Inventive Care 5115 F Street,
Omaha, NE 68117 402-397-9866 | 6.78%
Treatment Behavioral Health Outpatient Therapy
Placement DD Placement
Treatment Group Home
Foster Care
Kinship Support
Respite
Non- Crisis Family Preservation
Placement Family Preservation
Family Support
Intensive In-Home
Permanency | Adoption Services
Owens and Associates 7413 N. 30th Street,
Omaha, NE 68112 402-451-8404 | 2.70%
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Non- Drug Testing
Placement Family Support
Intensive In-Home
Parenting Time
Owens Educational Services 7413 N. 30th Street,
Omaha, NE 68112 402-455-5067 | 0.20%
Non- Day or Evening Reporting
Placement Drug Testing - Youth
Electronic Monitoring/GPS
Tracker
Paradigm Inc. 809 S. 174th Street,
Omaha, NE 68118 402-991-8093 | 1.12%
Non- Parenting Time
Placement Family Support
Family Preservation
intensive In-Home
Perez Counseling Services, P.C. 1941 S 42nd St.,
Suite # 534, Omaha 402-460-7963 | 0.0009%
NE 68105
Treatment Behavioral Health Outpatient Therapy
Reconnect Inc. 1941 S. 42nd Street,
Omaha, NE 68105 402-934-4933 | 0.20%
Non- Day or Evening Reporting
Placement
Redwood Toxicology Laboratory 3650 Westwind Blvd,
Santa Rosa CA 95403 | /07>70-4326 | 0.001%
Non- Drug testing Lab
Placement Drug Testing Equipment
Release Ministries 3223 N. 45th Street,
Omaha, NE 68104 402-455-0808 | 3.55%
Placement Group Home
Respite
Non- Parenting Time
Placement Family Support
Family Preservation
Intensive In-Home
Interpretation
Rite of Passage dba Uta Halee 2560 Business
Parkway Suite A, 775-392-2636 | 1.08%
Minden NV 89423
Placement Group Home
Residential Shelter
Dr. Stankus 1941 S. 42nd Street,
Ste 524, Omaha, NE 402-680-8214 | TBD
68105
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Treatment Behavioral Health Outpatient Therapy
Therapy Resources Associates, Inc 10824 Mill Valley
Road, Ste 21, 402-330-6060 | TBD
Omaha, NE 68154
Treatment Behavioral Health Outpatient Therapy
Villarreal, Al 4813 South 24th
Street, Omaha, NE 402-660-4493 | 0.001%
68107
Non- Interpretation
Placement
WCA (Women’s Center for Advancement) | 3801 Harney Street, 402-345-6555 | 0.02%
Omaha NE 68131
Non- Domestic Violence Education
Placement
Youth Care and Beyond 2819 S. 125th Ave,
Ste 276, Omaha, NE 402-991-9709 | 0.49%
68144
Placement Group Home
Kinship/Relatives (PromiseShip) Varies Varies 17.78%
Placement Foster Care
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A.2.k. References

RFP Instructions: The bidder should provide three references from a non-DHHS individual familiar with the

bidders’ corporate experience.

1. Name:
Title:
Affiliation:
Physical Address:
Mailing Address:
Phone:
Email:

2. Name:
Title:
Affiliation:
Address:
Phone:
Email:

3. Name:
Title:
Affiliation:
Address:
Phone:
Email:

Georgie Scurfield

Executive Director

Lift Up Sarpy County

119 W. Mission, Bellevue NE 68005
PO Box 460755, Papillion NE 68046
(402) 659-8813
GScurfield@LiftUpSarpyCounty.org

Gene Klein, LCSW

Executive Director

Project Harmony

11949 Q Street, Omaha NE 68137
(402) 595-1326
gklein@projectharmony.com

Chris Rodgers

Commissioner, District 3

Douglas County Commissioners

1819 Farnam Street, LC2, Civic Center, Omaha NE 68183
(402) 444-7025

crodgers@douglascounty-ne.gov
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Appendix 1: 2017 Audited Financial Statements (CO-1)
Appendix 2: Banking Reference Letter (co-1)
Appendix 3: Key Personnel Resumés (CO-3)
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KPMG LLP

Suite 300 Suite 1120

1212 N. 96th Street 1248 O Street

Omaha, NE 68114-2274 Lincoln, NE 68508-1493

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
Nebraska Families Collaborative:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nebraska Families Collaborative d/b/a PromiseShip
d/b/a PromiseShip (PromiseShip), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31,
2017 and 2016, and the related statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of PromiseShip as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the changes in its net assets (deficit) and its
cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
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KPME

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 27, 2018
on our consideration of PromiseShip’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of PromiseShip’s
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering PromiseShip’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

KPMe LLP

Omaha, Nebraska
September 27, 2018



PROMISESHIP
Statements of Financial Position
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $24,891 in 2017 and
$20,384 in 2016
Prepaid expenses
Receivable from Father Flanagan’s Boys Home
Land, buildings, and equipment, net

Total assets $
Liabilities and Net Assets (Deficit)
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $
Other liabilities
Deferred revenue

Deferred lease
Capital lease obligation

Total liabilities

Net assets (deficit):
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted

Total net assets (deficit)

Total liabilities and net assets $

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Appendix 1

2017 2016
1,783,016 883,899
5,242,249 6,021,802
262,746 301,561
208,063 149,540
63,473 105,497
7,559,547 7,462,299
5,077,736 5,967,742
1,518,421 1,455,536
126,517 42,491
88,602 19,114
48,399 67,944
6,859,675 7,552,827
652,088 (117,109)
47,784 26,581
699,872 (90,528)
7,559,547 7,462,299




PROMISESHIP
Statements of Activities
Years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Appendix 1

2017 2016
Changes in unrestricted net assets (deficit):
Revenue and support:
Coritributions $ 132,370 41,512
Program service revenue 68,748,529 62,788,459
Interest and miscellaneous income 276,528 4,221
Net assets released from restrictions 11,788 20,666
Total unrestricted revenue and support 69,169,215 62,854,858
Expenses:
Program services 64,911,316 60,835,822
Supporting services 3,488,702 3,653,844
Total expenses 68,400,018 64,489,666
Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets (deficit) 769,197 (1,634,808)
Changes in temporarily restricted net assets:
Contributions 32,991 25,092
Net assets released from restrictions (11,788) (20,666)
Increase in temporarily restricted net assets 21,203 4,426
Increase (decrease) in net assets 790,400 (1,630,382)
Net assets (deficit) at beginning of year (90,528) 1,539,854
Net assets (deficit) at end of year 3 699,872 (90,528)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Cash flows from operating activities:

Increase (decrease) in net assets $

Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets
(deficit) to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization of deferred lease
In-kind contributions
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Receivable from Father Flanagan’s Boys Home
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Other liabilities
Deferred lease
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by (used in) by operating activities

Cash flows from financing activity:
Principal payments under capital lease

Net cash used in financing activity
Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $
Issuance of capital lease obligation

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Appendix 1

2017 2016

790,400 (1,630,382)
48,026 73,008
11,849 5,147
(12,076) (17,500)
779,553 (985,570)
50,891 51,272
(58,523) (149,540)
(890,006) 468,174
62,885 161,151
57,639 -
84,026 378
924,664 (2,023,862)
(25,547) (21,940)
(25,547) (21,940)
899,117 (2,045,802)
883,899 2,929,701
1,783,016 883,899
8,969 5756
6,002 =



Salaries
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Total salaries and related expenses

Specific assistance to youth
Occupancy

Contract services

Supplies

Printing and publications

Postage

Equipment — rental and maintenance
Professional fees

Travel

Communications and information technology
Interest

Other

Total expenses before depreciation
Depreciation

Total expenses

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

PROMISESHIP
Statement of Functional Expenses

Year ended December 31, 2017

Program services

Supporting services

Coordination

and Management Total
support Program Program Total program and supporting Total
services grants support services general Fundraising services exp
12,680,982 20,249 1,166,909 13,868,140 1,395,310 156,431 1,651,741 15,419,881
2,468,996 715 201,868 2,671,579 354 504 29,656 384,160 3,055,739
1.017.161 184 85,854 1,103,199 106,631 12,131 118,762 1,221,961
16,167,139 21,148 1,454,631 17,642,918 1,856,445 198,218 2,054,663 19,697,581
485,321 4,000 — 489,321 5,588 223 5,811 495,132
755,205 —_ 30,838 786,043 78,179 2,175 81,354 867,397
44,432,761 3,266 —_— 44,436,027 491,849 2,553 494,402 44,930,429
86,568 128 —_ 86,696 60,186 8,817 69,003 155,699
39,788 2,125 17,654 59,567 18,201 7,168 25,369 84,836
3,053 198 —_ 3,251 20,281 368 20,649 23,900
_ — = = 51,841 — 51,841 51,841
99,888 25,129 54,175 179,192 294,638 46,507 341,145 520,337
711,508 — 11,050 722,558 58,804 3,325 62,129 784,687
459,841 — 2,247 462,088 224,281 1,463 225744 687,832
5,181 4,735 — 9,916 3,751 — 3,751 13,667
33,739 — — 33,739 1,913 2,902 4,815 38,554
63,279,992 60,729 1,570,595 64,911,316 3,166,957 273,718 3,440,676 68,351,992
— — —_ —_— 48,026 —_ 48,026 48,026
63,279,992 60,729 1,570,595 64,911,316 3,214,983 273,719 3,488,702 68,400,018
6
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Salaries
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Total salaries and related expenses

Specific assistance to youth
Occupancy

Contract services

Supplies

Printing and publications

Postage

Equipment - rental and maintenance
Professional fees

Travel

Communications and information technology
Interest

Other

Total expenses before depreciation
Depreciation

Total expenses

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

PROMISESHIP
Statement of Functional Expenses
Year ended December 31, 2016

Program services

Supporting services

Coordination

and Management Total
support Program Program Total program and supporting Total
services grants support services general Fundraising services expenses
$ 11,404,565 35,940 1,088,663 12,529,168 1,246,147 129,566 1,375,713 13,904,881
2,421,399 7,808 201,034 2,630,241 307,185 19,898 327,083 2,957,324
913,578 2,770 80,979 997,327 133,515 9,913 143,428 1,140,755
14,739,542 46,518 1,370,676 16,156,736 1,686,847 159,377 1,846,224 18,002,960
520,105 1,350 —_ 521,455 _ —_ —_ 521,455
9,589 —_ —_ 9,589 716,672 —_ 716,672 726,261
42,811,838 52,209 5,000 42,869,047 466,986 2,082 469,068 43,338,115
82,278 1,652 683 84,613 49,414 654 50,068 134,681
60,186 472 14,697 75,355 18,656 8,127 26,783 102,138
3,863 —_ _ 3,863 18,737 — 18,737 22,600
16,586 145 —_ 16,731 59,542 — 58,542 76,273
7,602 130,422 —_ 138,024 232,483 14,071 246,554 384,578
709,716 7 17,983 727,706 27,837 1,935 29,772 757,478
199,785 — 3,552 203,337 109,633 384 110,017 313,354
715 —_ —_ 715 5,002 —_ 5,002 5717
28,510 141 — 28,651 2,380 17 2,397 31,048
59,190,315 232,916 1,412,591 60,835,822 3,394,189 186,647 3,580,836 64,416,658
— —_ — — 73,008 — 73,008 73,008
$ 59,190,315 232,916 1,412,591 60,835,822 3,467,197 186,647 3,653,844 64,489,666
7

| Xipuaddy



(1

(2)

Appendix 1

PROMISESHIP
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Nature of Operations

Nebraska Families Collaborative d/b/a PromiseShip (PromiseShip) is a Nebraska nonprofit public benefit
charitable corporation created by five Omaha area organizations (Child Saving Institute, Father Flanagan's
Boys' Home (FFBH), Heartland Family Service, Nebraska Family Support Network, and OMNI Behavioral
Health). PromiseShip’s revenue is derived from program service revenue through a service delivery,
coordination, and case management contract with the Nebraska Department of Health and Human
Services Division of Children and Family Services and support from the member organizations.

PomiseShip provides service coordination, services, and case management for the families, children, and
youth who are wards of the state of Nebraska involved in child welfare or are noncourt involved children
and families served throughout Douglas and Sarpy Counties. The activity involved is to identify service
providers to deliver all needed services for children and families as described above and to pay for all
services that do not have other reimbursement sources. The activities also include family team meetings,
court reports in regard to the child, collaboration with the schools, and all agency resources in the
community to obtain all necessary services directly connected to the safety, permanency, and wellbeing of
the child.

PromiseShip provided services to 5,194 children and 2,305 families in 2017 and 4,797 children and

2,183 families in 2016 by providing a complete continuum of nontreatment, non-Medicaid funded services,
and placement resources. These resources ensure appropriate and timely child welfare support provided to
adult family members, children, and youth. These services are available to families and youth in need any
time of day or night throughout the year.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies used in the preparation of the financial
statements:

(a) Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.
Resources are reported for accounting purposes into separate classes of net assets based on the
existence or absence of donor imposed restrictions. In the accompanying financial statements, net
assets (deficit) that have similar characteristics have been combined into similar categories.

The unrestricted net assets (deficit) account for resources over which the governing board has
discretionary control to use in carrying on the operations of PromiseShip.

The temporarily restricted net assets account for those resources currently available for use, but
expendable only for purposes specified by the donor or grantor, or which will become available for use
at a later time.

8 (Continued)
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PROMISESHIP
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

(b) Concentration of Risk

Most of PromiseShip’s revenue and accounts receivable for the years ended December 31, 2017 and
2016 are derived from a contract with the state of Nebraska (the State). Failure by the State to pay
amounts due would impact the ability of PromiseShip to continue operations. The contract with the
State is set to expire June 30, 2019. Failure to renew this contract would significantly impact the size of
operations of PromiseShip.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

(d) Program Service Revenue

Program service revenue is recognized when the services are performed. Payments received prior to
services being performed are recognized as deferred revenue. PromiseShip records grant revenue
when the work has been performed in accordance with the conditions of the grant.

PromiseShip maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses inherent in its accounts
receivable portfolio. In establishing the required allowance, management considers historical losses
adjusted to take into account current market conditions, customers’ financial conditions, the amount of
receivables in dispute, and the current receivables aging.

(e) Contributions

Donated properties and materials are recorded as contributions at their estimated fair value at date of
donation. All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the
donor for specific purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support that
increases those net asset (deficit) classes. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same time period in
which the contribution is received, the organization reports the support as unrestricted. Contributions of
cash and other assets restricted to the acquisition of long-lived assets are reported as restricted
support until the long-lived asset is placed in service.

(f) Land, Buildings, and Equipment '

Land, buildings, and equipment are reported at cost, including capitalized interest when applicable.
Items are capitalized if the unit cost is $5,000 or more and has a useful life in excess of one year.
Depreciation of buildings and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. Estimated useful lives for buildings range from 25 to 50 years. Estimated useful
lives for equipment range from 3 to 10 years.

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings, or equipment are reported as unrestricted support
unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the assets are to be used, and gifts of cash or other
assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit
donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained, expirations of donor
restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed into service.
Contributions restricted to the purchase of land, buildings, and equipment in which restrictions are met
within the same year as received are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets (deficit).

9 (Continued)
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PROMISESHIP
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

(9) Impairment of Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets, such as land, buildings, and equipment, are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying
amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the
asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge
is recognized to the extent the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value.

(h) Employee Benefits

PromiseShip offers employees a benefit package identical to employees of its member organization
Father Flanagan's Boys’ Home. This benefit package includes but is not limited to medical and life
insurance and a defined-contribution pension plan.

All participants of PromiseShip’s 401(k) plan receive a 100% match of up to 6% of the participant's
contributed salary on a monthly basis. Total employer contributions to the 401(k) plan were $567,156
and $497,205 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

(i) Income Taxes

PromiseShip is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code. PromiseShip accounts for uncertainties in accounting for income tax assets and liabilities by
recognizing the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely than not of being
sustained. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, PromiseShip had no uncertain tax positions accrued.

(i) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amount of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

(3) Land, Buildings, and Equipment
Land, buildings, and equipment consist of the following at December 31, 2017 and 2016:

2017 2016
Equipment $ 389,069 389,069
Equipment under capital lease 119,339 113,337
Less accumulated depreciation (444,935) (396,909)
$ 63,473 105,497

10 (Continued)
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PROMISESHIP
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Lease Commitments

PromiseShip leased office facilities under operating leases with escalating rental payments that expire in
various years through 2022. Future minimum lease payments for operating leases with initial or remaining
noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 2017 were as follows:

Operating
leases
2018 $ 762,664
2019 770,694
2020 778,805
2021 763,599
2022 333,135
Total minimum lease
payments $ 3,408,897

Rental expense (exclusive of real estate taxes, insurance, and other expenses) for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to $522,905 and $419,971, respectively. Escalating rental
payments are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

PromiseShip has capital leases for office equipment with a net book value of $44,378 as of December 31,
2017. Future minimum lease payments for capital leases with initial or remaining noncancelable lease
terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 2017 were as follows:

Capital
leases
2018 $ 29,335
2019 21,805
Total minimum lease
payments 51,140
Less amount representing interest (2,741)
Present value of minimum
lease payments $ 48,399
Line of Credit

PromiseShip had an irrevocable line of credit of $1,000,000 with an interest rate of 3.56% as of
December 31, 2017. No funds were drawn as of December 31, 2017. The interest rate is calculated at two
percentage points above the monthly LIBOR. This line of credit expires September 30, 2018.

11 (Continued)
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PROMISESHIP
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

(6) Related-Party Transactions

Representatives from Child Saving Institute, FFBH, Heartland Family Service, Nebraska Family Support
Network, and OMNI Behavioral Health are members of the board of directors for PromiseShip. In 2017 and
20186, these entities provided $12,397,790 and $10,848,199, respectively, of contract services to identified
families and youth. These entities received $0 and $3,721, respectively, in 2017 and 2016, in rental income
due to leasing arrangements for office facilities to PromiseShip.

PromiseShip has a payable due to FFBH of $340,566 in 2017 and $481,876 in 2016 for program services
that were provided by FFBH and is included in accounts payable on the statements of financial position.
PromiseShip had a receivable from FFBH in the amount of $133,261 and $149,540, net for expenses paid
by PromiseShip for FFBH as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 respectively.

(7) Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of gifts contributed for a specified period or until the occurrence of
some future event.

2017 2016
Restricted net assets:
Duffles for dignity $ 24,845 21,992
Other program 22,939 4,589
$ 47,784 26,581

Temporarily restricted net assets were released for the following purposes:

2017 2016
Duffles for dignity $ 9,199 20,591
Other program 2,589 75
$ 11,788 20,666

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purposes
or by occurrence of other events specified by the donors.

(8) Subsequent Events

PromiseShip has evaluated subsequent events from the statement of financial position date through
September 26, 2018, the date at which the financial statements were available to be issued.

12
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PROMISESHIP
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year ended December 31, 2017

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

(b)

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal
award activity of Nebraska Families Collaborative d/b/a PromiseShip (PromiseShip) under programs of
the federal government for the year ended December 31, 2017. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Some programs are funded jointly by PromiseShip appropriations, and federal and
state funds. Expenditures are subject to audit by the granting agency and, in the opinion of
management, disallowed costs, if any, will not have a material effect on PromiseShip’s federal
programs.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance wherein
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. PromiseShip has
not elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance
and has not charged indirect costs to federal programs.

14
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Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

December 31, 2017

Federal
Federal Federal expenditures
grantor CFDA Federal to
agency Grantor/subgrantor Program title number expenditures subrecipients
U.S Department of Health and Human Services:
DHHS - ACF U.S. Department of Health and Human Services —
Administration of Children and Families Adoption Opportunities 93.652 $ 23,881 -
Total federal awards — DHHS Direct 23,881 —
DHHS Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services Foster Care Program Title IV-E 93.658 3,153,690 —
DHHS Nebraska Children and Families Foundation
Lincoln, Nebraska Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 5.325 —
Total federal awards — DHHS pass-through 3,159,015 —
$ 3,182,896 —

Total federal awards

Abbreviations legend:

ACF Administration for Children and Families
DHHS Department of Health and Human Services

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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KPMG

KPMG LLP

Suite 300 Suite 1120

1212 N. 96th Street 1248 O Street

Omaha, NE 68114-2274 Lincoln, NE 68508-1493

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
With Government Auditing Standards

The Board of Directors
Nebraska Families Collaborative:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Nebraska Families Collaborative d/b/a
PromiseShip d/b/a PromiseShip (PromiseShip), which comprise the statement of financial position as of
December 31, 2017, and the related statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
September 27, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered PromiseShip’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of PromiseShip’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of PromiseShip’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether PromiseShip's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of PromiseShip's internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the PromiseShip’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is
not suitable for any other purpose.

KPMe LIP

Omaha, Nebraska
September 27, 2018
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KPMG'

KPMG LLP

Suite 300 Suite 1120

1212 N. 96th Street 1248 O Street

Omaha, NE 68114-2274 Lincoln, NE 68508-1493

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for each Major Federal Program;
Report on Internal Control over Compliance; and Report on Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

The Board of Directors
Nebraska Families Collaborative:

Report on Compliance for each Major Federal Program

We have audited Nebraska Families Collaborative d/b/a PromiseShip’s (PromiseShip) compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on PromiseShip’s major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2017. PromiseShip’s
major federal program is identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of
its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of PromiseShip’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about PromiseShip’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of PromiseShip’s compliance.

Opinion on each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, PromiseShip complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended
December 31, 2017.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of PromiseShip is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit
of compliance, we considered PromiseShip’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance
for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of PromiseShip’s internal
control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist
that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of PromiseShip as of and for the years ended December 31, 2017
and 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated September 27, 2018, which contained an unmodified
opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the
financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

KPMe LLP

Omaha, Nebraska
September 27, 2018
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PROMISESHIP
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year ended December 31, 2017

(1) Summary of Auditors’ Results

C)

(b)

(c)

)
(9)

Type of report issued on whether the financial statements were prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles: Unmodified

Internal control deficiencies over financial reporting disclosed by the audit of the financial statements:

e Material weaknesses: No
» Significant deficiencies: None reported

Noncompliance material to the financial statements: No
Internal control deficiencies over major programs disclosed by the audit:

e Material weaknesses: No
¢ Significant deficiencies: None reported

Type of report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a): No
Major program:

e Foster Care Title IV-E — CFDA 93.658

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee: Yes

(2) Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards: None

(3) Findings and Questioned Costs Relating to Federal Awards: None
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(D First National Bank 1620 Dodge Street

Omaha, NE 68197
402.602.5100

February 27, 2019

RE: Nebraska Families Collaborative

To Whom It May Concern:

Nebraska Families Collaborative has been customer of First National Bank of Omaha since
2015. The company maintains a deposit and credit relationship with the bank including a line of
credit. All accounts have been handled as agreed.

If there are any further questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me at (402) 602-5396.
Sincerely,

QA. LoD

Jake R. Holdenried
Vice President



SUMMARY

Dave Joined the PromiseShip leadership team
in 2010. Prior, Dave served as a regional vice
president at EMQ Families First (2006-2010),
executive director at Denali Family Services
(1999-2006), and was the Chair of the Alaska
Behavioral Health Association (2002-2005). He
has more than 25 years' social services
experience both in direct service and
leadership roles. In partnership with his wife,
Theresa, Dave also has 25 years' experience as
a therapeutic foster, adoptive, and birth
parent.

9 6405 South 179" Street
Omaha, NE 68135

N\
\\ 402.445.7926

’@ david.newell@promiseship.org
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EXPERIENCE

President & CEC
PromiseShip, Omaha, NE
2010 - Present

Responsible for the entire agency management including administration
oversight of programs and services, network development, a
collaborative leadership role with the Nebraska Department of Health
and Human Services, contracts, public and community relations, and
staffing of the Board of Directors. A proven results-driven leader with a
history of complex problem-solving abilities and a deep knowledge of
child welfare and the juvenile justice system.

s Successful transfer of DHHS ESA 1/3 children and families
completed December 2011.

s  Successful transfer of KVC ESA 1/3 children and families
completed March 1, 2012.

s  Grew annual operating budget from $22 million to $58 million
in less than two years.

»  Achieved initial COA accreditation in December 2012.

s Advocated successfully in collaboration with senators and child
welfare stakeholders for the unanimous passage by the
Nebraska legislature of LB 660 in April 2014,

s Awarded $500,000 federal grant for adoptions by the
Administration for Children and Families in October 2014.

e  For the first time in its history, the ESA met all six of the CFSR
round two measures in December 2015.

Regional Vice President
Vice President of Foster Care and Adoption Services

Executive Director of Foster Care and Adoption Services
EMQ Families First, Sacramento, CA
2006 - 2010

Spearheaded the mental health and social services for the FCAS, Capital
and Los Angeles regions providing services to Sacramento, Solano, Yolo
and Los Angeles. Orchestrated the program management, budget
administration, business development, community relations and
employee supervision. Managed budget of over $48 million and more
than 400 staff. Delivered mental health and social service programs that
include adoption, foster care, wraparound, Focus, outpatient, nonpublic
school, residential care, crisis nursery and psychiatric services.

s  Executed budget integration and personnel restructuring by
consolidating staff and the Sacramento foster care offices to
relieve $303,000. Merged the San Jose Families First Office and
EMQ offices to save an additional $100,000 annually.

»  Successfully transferred psychiatric services to EPSDT providers
to save 535,000 annually.

¢ Selected to serve as liaison between Senior Leadership team
and Corporate Operations group due to proven effective
listening and communications skills.



REFERENCES

Kathy Bigsby-Moore
219 South 167" Street
Omaha, NE 68118
402.330.5126

Theresa Barron-McKeagney, Ph.D.

6001 Dodge Street, CPACS 109
Omaha, NE 68182
402.554.2276

Peg Harriott
4545 Dodge Street
Omaha, NE 68132
402.504.3600
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Executive Director

Denali Family Services, Anchorage, AK
1999 - 2006

Executed and administered a $5 million budget for this nonprofit
corporation. Developed and coordinated the strategic planning, budget
development, oversight and reporting, programs, board of directors,
business development and employee supervision. Orchestrated the
behavioral rehabilitation, Little Steps Day School, school-based
initiatives, Reclaiming Futures and psychiatric outpatient programs
delivering services to families and children.

e Led the turnaround of this financially unstable organization by
balancing the agency’s business and social mission.

= Received the agency’s first national accreditation with the
Council of Accreditation.

= Introduced evidence-based practices of Incredible Years and
Multi-dimensional Treatment Foster Care.

= Implemented the first Management Information System
(MIS)/Electronic Records to streamline the development and
billing of a wide array of behavioral healthcare services.

* Provided interim executive management services through DFS
for Mat-Su Recovery Center, Inc. Reviewed strategic options
with its board of directors and agreed to a successful merger
with another agency.

= Agency recognition in 2005 by the Anchorage Chamber of
Commerce for the “Gold Pan Award” for Premier Service to
Youth by an Individual, Organization or Business.

= Nominated as “Alaska Social Worker of the Year.”

Therapeutic Foster Parent

The Arc of Anchorage, Anchorage, AK
1993 - 2006

Provided intensive support for children with severe emotional
disturbances and developmental disabilities. Supported birth parents by
communicating constructive methods of positive discipline, behavioral
modification and specific parenting issues to individual children and
families.

»  Participated in children’s psychotherapy, Core Service Teams
and school multi-disciplinary teams.
s Successful outcomes for all of the children in care.

EDUCATION

Master of Social Work
University of Alaska Anchorage, Anchorage, AK
1998

Bachelor of Science, Education

Southern lllinois University at Edwardsville, Edwardsville, IL
1989
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AWARDS/RECOGNITION

»  Received the Annual Child Welfare Award by the Omaha
Metropolitan Child Advocacy Coalition in 2013

»  Selected to join the Annie E. Casey Foundation {AECF) Children
and Family Fellowship in 2013

*» Received the A.W. Clark Award from Child Saving Institute in
2016

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

¢  Appointed by Governor Heineman to the Nebraska Children's
Commission (2012 & 2014)

*  Appointed by Governor Ricketts to the Nebraska Children’s
Commission (2016)

» Served on the board of directors for the Alaska Behavioral
Health Association, Foster Family-Based Treatment Association,
and Voice for Adoption

» Member of the National Association of Social Workers,
Academy of Certified Social Workers, and the AECF Children
and Family Fellowship

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATIONS
»  Nebraska Certified Social Worker {CSW) License #430

b=

- PromiseShip.

helping families be families




SUMMARY

Ron joined the leadership team of PromiseShip in
2018. Prior to PromiseShip, Ron has 40 plus years of
results-oriented success in senior leadership
positions. Experienced in developing and directing
large, multi-disciplined staffs. Well versed In
developing and executing multi-million-dollar
budgets. Strong team-building skills that foster
commitment, performance and quality. Twenty-
four years of senior management experience in
human services.

9 1201 E Coolbaugh Street
Red Oak, IA 51566

N\
\\ 402.445.7978

ronald.zychowski@promiseship.org
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EXPERIENCE

Senior Director of Executive Operations
PromiseShip, Omaha, NE
2018 - Present

»  Support PromiseShip’s CEO and Executive Leadership Team in
developing and executing strategic and annual operating plans.

s  Updated the PromiseShip Strategic Plan and created the initial
PromiseShip Business Plan.

»  Assist the CEO and Executive Leadership Team to improve
performance through the implementation of data-informed
leadership that brings a balanced approach of accountability and
support guided by data.

s  Reduced the number of children in out of home care by 8%;
reduced the total number of children in the system by 13% and
increased adoptions by 30% over the prior year, in State Fiscal Year
2018.

Independent Consultant
Red Oak Consulting, LLC, Red Oak, IA
2017 - 2018

»  Worked with non-profits to improve performance through the
implementation of data-informed leadership to bring a balanced
approach of accountability and support guided by data.

Chief Performance and Quality

Eckerd Connects, Clearwater, FL
2013 - 2016

*  Provided performance and quality management support to all
Eckerd programs. Eckerd’s child welfare system was larger than 14
states and the District of Columbia and was the 5" best performing
system of care in the nation based upon federal CFSR round 3
outcomes.

»  Transformed Quality using business intelligence and predictive
analytics in a way that allowed all programs to improve outcomes
for children and families.

*  Opened Eckerd’s consulting business and secured contracts with
four states to deploy Eckerd Rapid Safety Feedback System, a
predictive analytics model that addresses child safety in high-risk
cases.

Chief Operating Officer
Eckerd Connects, Clearwater, FL
2009 - 2013

s Supervised the company’s day-to-day operations that served over
3,000 children in Florida’s child welfare system and another 3,000
across nine states involved in the juvenile justice or child welfare
system. Programs were performance-based and outcome-driven.
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»  Focused on family-centered practice, timely permanency and the
proper preparation of those children who will age out of foster
care as the Lead Agency in Florida’s Circuit 6 and Circuit 13.

* Improved outcomes in all programs; achieved the highest Quality
Ranking from the State in 7 of 8 Juvenile Justice Programs; grew
programs to the largest privately-operated system of care in the
country; assisted in transforming and growing Eckerd from a $70M
company to a $150M company operating in 6 states.

CEO

Community Partnership for Children, Daytona Beach, FL
2005 - 2009

» Led a staff of 200 in providing protective supervision, foster care
and adoption services to 2,000 children in a 3-county area.

»  Through leadership focused on results and an outreach to the
community that built strong ties and transparency, took the
agency from the brink of closure to one of the most respected
child protection agencies in the state.

REFERENCES »  Safely reduced the number of children in out-of-home care by 36%

and the number of children in the dependency system by 32%.

Tony Moore et = Reduced the number of children on runaway status by 79%.
3106Gleneagles Dr,ve Bast =  Finalized over 600 adoptions with over 40% completed within 24
Clearwater, FL. 33761 "
s.
727.560.3792 *  Ensured that at least 99.9% of all children served were seen
monthly.

Alex Reed

100 Starcrest Drive
Clearwater, FL 33765
727.215.8388

#  Of the 15 outcomes that make up the Federal Permanency
Composite, exceeded the national 75t percentile performance on
6 measures and the national mean performance on another 4
measures.

*  Worked with the Community Partnerships and served on several
statewide senior executive committees including: Co-chair of the
Statewide Performance Committee, Member of Florida’s Team to
the National Governor’s Policy Academy on Safely Reducing Out-
of-Home Care, and Member of the Executive Oversight Committee
preparing Florida’s CFSR Performance Improvement Plan.

» Served on the executive team that developed and deployed
Florida’s Quality Assurance Program and the executive team that
secured and implemented Florida’s Federal IV-E Waiver; the only
statewide waiver in the nation.

Randy Luecke
100 Starcrest Drive
Clearwater, FL 33765
727.242.3095

Executive Director

Community Based Care of Seminole County, Lake Mary, FL
2004 - 2005

»  First employee of the company and guided it through start-up and
contract negotiations to successful execution of its lead agency
contract on August 1, 2004.

*  Successfully transitioned supervision of 600 children and all
services from the state in October 2004.

b

Senior Executive Positions

Florida Department of Children and Families, Tallahassee, FL
1995-2004

- PromiseShip.

helping families be families
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»  Served in a wide range of leadership positions with the Florida
Department of Children and Families in three different Districts
and the State’s largest Region, holding senior executive positions
in administration, operations and programs.

»  Closed one of Florida’s State Hospitals and successfully
transitioning over 100 mentally ill patients back to their
communities with improved community supports.

= Improved the integration of Child Welfare and Substance Abuse
Services.

=  Consistently among the leaders in the state on Child Abuse
Investigation performance measures.

= Balanced every annual budget.

+ Consistently among the state’s leaders in achieving outcomes
across all programs which included Temporary Cash Assistance,
Food Stamps, Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services, Aging
and Disabled Adult Services, Developmental Disability Services and
Child Welfare.

= Transferred the supervision of over 4,000 children in Hillsborough
County from the department to the private community-based care
lead agency without incident.

EDUCATION

Master of Business Administration

University of Alabama, Beta Gamma Sigma Graduate
1979

Bachelor of Arts in Political Science

University of Delaware
1968

AWARDS/RECOGNITION

e  Served 25 years in the US Army retiring as Lieutenant Colonel;
alternated in a variety of Military Police and Comptroller
assignments

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

*  Co-chair of the Statewide Performance Committee

s Member of Florida’s Team to the National Governor’s Policy
Academy on Safely Reducing Out-of-Home Care.

*  Member of the Executive Oversight Committee preparing Florida’s
CFSR Performance Improvement Plan

s Member of the National Association of Social Workers, Academy
of Certified Social Workers, and the AECF Children and Family
Fellowship

i
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SUMMARY

Leader with more: than 20 years of data
management, data analysis, and quality
improvement experience. Extensive experience
in planning, developing and implementing quality
improvement processes, tools, and data reports
for multiple stakeholders.

9 6329 N 105" Avenue
Omaha, NE 68134

N\
\ 402.681.4081

lynn.castrianno@promiseship.org

- PromiseShip.

helping families be families
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EXPERIENCE

Vice President, CQl & Data Management
PromiseShip, Omaha, NE
2012 — Present

» Implement Quality Improvement processes throughout the
organization, including the development of company KPls,
quality workgroups, quality reviews, and process improvement
strategies.

»  Oversee PromiseShip’s internal database used for billing,
utilization management, and provider referrals. Responsible for
the development of reporting needs from this system.

» Responsible for the oversite of the COA accreditation.

+  Monitor the quality of program outcomes through data
management, data analysis, and data reconciliation between
multiple databases.

» Develop various data reports from several systems to meet the
reporting needs of administrators and supervisors.

Director, Quality Management
KVC, Omaha, NE
2010-2012

» Collaborated with internal and external CQl teams to enhance
programmatic outcomes and contract accountability.

»  Oversaw the Joint Commission accreditation including
developing policies and procedures.

» Developed weekly/monthly/quarterly data reports and
processes for executive and supervisory teams targeted to
meeting goals using national, state, and organizational
benchmarks.

Director, CQl & Data Management
Visinet, Omaha, NE
2009 - 2010

s Implemented a web-based data management system.

»  Oversaw the COA accreditation process, development of
programs, implementation of new programs and fidelity
measures, and the development of program performance
measures.

EDUCATION

PhD
University of Nebraska-Lincoln, Lincoln, NE
1999



REFERENCES

Jennifer Miller Haight
1313 East 60th St
Chicago, IL 60637
518.210.6880

Mary Beth Rautkis, Ph.D.
2332 Cathedral of Learning
Pittsburgh, PA 15260
412.648.1225

Jeanette Harder, Ph.D., CMSW
6001 Dodge Street

Omaha NE 68182

402.554,2893
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Master of Legal Studies
University of Nebraska-Lincoln, Lincoln, NE

1992

Master of Arts
University of Nebraska-Lincoln, Lincoln, NE

1991

Bachelor of Arts
State University of New York at Buffalo, Buffalo, NY

1986

AWARDS/RECOGNITION

2" Place Dissertation Award (Subtle Racism in Child Welfare
Decision Making) Awarded by American Psychology and Law
Society (2000}
Foster Family Based Treatment Association Research
Committee (2001 - present)

* Board of Directors (2002-2004; 2011)

s Research Committee Co-chair (2002-2004; 2011-2012)
Chapin Hall Advanced Analytics Workshop (2010)
Public Private Partnership Meeting, QIP (2011)
Second Annual Meyer Elkin Essay Award, Association of Family
and Conciliation Courts (1990)
National Institute of Mental Health Fellowship (1989-1991)
9 Book Chapters and Articles
33 Professional Presentations
14 Technical Reports

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Tradition of the Heart Recognition Award in appreciation of
9/11 display
9/11 Omaha Remembrance Coordinator (2004 — present)
Daughters of the Revolution 9/11 Award (2011)
Girl Scout Troop Leader (2007 - 2009)

* Recipient of the new troop leader award (2007)
Den Leader (2002-2005)

»  Recipient of the Webelo Leader Award (2005)
St. James/Seton Home & School President (2004 - 2006)
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EXPERIENCE

Vice President of Network and Service Innovation
PromiseShip, Omaha, NE
2017 — Present

»  Responsible for oversight of the PromiseShip’s network of
providers, Utilization Management Department, and Program
Support Workers.

s Collaborate with providers to develop and implement new
services to address gaps in the service array; to include
Integrated Family Care, Pathways, and Intensive In-Home
Services.

» Increase oversight, communication and collaboration between
case management and service providers to improve outcomes
for children and families.

» Implement placement stability calls to assist with identifying

SUMMARY supports and services to maintain youth in family level care.

» Implement data sharing among provider network participants
to increase network collaboration and opportunity for learning.

»  Establish initial outcome based contracting for select services.

Rabin has been employed in the social work field
with a focus in child welfare since 1988 when she
obtained her Bachelor Degree in Social Work. Her
experience is well-rounded having worked In both
the public and private sector with experience in Operations Support Director
case management, school social work, and PromiseShip, Omaha, NE
provider services, along with direct care as well as 2014 - 2017
administration. Robin has:been directlyinvolved
with and supportive of the Nebraska Child +  Oversight of Network Management and Utilization
Welfare reform, having participated in both Management to ensure quality service referral, development
writing and implementing Qropgsals for Safety and delivery for youth and families.
and in-Home Services, Service Coordinatiarand »  Managed Family Finding, Adoption and Kinship Services, with a
Case Management e . .
focus on establishing and enhancing youth connections and
placement with family members and completed home studies
2528 North 75" Street for potential placement options.
9 Omaha, NE 68134 * Managed Aftercare and Program Support departments to
expedite parent/child contact when youth could not be safely
maintained in the home, delivered services and supports to
Ny promote youth remaining within the family home and to
\\ 402.981.2561 provide for supports post case management closure to prevent
re-entry.

rbngrti@yahoo.com Program Director
KVC Behavioral Health Care, Lincoln, NE and Omaha, NE

2010- 2014

s Coordinated, developed and managed the Foster Care and
Intensive Family Preservation programs.

> ¢ Developed and implemented program policies, procedures and
practices relevant to case management and service delivery.

» Collaborated with internal and external CQl teams to enhance
programmatic outcomes and contract accountability.

® PromiseShip.
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REFERENCES

Michael R. Neise, PhD
808 South 174" Street
Omaha, NE 68118
402.680.8672

Gennifer Amato
7413 North 30" Street
Omaha, NE 68112
402.451.8404

Jodie Austin, LCSW
11550 | Street

Omaha, NE 68137
402.498.4706

=
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Director of Operations
Visinet, Inc., Omaha, NE, Lincoln, NE and Grand Island, NE
2001 -2010

»  Oversight of daily programmatic operations of all programs
within the identified continuum of care across three Nebraska
service areas (ESA, SESA, and CSA).

s Authored program proposals and assisted in the development
and implementation of new programs.

«  Assisted in monitoring program growth and stability,
developing program policies and procedures, and providing
direct supervision of Program Coordinators and Managers.

School Social Waorker
Alpha School, Omaha, NE
1995 -2001

+ Provided ongoing counseling services to at-risk students and
families.

» Assisted teachers and educators in understanding underlying
mental health issues that affect the child’s academic abilities.

s Completed CAFAS assessment scales on children.

¢ Conducted parent support groups and youth conflict resolution
groups.

Protection and Safety Worker
Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services, Omaha, NE
1991 - 1995

» Developed case plans to aid children and families in addressing
concerns related to child abuse and neglect.

»  Collaborated with professionals in the community to provide
quality services and supports to children and families.

»  Documented child and family progress in the form of court
reports and contact narratives.

s Assessed families and made recommendations regarding
permanency and/or reunification of youth and families.

EDUCATION

Masters of Social Work
University of Nebraska Omaha, Omaha, NE
1989

Bachelor of Social Work
University of Nebraska Omaha, Omaha, NE
1988

AWARDS / RECOGNITION

* 2011 Nomination for Kevin H. Orr Administrator of the Year
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

s  Foster and Adoptive Parent
*  Volunteer — Midland’s Humane Society

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATIONS

« Licensed Clinical Social Worker (LCSW)
e  Master Social Worker License #839
»  Mental Health Practitioner License #1665

[
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EXPERIENCE

Vice President Administrative Service
PromiseShip, Omaha, NE
2016 - Present

Provides leadership for core support functions that impact the entire
agency in accordance with industry standards, regulatory
agencies, and company objectives and policies.

» Leads Human Resources, Development, Administration, and
the Communication functions.

+  Provides oversight for Human Resources, employee relations,
acquisition, training and development, employment,
affirmative action, HR compliance, and employee activities.

Y o Oversees the corporate communications function, internal and

SUMMAR external communications, and public relations.

Viv has been a member of the PromiseShip » Directs and oversees the implementation of a strategic

Executive Team since 2016, She Is responsible for approach to fundraising which includes major gifts, corporate

leading the human resources, communications, donations, grant solicitation, and in-kind resources.

training, fund development, community relations, »  Works closely with the Board of Directors, President & CEO,

and administrative services. Viv has over 15 and funders to meet strategic objectives

years' experience in both corporate and not-for- »  Cultivates strategic relationships with community leaders,

profit organizations. She Joined PromiseShip government officials, and supporters to increase donations,

because the mission to help families aligns with support, and resources for PromiseShip and to increase
her personal values of serving the community. swareriess ard eommitment-to drild welfars.

9 13516 Burt Street

Omaha, NE 68154 CEC
Alzheimer’s Assaciation of Nebraska, Omaha, NE
2013 -2016
N
\\ 402.445.7925 Viv was recruited by the board chair of Alzheimer’s Association to

transform this organization into a sustainable revenue generating
organization. Viv provided executive leadership for core organization
functions in operations, finance administration, development, donor
management, government affairs, programs, community relations,
communications, and brand building.

Vewing2015@gmail.com

* Increased budget from $700,000 to $3,000,000.

» Led initiative to get legislation passed to create Alzheimer’s
State Plan.

» Expanded office into multiple territories.

»  Grew major donors by 35%.

* Increased brand recognition by 25%.

» Expanded service area by 75%

[ e Increased services for low income and minority families.

3 PromiseShip.
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REFERENCES

Kathleen Moore
10018 South 14" Street
Bellevue, NE 68123
402.933.2075

Dr. Mike Carroll
1314 South 63" Street
Omaha, NE 68106
402.960.8374

Jennifer Hayes Wilkins
427 Dennis Avenue
Browns Mills, NJ 0015
609.346.9697
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Government Affairs Director
Habitat for Humanity, Omaha, NE
2008 - 2013

Directed human resources department, business operations, and
volunteer management. Supervised a team of ten. Responsibilities
included: leading talent management, recruitment and retention, policy
development, and training for staff and volunteers. Casted a vision for
employee relations, benefits practices, and compensation. Led
government relations, corporate volunteer partnerships and corporate
donations. Directed volunteer management strategy, selection, and
retention.

* Increased volunteer base from 6,000 to 7,000.

»  Created partnerships with 100 businesses, community
organizations, faith based organizations, and educational
institutions.

= Developed and implemented a government refations program.

s Led successful efforts to create legislation for the creation of a
Land Bank.

s Built a 2,000 member advocate base for the organization which
advocated for housing issues that affect low income families.

EDUCATION

PhD, Human & Community Resources
University of Nebraska at Lincoln, Lincoln, NE
1980

Master of Sciences, Urban Studies
University of Nebraska at Omaha, Omaha, NE
1986

Bachelor of Sciences, Public Administration
University of Nebraska at Omaha, Omaha, NE
1983

AWARDS / RECOGNITION

» Leadership Legacy Award

» Lifetime Achievement Award

s Hubert Lock Community Service Award

s University of Nebraska at Omaha Community Service Award
¢ Top 25 Women in Nebraska Award

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

National Board:
«  MADD USA

Local Boards (Past & Present):
s University of Nebraska Medical Center Board of Councilors
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e  University of Nebraska at Omaha Alumni Board

*  Governor’s Judicial Selection Committee

e  University of Nebraska at Omaha College of Public Affairs
Advisory Council

»  College of Saint Mary Board of Directors

e  Salvation Army Advisory Board

e  Chair Salvation Army North Corps Board

»  Rotary International

»  Chair Rotary Membership Committee

»  American Red Cross Board of Directors

*  President NCNW Omaha Section

»  President Holy Name Home & School Association

e President of the Literacy Center Board

¢  President of the Hope Center Guild

*  President Human Resources Association of Midlands

e Vice Chair Immanuel Pathways Participant Advisory Committee

»  Chairperson Publicity Committee Aksarben Women’s Ball
Committee

* Opera Omaha Advisory Board

>
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SUMMARY

Stacy has been a member of the PromiseShip
Executive Team since 2009, She is responsible
for the company's financial reporting and
analysis, Title IV-E reporting, budget and
projections, accounts payable, accounts
receivable; and all other finance-related
activities in the organization. A strong focus
on timeliness, accuracy, and analysis of the
meaning of financial indicators. Ten years'
experience working under & case
management/service coordination contract
with DHHS, the latest a cost reimbursement
contract,

9 5308 South 191** Avenue
Omaha, NE, 68135

402.301.9631

stacy.giebler@promiseship.org

S
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EXPERIENCE

Chief Financial Officer
PromiseShip, Omaha, NE
2009 — Present

Responsible for all fiscal activities of the Agency, Stacy has been
instrumental in successfully navigating PromiseShip from a start-up
corporation to the successful and innovative organization it is today.
Through collaboration with the Department of Health and Human
Services, Stacy’s focus on transparency and financial analysis has
brought the greatest understanding of costs and cost drivers that has
ever been experienced in Nebraska’s child welfare system.

«  Financial reporting, budget and projections

=  Title IV-E reporting to DHHS; development and implementation
with DHHS of reporting methodology

= Review and analysis of expenses for allowability and contract
compliance

= Risk and process analysis; development and monitoring of system
of controls

= Development of payment and billing processes

=  Payment of service providers; billing of State for services provided

= Development of rate schedules for service array

= Participation in strategic planning

=  Participation in contract development and negotiation

=  Participation as member of leadership team to develop policies,
processes, and procedures

= Developed reporting system to track operational indicators

= Interview, hire, and train department employees

Audit - Senior Associate
KPMG LLP, Omaha, NE
2005 - 2009

e  Performed and supervised assurance services in conformity with
generally accepted auditing standards.

=  Specialized in government and not-for-profit organizations, OMB
Circular No. A-133 Single Audits.

=  Audited clients included grain trading companies, manufacturers,
not-for-profits, governments and benefit plans

EDUCATION

B.S.B.A., Business Administration, Specializing in

Accounting

University of Nebraska at Omaha, Omaha, NE
2005

B.S., Art Education
Dana College, Blair, NE
1985
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

¢ Member AICPA
PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATION

e Licensed CPA, Nebraska, License #0007667

REFERENCES

Jeff Fusselman
14100 Crawford Street
Boys Town, NE 68010
531.355.3135

Judy Rasmussen
14100 Crawford Street
Boys Town, NE 68010
531.355.3131

Michele Stromp

1212 North 96" Street, Suite #300
Omaha, NE 68114

402.661.5213

2
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EXPERIENCE

General Counsel

PromiseShip, Omaha, NE
2011 - Present

s Responsible for advising internal clients on a wide variety of
legal matters, including child welfare and juvenile justice
matters, contracts, labor and employment law, corporate
governance, compliance, ethics, and risk exposure, and
intellectual property while interpreting federal, state, and local
laws and regulations.

* Responsible for legal management and support to PromiseShip,
including compliance, risk management, development of
compliance risk mitigation, legal risks negotiations and
strategies.

SUMMARY »  Conduct research and analysis of relevant sources of law,

Attorney admitted to practice in Nebraska and including case law and statutes to determine an appropriate

Georgia with over 30 years of experience in cours.e of legal actlon‘to ta|.<§ or defe.nd. )
private practice, and as in-house counsel in the »  Contribute to strategic decision-making and business

government, corporate, and non-profit sectors. development as an active member of the PromiseShip
Adaptable, thorough, and effective in advising Executive Team.

and counseling a wide variety of clients in diverse

legal settings. Successfully navigates complex and Vice President

. changing areas of the law while delivering Fidelity National Title Insurance Company, Omaha, Nebraska
excellent value and superior client results. 2009 - 2011

20206 C Street *  AsQuality Assurance Counsel was responsible for reviewing
9 Omaha, NE 68130 and approving requests by claims attorneys to retain outside
counsel in title insurance claims in active litigation, and
approving coverage determinations, and reviewing and
N\ approving payments and settlements of owner’s and lender’s
\ 402.504.3937 title insurance claims within a specified authority level.
» Negotiated settlements of title insurance claims with insureds
and third parties, including matters in active litigation.
¢ Supervised and directing retained outside counsel in title
insurance claims involved in active litigation.

VE‘ monikaelisabethjd@gmail.com

Protection and Safety Attorney (Attorney i)
Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services, Omaha, NE
2001 - 2009

*  Represented DHHS in contested juvenile matters in county
courts in a 27-county area in central Nebraska, including
termination of parental rights, guardianships, placement of
children, and objections to DHHS case plans.

[ «  Represented DHHS in appeals of juvenile court matters to the

Juvenile Review Panel, Nebraska Court of Appeals, and the

Nebraska Supreme Court.

* PromiseShip.
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«  Represented the Office of Protection and Safety in
administrative appeals related to the Child Abuse and Neglect
Central Register.

= Advised child and family service specialists, supervisors, and
administrators on state and federal statutes, case law, and
administrative regulations related to child welfare, juvenile
justice, adoptions, guardianships, paternity, child custody, child
support, Indian Child Welfare Act, Interstate Compact on the
Placement of Children, and the Interstate Compact on
Juveniles.

e Assisted the Nebraska Attorney General’s Office with civil
litigation inveolving DHHS employees and programs.

EDUCATION

Juris Doctor
University of San Diego School of Law, San Diego, CA

1988
REFERENCES
Janine E. Ucchino Bachelor of Arts
2712 5 87" Avenue University of Nebraska-Lincoln, Lincoln, NE
Omaha, NE 68124 Superior Scholar Award
402.934.8406 1985
Vicfop Felazuma | AWARDS/RECOGNITION
1403 Farnam Street, Suite #232
Omaha, NE 68102 s  Special Assistant Attorney General for the State of Nebraska
402.884.7044 (2001 - 2009)
) = Special Assistant Attorney General for real estate matters for
Robbie McEwen the State of Georgia (1992 — 1998)
941 O Street, Suite #920
tincoln, NE 68508 COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

402.438.8853

= Member, Nebraska State Bar Association

» Member, State Bar of Georgia

s« Member, National Association of Counsel for Children

*  Member, Association of Corporate Counsel

» Member, Legal Parties Taskforce of the Nebraska Children’s
Commission (2016 - 2018)

+  Member, Grievance Subcommittee of the Normalcy Task Force
of the Nebraska Children’s Commission (2015 - 2016)

» Board of Directors, Christian Outreach Program — Elkhorn (2015
-2017)

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATIONS

¢ Admitted to practice in Nebraska (#21399)
*  Admitted to practice in Georgia (#017760)

=
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SUMMARY

Melissa has worked in Nebraska’s child welfare
sector for over 10 years and has been with
PromiseShip since 2009 - since the beginning of
Nebraska’s child welfare reform. Through her
time at PromiseShip, she has held various
leadership positions including her current
position as Vice President of Programs. Melissa is
responsible for the oversight of direct family
permanency teams and service provision. Melissa
is also responsible for ensuring PromiseShip’s
compliance with contractual requirements
regarding state and federal child welfare
measures.

9 15104 Nebraska Avenue
Omaha, NE 68116

N\
\ 402.730.9144

’@{ melissa.nance@promiseship.org
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EXPERIENCE

Vice President of Programs/Senior Family Permanency
Director/Family Permanency Director/Family Permanency

Supervisor
PromiseShip, Omaha, NE
2009 — Present

e Promoted to Senior Family Permanency Director in September
2017 and Vice President of Programs in August 2018.

»  Ensure collaboration and compliance in line with Department
of Health and Human Service child welfare contract to include
employees of the Department as well as other key stakeholders
in Douglas and Sarpy counties.

s  Ensure desirable outcomes for children and families being
served.

¢ Promoted to Family Permanency Director to oversee Family
Permanency Supervisors to ensure consistency in service
delivery.

¢ Managed Service Coordinators and Family Permanency
Specialists for three years.

ICCU Care Coordinator
Region 6 Behavioral Healthcare, Omaha, NE
2007 - 2009

¢  Provided case management to families involved with child
protective services.

*  Prepared court reports, testified in court and collaborated with
the families’ teams to ensure best outcomes for children and
families using family-centered practices.

Intern
Adult Adolescent and Child Therapy, Omaha, NE
2008 - 2009

»  Observed and counseled youth and adults utilizing a variety of
therapy methods.

Community Treatment Aide
Visinet, Inc., Omaha, NE
2007 - 2008

e Assisted individuals to attain goals identified by his/her
therapist.

» Maintained client in the least restrictive environment.

e  Facilitated team interactions between household members,
alternative placement staff and/or educational professionals.



REFERENCES

Honorable Judge Robert O’Neal
1210 Golden Gate Drive, Suite #2165
Papillion, NE 68046

402.593.5918

Honorable Judge Douglas Johnson
1701 Farnam Street, Suite #600

Omaha, NE 68186

402.444.7881

Nicole Brundo
100 Hall of Justice
1701 Farnam Street
Omaha, NE 68186
402.960.0539

[
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Classroom Coordinator/Research Assistant
Behave’'n Day Center, Inc., Omaha, NE
2005 - 2007
e Developed and implemented behavior plans for children with
behavioral disorders.
* Implemented developmentally appropriate childcare
curriculum.
e Collaborated with colleagues to discuss appropriate treatment
for children.
e Completed data compilation, classification and evaluations.

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Arts, Psychology & Sociology
Creighton University, Omaha, NE
2006

Master of Science, Human Services
Bellevue University, Bellevue, NE
2008

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

* Recognized at Region 6 as Employee of the Month {2009)

»  MCAC Board, Vice-Chair, Chair, Past-Chair and At Large
Member (2012 - 2016}

»  Flatland Church, Life Coach, Young Adult Overseer, Sunday
School teacher for 4-5 year old children (2007 — Present)

e Keystone Little League, Coached 6-8 year old girls softball
(2016)



SUMMARY

Nikki Barber has been a Family Permanency
Director at PromiseShip since October 2017.
Nikki’s professional duties include, overseeing
seven Family Permanency teams and one Team
Support Specialist. Nikki’s Family Permanency
teams specialize in non-court case management
and providing services to families to address both
risk and safety while preserving the family unit
and preventing the need for out-of-home care.
Prior to serving as a director, Nikki worked as a
Family Permanency Specialist, Family Finding
Specialist, and Family Permanency Supervisor.

9 15011 S 20" Street
Bellevue, NE 68123

N\
\\ 402.880.0262

ﬂ nikkilbarber@gmail.com
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EXPERIENCE

Family Permanency Director/ Family Permanency
Supervisor/Family Finding Specialist/Family Permanency
Specialist

PromiseShip, Omaha, NE

2012 - Present

»  Promoted to Family Permanency Director in October 2017 to
oversee seven Family Permanency Supervisors and their
respective teams to build/maintain positive relationships with
key stakeholders, legal parties, and the Department of Health
and Human Services.

¢  Ensure consistency in service delivery, compliance with
contractual requirements and federal guidelines, and achieve
positive outcomes for all children and families served.

¢ Served as a Family Permanency Supervisor for three years and
oversaw a team of Family Permanency Specialists.

»  Served as a Family Finding Specialist for one year.

»  Served as Family Permanency Specialist for one and half years.

Lead Enhanced Domestic Violence Advocate
Heartland Family Services, Papillion, NE
2013 — Present

»  Provide on call services to victims of domestic violence in Sarpy
County.

*  Visit the home of the victim immediately after the incident to
establish a safety plan.

¢  Provide resources and education on the legal process,
protection orders, no contact orders, and therapeutic services
available.

Program Support Worker
KVC Behavioral Healthcare, Omaha, NE
2011 -2012

*  Provided supportive services to families involved in the child
welfare system such as visitation, family support, and
substance abuse testing.

Juvenile Services Officer
Sarpy County Sheriff’s Department, Omaha, NE
20102011

e  Provided direct supervision to juveniles who were housed at
the Sarpy County Juvenile Justice Center.
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»  Provided direct 24-hour supervision of juveniles, managed
medications, completed intakes and bookings, and operated
master control.

Intern
Sarpy County Sheriff’s Office, Omaha, NE
2009 - 2010

® Coordinated the start of Project Lifesaver which allowed
children with autism, as well as people suffering from memory
disorders such as Dementia, to be outfitted with a tracking
bracelet that would allow the police to locate the individual
should they become lost.

® Collected floor plans, information’s, photographs and created a

database to house this information for every Sarpy County
School in the event of an emergency/active shooter.

EDUCATION
REFERENCES Master’s in Public Administration
Kaitlyn Reece gglie:ue University, Bellevue, NE
1320 Lincoln Mall, Suite #9
Lincoln, NE 68508
402.669.1277 Bachelors of Science, Criminology
University of Nebraska Omaha, Omaha, NE
Holly Page Minor: Psychology; Concentration: Sociology
14413 South 23" Street 2010

Bellevue, NE 68123
402.651.1713

Stephanie Clark
110 N 175" Street
Omaha NE, 68118
402.707.9050

® PromiseShip
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SUMMARY

Megan Miller isa Family Permanency Director at
PromiseShip. Her professional duties include case
management oversight of seven family
permanency teams. Megan has warked in the
juvenile court system far over 15 years, serving in
both child welfare and juvenile justice. Megan
graduated from the University of Nebraska-
Lincoln with a Bachelor’s Degree in Human
Resources and Family Science. In 2012, Megan
earned her Master’s Degree in Human Services,
Megan's passion for continuous community
improvement is the foundation of her leadership
abilities.

9 15131 Birch Street
Omaha, NE 68116

402.660.6157

megan_mcgargill@hotmail.com

fie-
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EXPERIENCE

Family Permanency Director
PromiseShip, Omaha, NE
2014 — Present
+ Manage a team of seven supervisors and one support staff who
work in the child welfare field.
»  Ensure excellent service delivery to the children and families
served by Nebraska Families Collaborative.
»  Partner and collaborate with Nebraska Department of Health
and Human Services and other area stakeholders to implement
best practice in the field of Child Welfare.

Operations Special Project Supervisor
PromiseShip, Omaha, NE
2013 -2014

» Supervised a team of Project Specialists supporting special
projects as assigned by executive leadership.

» Coordinated and implemented the Safe and Connected staffing
model at PromiseShip.

* Developed the School Liaison position at PromiseShip.

Family Permanency Supervisor
PromiseShip, Omaha, NE
2011-2013

» Managed a team of seven Family Permanency Specialists
providing case management for families in the child welfare
and juvenile justice systems.

¢ Coached and guided staff to ensure critical thinking and sound
decision-making was used while monitoring the safety and
wellbeing of the children and families served.

» Mediated issues and concerns brought by families, foster
parents and other stakeholders in order to come to decisions in
the best interest of the children and families served.

Service Coordinator

PromiseShip, Omaha, NE
2009 -2011

s  Partnered with Nebraska Department of Health and Human
Services to provide case management and service delivery to
families involved in the child welfare system.

» Conducted regular meetings and assessments to ensure safety
and wellbeing of the children on my caseload.

¢ Assisted families in case plan completion and supported
families in meeting desired permanency objectives.
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EDUCATION

Master of Arts, Human Services
Bellevue University, Bellevue, NE
2013

Bachelor of Arts, Human Resources and Family Science

University of Nebraska-Lincoln, Lincoln, NE
2002

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

¢ Member of Douglas County Youth Impact Team (2014 —
Present)

¢ Member of 1184 Sexual Abuse Treatment Team (2017 —
Present)

s Co-Chair and Member of Prevention Workgroup for Operation
Youth Success (2015 — 2018)

REFERENCES ¢ Member of Delinquency 1184 Treatment Team (2013 — 2015)

Mary Visek * Member of Douglas County Court Collaboration (2014 — 2015)

319 South 17 Street »  Member of various committees for the Juvenile Detention

Omaha, NE 68102 Alternatives Initiative (2013 — 2015)

402.444.7115

Nick Juliano

13603 Flanagan Boulevard
Boys Town, NE 68010
402.498.1907

Margaret Vacek

13603 Flanagan Boulevard
Boys Town, NE 68010
402.498.1110

k>
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SUMMARY

Tami has been a Family Permanancy Director at
PromiseShip since 2016. In this role, she Is
responsible for overseeing the dally operations
and compliance with contractual obligations for
seven teams of Family Permanency Specialists
working with court-involved families. Tami has 22
years of professional experience in child welfare,
including: direct care in group homes, foster care
worker, case manager, child abuse hotline
worker, as well as supervisor and director level
positions.

9 18930 Atlas Street
Omaha, NE 68130

N\
\\ 402.452.4281

tami.nebesniak@promiseship.org

b=
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EXPERIENCE

Family Permanency Director {2016 - current)
Family Permanency Supervisor (2011 - 2016)
Intake Coardinator (2011)

Family Service Coordinator (2010 - 2011)

PromiseShip, Omaha, NE
2010 — Present

» Development, coordination and oversight of a seven Family
Permanency Supervisory teams.

*  Mentoring, training, development and ongoing supervision of
seven Family Permanency Supervisors.

»  Oversight and management of case management and service
delivery to families being served.

«  Demonstration of high levels of leadership and continuous
strong performance on meeting agency outcomes.

s Oversight, collection and management of data related to
program outcomes.

e  Promoted to supervisory role after 1+ year in the agency.

»  Promoted to director after six years in the agency.

Families F.I.R.S.T. Manager {2009 - 2010)
Safety Services Coordinator (2009)

Team Leader (2009)
Visinet Inc.,, Omaha, NE
2009 - 2010

» Developed, coordinated and oversaw the service delivery of in-
home support services.

»  Performed supervision of in-home services and case
management staff.

» Assisted in the development and implementation of the case
management contract.

e Oversaw the collection and management of data-related to
program outcomes.

# Promoted within the agency based on demonstration and
ability to perform at a high ability.

Children and Family Services Supervisor (2007 - 2009)

Protection and Safety Worker (2000 - 2007)
State of Nebraska, Omaha, NE
2000 — 2009

» Two years management/supervisory duties; three years Child
Abuse Hotline duties; and four years of case management
duties.

= Developed, coordinated and oversaw Children and Family
Services Specialists and Region 6 staff in the Integrated Care
Coordination Unit {ICCU).



REFERENCES

L.ona Smart

213 Kestrel Court
Council Bluffs, 1A 51501
712.326.9206

Treva Haugaard
1611 Rock Bluff Road
Plattsmouth, NE 68048
402.881.6319

Judge Chad Brown
601 HOJ

17*" and Farnam Street
Omaha, NE 68102
402.213.5593

b
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*  Mentored, trained, developed and ongoing supervision of 5-8
case managers.

»  Oversaw the management of case management and service
delivery to families being served.

»  Additional responsibilities and oversight required due to being
a State of Nebraska Supervisor in the ICCU at Region 6.

* Promoted to management position after six years.

Foster Care Specialist
OMNI Behavioral Health, Omaha, NE
2003 - 2004

»  Provided case management, coordination of services and
oversight of assigned children in OMNI foster homes.

»  Provided ongoing support and addressed the needs of the
foster parents.

Senior Group Home Counselor
First Home Care, Omaha, NE
1998 — 2003

»  Developed, coordinated and oversaw a group home for 8-10 at
risk youth.

» Ongoing development and implementation of daily programing
for the youth.

* Mentored, trained, developed and ongoing supervision of all
group home staff.

Assistant Youth Specialist
Cedars Youth Services, Lincoln, NE
1997 — 1998

»  Direct care staff at Boys Group Home.

Residential Youth Worker
The Front Door, Columbia, MO
1997
» Direct care staff at Boys Group Home.

EDUCATION

Masters of Science, Counseling Psychology
Capella University, Minneapolis, MN
2008

Bachelor of Arts, Psychology
Stephens College, Columbia, MO
1997



SUMMARY

Aly Ott has been employed asa Family
Permanency Director at PromiseShip since
September 1, 2018. Aly oversees three
permanency teams in Douglas Countyin Judge
Johnson’s courtroom, three permanancy
teams that provide case management for all
families in Sarpy County, and the complex
case team that serves children and/or families
that require increased advocacy. Aly's
personal daily mission Is to build strong,
collaborative teams around each family that
PromiseShip serves to improve cutcomes for
families In both Sarpy and Douglas counties.

9 2110 Papillion Parkway
Omaha, NE 68164

N\
\\ 402.619.7904

@ alyssa.ott@promiseship.org

B8
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EXPERIENCE

Family Permanency Director
PromiseShip, Omaha, NE
2018 - Present

» Mentors and coaches staff to improve organizational and
individual performance; monitors the performance of
subordinates on a continuous basis and reviews performance
with individuals; maintains structured management system to
clearly communicate goals and expectations.

» Maintains communication with state, regional, and local
government agencies, private agencies, and business and
community groups.

»  Establishes and maintains relationships with collaborative
agencies and organizations.

¢ Oversees the development and proper dissemination of
communication and documentation of progress for families,
agencies, courts, and other authorized parties.

#  Oversees data collection and analyzes data from a variety of
sources to ensure that appropriate outcomes and goals for
programs are being met.

»  Maintains appropriate level of direct contact with families per
program requirements, and remains available to families for
crisis intervention as needed.

* Meets with families and children at various locations; utilizes
own vehicle to travel to work destinations and to transport
youth as authorized.

Family Permanency Specialist Supervisor
PromiseShip, Omaha, NE
2015-2018

¢ Oversaw operations and activities of service coordination
teams.

* Ensured effective case management services were provided to
clients in a timely manner.

= Effectively allocated team resources to meet the unique needs
of children and families.

¢ Monitored and ensured case records and documentation were
completed appropriately and on time.

* Developed and maintained collaborative relationships with
NDHHS staff, judicial branch, county attorneys, GALs, CASA, law
enforcement and other case-specific stakeholders.

»  Monitored programs to ensure that Family Permanency
Specialists were meeting individual child and family needs as
required in the case plan.

« Participated in clinical reviews, staff meetings, and case
reviews.

* Monitored data entered into N-FOCUS and organization
databases to ensure accuracy.
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» Utilized data to identify areas that need improvement of direct
team or the organization.

* Accompanied Family Permanency Specialists in the field, as
needed, and provided ongoing training.

«  Ensured organization and staff adherence to applicable federal
guidelines, Nebraska statutes, NDHHS policies and procedures,
and the HHSS Service Delivery and Service Coordination
Contract.

» Cooperated and collaborated with organization staff and
subcontractors.

»  Mentored and coached staff to improve organizational and
individual performance.

» Monitored the performance of Family Permanency Specialists
on a continuous basis and reviewed performance.

Family Permanency Specialist
PromiseShip, Omaha, NE
2012 - 2015

REFERENCES

Honorable Christopher E. Kelly
1701 Farnam Street, Suite #600
Omaha, NE 68183

402.444.6624

Honorable Matthew R, Kahler
1701 Farnam Street, Suite #600
Omaha, NE 68183

402.444,3615

Amy N. Schuchman
1701 Farnam Street

Hall Of Justice, Suite #100
Omaha, NE 68183
402.444.7040

Acted as case manager for families who have an active case
with DHHS child welfare services due to child abuse and
neglect.

Created case plans for families based on the strengths and
needs identified in order to achieve the permanency objective
for the children involved.

Met with parents, children, and providers separately monthly
and documented home visits within 24 business hours.
Completed SDM assessments every three months to assess risk,
safety, and the possibility of reunification with caretakers
based on progress made.

Communicated progress within the case to all parties involved,
including but not limited to, therapists, probation officers,
lawyers, GALs, visitation workers, family support workers, and
peer mentors.

Facilitated monthly family team meetings to bring all members
of the case together to address needs, concerns, and strengths,
then identified the next action steps.

Completed referrals for all services a family needs in order to
achieve safety and permanency.

Completed court reports on each individual case to update the
judge and all legal parties on the overall well-being of the
child(ren), progress on court orders, and recommendations for
the family.

Therapist in Training
Jackson Recovery Adolescent Center, Sioux City, IA

2010-2012
b *  Co-facilitated group therapy with primary therapists for
patients.

»  Conducted individual therapy sessions with patients.
. P . # Conducted educational group for patients that taught life skills,
rO m ISe S h | p defenses, coping skills, the 12 steps, cycle of addiction,

helping families be families
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boundaries and co-dependency, grief and loss, and trauma.

» Created and reviewed treatment plans weekly with patients.

»  Documented monthly progress reports, including family
treatment court reports.

»  Communicated with referral sources, including Department of
Human Services, probation officers, parole officers, attorneys,
and family members.

»  Set up services for continuing care once patients discharged
from inpatient treatment.

* Participated in medication management with each patient to
provide collateral to the treating psychiatrist about patient
behaviors and progress.

» Led trainings for new employees on the company’s computer
system (TIER).

Addiction Counselor

Jackson Recovery Adolescent Center, Sioux City, IA
2009 - 2010

» Documented bi-weekly patient progress notes.

+  Supervised addiction technicians in the female units.

¢ Assisted in the therapeutic regimen of patients by abiding by
the schedule.

*  Provided legal documents of incidents within the residential
unit, such as injuries, physical altercations, physical restraints,
or property damage.

Residential Counselor

The Boys and Girls Home and Family Services, South Sioux City, I1A
2009 - 2009

»  Assisted in the therapeutic regimen of clients by teaching
appropriate ways to express emotions, such as anger or
sadness, and how to differentiate the two emotions.

s  Provided legal documents of incidents within the residential
unit, such as injuries, physical altercations, physical restraints,
property damage, or the use of a seclusion room.

*  Monitored and recorded health and behaviors of clients.

EDUCATION

B.A. in Psychology
The University of lowa, lowa City, 1A
2009

Master of Social Work (In Progress)
University of Nebraska Omaha, Omaha, NE
Estimated graduation: December 2019



SUMMARY

Worked in the Human Services field since 2006
providing various levels to include direct case
management to adults and children ina number
of government programs. Experience includes
Welfare to Work, Employment First, domestic
violence expert, initial assessment, juvenile
justice, and permanency-focused work.

9 2931 South 159" Avenue Circle
Omaha, NE 68130

N\
\\ 402.345.6062

pad nicolelseymour@yahoo.com

S
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EXPERIENCE

Family Engagement Director
PromiseShip, Omaha, NE
2017 - Present

»  Provide leadership and guidance to assigned managers
overseeing the following teams: Adoption and Family Finding,
Altercare and Independent Living, Kinship Assessment and
Stabilization, Licensing, Education and ICWA, Program Support,
Case Coordination, Triage and Facilitation.

»  Ensure consistent program delivery and that desirable
outcomes are met for children and families being served in the
Eastern Service Area.

» Responsible for the development and implementation of
program changes in Kinship, Prevention, Family Finding and
Adoption in order to enhance agency-wide work in meeting
state-wide focused work and Children and Family Services
Review measures.

*  Ensure collaboration and compliance in line with the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) child
welfare contract to include employees of DHHS as well as other
key stakeholders in the Eastern Service Area.

»  Member of the 1184 investigative multidisciplinary team
representing PromiseShip.

s Co-chair of the Operation Youth Success Runaway Taskforce.

»  PromiseShip representative and voting member of the state-
wide Strengthen Families Committee.

Coordinate Response Program Manager
PromiseShip, Omaha, NE
2016 -2017

+ Provided operation management and supervision for Intake,
Project Support, On-call team, and Coordinated Response
Initiative.

* Responsible for partnering in the implementation of the
Coordinated Response Initiative and related strategic actions.

s Identified barriers to permanency and implemented strategies
and action through the use of formalized Red Team Staffings.

¢ Oversaw and directed operation staff to meet all
programmatic, contract and initiative-related objectives and
goals. Continually assessed program goals and provided
proactive modifications to tasks to ensure initiative success.

+ Demonstrated program management through the
development and implementation of the Intake and Project
Support Units, which included specific tools and data collection.

#  Member of the Youth Impact {Cross Over Youth Practice
Model) multidisciplinary team representing PromiseShip.
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»  Member of the 1184 0-5 Impact from Infancy multidisciplinary
team representing PromiseShip.

Family Permanency Specialist Supervisor
PromiseShip, Omaha, NE
2011-2016

» Assessed and ensured child and youth safety, permanency, and
well-being. Worked to provide safe and timely permanency for
all children.

»  Supervised Family Permanency Specialist (FPS) staff to ensure
staff met contract requirements to include monthly face-to-
face visits for youth, parents, and providers and conduct
monthly family team meetings. Reviewed documentation from
meetings to verify documentation was of quality and inputted
within 24 hours.

» Reviewed and approved FPS court reports, case plans, safety
plans, assessments, affidavits, and referrals for services.

REFERENCES »  Conducted weekly supervision meetings with FPS staff to

. consult on job duties, job performance (if necessary), and

?1?2:3; };;:?Street, Suite #4 discussed progress of assigned families.

Omaha, NE 68102 *  Worked with PromiseShip Utilization Management, in-network,

402.917.5225 out-of-network, and community providers to ensure children

and families were provided appropriate and timely services to

enact positive life change.

Lana Verbigghe : ) ‘ .

4545 Dodge Street *  Primary Family Permanency Supervisor for all Family

Omaha, NE 68132 Engagement Specialist FPS staff which handled all new court

402.504.3630 involved families prior to court assignment. This included crisis
stabilization and effective collaboration with providers and HHS

Treva Haugaard Initial Assessment Children and Family Services staff.

3215 Cuming Street » Assisted in developing and implementing a training class on

Omaha, NE 68131 court report/case plan for new and existing FPS staff.

402.557.2593 »  Conducted new employee training as assigned by PromiseShip

Training Department.

»  Member of the Youth Impact (Cross Over Youth Practice
Model) multidisciplinary team representing PromiseShip

»  Member of the 1184 0-5 Impact from Infancy multidisciplinary
Team representing PromiseShip

Children and Families Services Specialist - Initial
Assessment

Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services, Omaha, NE
2011

¢ Investigated allegations of abuse and neglect, visited homes,
conducted family safety assessment, established safety plans,
and initiated court interventions.

¢ Authorized, coordinated, and provided family services.

b ¢ Communicated and collaborated with community resources,

schools, law enforcement, and mental health providers to

ensure permanency and safety for families.

. e »  Prepared cases with appropriate legal staff and testify in court.
PromiseShip.

helping families be families
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Juvenile Services Officer

Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services, Omaha, NE
2008 - 2011

Provided intensive case management to youth in the juvenile
justice system which is committed to the Office of Juvenile
Services.

» Developed, implemented, and evaluated treatment plans of
juveniles.

» Supervised, authorized, and coordinated, family services
utilizing formal and informal resources including in and out of
home placement.

¢ Collaborated with community resources, schools, law
enforcement, and mental health providers to ensure
permanency and safety for the youth and community.

»  Prepared documentation, correspondence, and court reports
for the Douglas County Juvenile court system.

e Provided assistance to the Omaha Police Department within

the community under the Project Safe Neighborhood grant.

EDUCATION

Masters of Public Administration

Bellevue University, Bellevue, NE
2009

Bachelors in Liberal Arts and Professional Applications

Bellevue University, Bellevue, NE
2004
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EXPERIENCE

Ethics, Compliance & Risk Officer
PromiseShip, Omaha, NE
2018 — Present

+ Secured the Nonprofit Association of the Midlands (NAM) Best
Practice Certification to increase the organization funding
opportunities.

» Implemented Corporate Compliance and Ethics week to shine a
spotlight on the importance of ethical behavior and adhering to
compliance standards.

» Created a compliance work plan report for the Board of
Directors to ensure the organization remains compliant with
regulatory requirements.

Corporate Compliance Officer
SUMMARY Charles Drew Health Center, Inc., Omaha, NE

2010-2018
Anita Patterson joined PromiseShip in 2018 as the

Ethics, Compliance & Risk Officer overseeing the
Compliance Program to ensure the organization
complies with legal and regulatory requirements,

e Managed the credentialing and re-privileging processes. In
addition, revised policies and procedures and created a

sthical stanidards, and tha code of conduct. She credentialing and re-privileging work process flowchart.

also reviews and evaluates compliance » Developed and executed a full-scale healthcare preparedness

issues/concerns within the organization. Prior, drill to test the organization’s response to being a phase Il

Anita worked in the healthcare industry as a clinic. Facilitated the After Action Report by recording major

Corporate Compliance Officar where she enforced observations and lessons learned from the drill.

compliance standards and detected offenses and s  Led the Total Quality Management sub-committee of the Board

recommended corrective action plans. In addition, of Directors.

Anita served as the Joint Commission »  Restructured the Safety and Infection Control committee to

Administrator, Risk Manager, Performance form an interdisciplinary task force to minimize patient and
Improvement Manager, and Health Information employee risk.

Manager, all while managing the Federal Tort

» Implemented MedTrainer, a learning management platform,
Claims process and resolving patient grievances.

which provides easy access to company internal policy and

procedures, human resources documents, staff trainings, and

4530 Maas Road, Suite 200 compliance and safety requirements. Conducted trainings in a

9 Bellevue, NE 68133 setting that met different learning needs.

»  Revised the Performance Improvement Manual and introduced
new quality methodologies including: Issue Rule Application

N Conclusion {IRAC) method, a methodology for legal analysis;

\\ 402.445.7985 Five Whys, a guided team exercise for identifying the root
cause of a problem; and FOCUS Group, a small group studying
a problem/product to determine the response from a larger
population. Introduced the process of separating into work
groups during monthly performance improvement meetings to
apply different quality methodologies addressing clinical
measures.

»  Conduct compliance audits to ensure quality measures were

b met for patients.

» Spearheaded the electronic health records transition team in
medical records to educate and facilitate the implementations
of NextGen electronic medical records system.

anita.patterson@promiseship.org

» PromiseShip.

helping families be families




REFERENCES

Angeline Larson
2215 Grant Street
Omaha, NE 68118
402,451.3553

Judith M. Hill

4344 North 34th Avenue
Omaha, NE
402.933.7850

Gina Ponce

1000 Galvin Road South
Bellevue, NE 68005
402.557.7252

b

* PromiseShip.
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EDUCATION

Master of Science, Organizational Performance

Bellevue University, Bellevue, NE
2016

Bachelor of Science, Business Administration

Bellevue University, Bellevue, NE
2007

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

*  Girls Inc. 2018 — Mentor

» “I AM” Urban League Conference 2017 - Presenter: What's
Your Vision?

»  Great Plains Leadership 2016 - Presenter: How to Impact Public
Health through Health Impact Assessment

»  Whitney Young Ambassadors Urban League 2015 - Presenter:
Leadership For Life

BOARD POSITIONS

*  Women On A Mission For Change 2017 - Present
»  Midwest Clinicians’ Network, Inc. 2014 - 2018

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATIONS

Great Plains Leadership Institute “Year 11”
University of Nebraska Medical Center, Omaha, NE
2016






RFP 5995 Z1
Section Il. Terms and Conditions

. TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Bidders should complete Sections Il through VI as part of their proposal. Bidder is expected to read the Terms
and Conditions and should initial either accept, reject, or reject and provide alternative language for each clause. The
bidder should also provide an explanation of why the bidder rejected the clause or rejected the clause and provided
alternate language. By signing the RFP, bidder is agreeing to be legally bound by all the accepted terms and
conditions, and any proposed alternative terms and conditions submitted with the proposal. The State reserves the
right to negotiate rejected or proposed alternative language. If the State and bidder fail to agree on the final Terms
and Conditions, the State reserves the right to reject the proposal. The State of Nebraska is soliciting proposals in
response to this RFP. The State of Nebraska reserves the right to reject proposals that attempt to substitute the
bidder's commercial contracts and/or documents for this RFP.

The bidders should submit with their proposal any license, user agreement, service level agreement, or similar
documents that the bidder wants incorporated in the subaward. The State will not consider incorporation of any
document not submitted with the bidder's proposal as the document will not have been included in the evaluation
process. These documents shall be subject to negotiation and will be incorporated as addendums if agreed to by the
Parties.

If a conflict or ambiguity arises after the Addendum to Contract Award have been negotiated and agreed to, the
Addendum to Contract Award shall be interpreted as follows:

1. If only one Party has a particular clause then that clause shall control;
2. If both Parties have a similar clause, but the clauses do not conflict, the clauses shall be read
together;
3. If both Parties have a similar clause, but the clauses conflict, the State's clause shall control.
A. GENERAL

Accept | Reject | Reject & Provide | NOTES/ICOMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within
RFP Response
(Initial)

!

2

The subaward resulting from this RFP shall incorporate the following documents:

Request for Proposal and Addenda;

Amendments to the RFP;

Questions and Answers;

Subrecipient’s proposal (RFP and properly submitted documents);

The executed Contract and Addendum One to Contract, if applicable; and,
Amendments/Addendums to the Contract.

O B (0 Y

These documents constitute the entirety of the subaward.

Unless otherwise specifically stated in a future contract amendment, in case of any conflict between the
incorporated documents, the documents shall govern in the following order of preference with number one
(1) receiving preference over all other documents and with each lower numbered document having
preference over any higher numbered document: 1) Amendment to the executed Contract with the most
recent dated amendment having the highest priority, 2) executed Contract and any attached Addenda, 3)
Amendments to RFP and any Questions and Answers, 4) the original RFP document and any Addenda, and
5) the Subrecipient's submitted Proposal.

Any ambiguity or conflict in the contract discovered after its execution, not otherwise addressed herein, shall
be resolved in accordance with the rules of contract interpretation as established in the State of Nebraska.
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B. NOTIFICATION

Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within
RFP Response
(Initial)

PromiseShip’s subaward manager will be identified at the time of contract
/@ 47/(/ negotiations prior to subaward execution.

Subrecipient and State shall identify the subaward manager who shall serve as the point of contact for the
executed subaward.

Communications regarding the executed subaward shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been
given if delivered personally or mailed, by U.S. Mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to the parties
at their respective addresses set forth below, or at such other addresses as may be specified in writing by
either of the parties. All notices, requests, or communications shall be deemed effective upon personal
delivery or three (3) calendar days following deposit in the mail.

C. NOTICE (POC)

The State reserves the right to appoint a Buyer's Representative to manage [or assist the Buyer in managing
the subaward on behalf of the State. The Buyer's Representative will be appointed in writing, and the
appointment document will specify the extent of the Buyer's Representative authority and responsibilities. If
a Buyer's Representative is appointed, the Subreceipient will be provided a copy of the appointment
document, and is expected to cooperate accordingly with the Buyer's Representative. The Buyer's
Representative has no authority to bind the State to a contract, amendment, addendum, or other change or
addition to the Subrecipient.

D. GOVERNING LAW (Statutory)

Notwithstanding any other provision of this subaward, or any amendment or addendum(s) entered into
contemporaneously or at a later time, the parties understand and agree that, (1) the State of Nebraska is a
sovereign state and its authority to contract is therefore subject to limitation by the State's Constitution,
statutes, common law, and regulation; (2) this subaward will be interpreted and enforced under the laws of
the State of Nebraska; (3) any action to enforce the provisions of this agreement must be brought in the
State of Nebraska per state law; (4) the person signing this subaward on behalf of the State of Nebraska
does not have the authority to waive the State's sovereign immunity, statutes, common law, or regulations;
(5) the indemnity, limitation of liability, remedy, and other similar provisions of the final contract, if any, are
entered into subject to the State's Constitution, statutes, common law, regulations, and sovereign immunity;
and, (6) all terms and conditions of the final subaward, including but not limited to the clauses concerning
third party use, licenses, warranties, limitations of liability, governing law and venue, usage verification,
indemnity, liability, remedy or other similar provisions of the final subaward are entered into specifically
subject to the State's Constitution, statutes, common law, regulations, and sovereign immunity.

The Parties must comply with all applicable local, state and federal laws, ordinances, rules, orders, and
regulations.

E. BEGINNING OF WORK

Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

4

RFP Response
7

(Initial)
The bidder shall not commence any billable work until a valid subaward has been fully executed by the State
and the successful Subrecipient. The Subreceipient will be notified in writing when work may begin.
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F. CHANGE ORDERS
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
(Initial)

The State and the Subrecipient, upon the written agreement, may make changes to the contract within the
general scope of the RFP. Changes may involve specifications, the quantity of work, or such other items as
the State may find necessary or desirable. Corrections of any deliverable, service, or work required
pursuant to the subaward shall not be deemed a change. The Subrecipient may not claim forfeiture of the
subaward by reasons of such changes.

The Subrecipient shall prepare a written description of the work required due to the change and an itemized
cost sheet for the change. Changes in work and the amount of compensation to be paid to the Subreceipient
shall be determined in accordance with applicable unit prices if any, a pro-rated value, or through
negotiations. The State shall not incur a price increase for changes that should have been included in the
Subrecipient's proposal, were foreseeable, or result from difficulties with or failure of the Subrecipient's
proposal or performance.

No change shall be implemented by the Subrecipient until approved by the State, and the subaward is
amended to reflect the change and associated costs, if any. If there is a dispute regarding the cost, but both
parties agree that immediate implementation is necessary, the change may be implemented, and cost
negotiations may continue with both Parties retaining all remedies under the subaward and law.

G. NOTICE OF POTENTIAL CONTRACTOR BREACH
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
(Initial)

ri

M

If Subrecipient breaches the subaward or anticipates breaching the subaward, the Subrecipient shall
immediately give written notice to the State. The notice shall explain the breach or potential breach, a
proposed cure, and may include a request for a waiver of the breach if so desired. The State may, in its
discretion, temporarily or permanently waive the breach. By granting a waiver, the State does not forfeit any
rights or remedies to which the State is entitled by law or equity, or pursuant to the provisions of the
subaward. Failure to give immediate notice, however, may be grounds for denial of any request for a waiver
of a breach.

H. BREACH
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
(Initial)

7%

Either Party may terminate the contract, in whole or in part, if the other Party breaches its duty to perform its
obligations under the subaward in a timely and proper manner. Termination requires written notice of
default and a thirty (30) calendar day (or longer at the non-breaching Party’'s discretion considering the
gravity and nature of the default) cure period. Said notice shall be delivered by Certified Mail, Return

3
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Receipt Requested, or in person with proof of delivery. Allowing time to cure a failure or breach of subaward
does not waive the right to immediately terminate the subaward for the same or different subaward breach
which may occur at a different time. In case of default of the Subrecipient, the State may subaward the
service from other sources and hold the Subrecipient responsible for any excess cost occasioned thereby.
The State's failure to make payment shall not be a breach, and the Subrecipient shall retain all available
statutory remedies and protections.

L NON-WAIVER OF BREACH
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
YV (Initial)

74

The acceptance of late performance with or without objection or reservation by a Party shall not waive any

rights of the Party nor constitute a waiver of the requirement of timely performance of any obligations
remaining to be performed.

J. REMEDIES FOR NONCOMPLIANCE
Acknowledge NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial)

V//a

DHHS may, if Subrecipient fails to comply with federal statutes, regulations, Title 1V-E state plan, or with the
terms of the Subaward:

Impose any of the Specific Conditions listed in 45 CFR § 75.207;

Temporarily withhold any payments pending the correction of the deficiency by Subrecipient;
Disallow all or part of the cost of the activity or action not in compliance;

Wholly or partly suspend or terminate Subaward (see also Termination, below, and Breach, above);

Recommend suspension or debarment proceedings be initiated by the Federal Funding Agency;
and

6. Take any other remedies that may be legally available.

e ol ol

If DHHS imposes items 3, 4, or 6, above, DHHS may withhold future payments, or seek repayment to
recoup costs paid by DHHS, or both.

Failures to comply include, but are not limited to, Subrecipient's inability to meet or exceed the federal
standards contained in FFPSA. If this, or any other failure bySubrecipient to comply with any federal statute,
regulation, Title IV-E state plan, or term of this Subaward, is a proximate cause of any reduction in federal
funds to DHHS, DHHS may disallow costs under this Subaward in an amount up to DHHS' reduction in
federal funding.

Nothing in this section shall limit any other legal remedies available to DHHS.

K. SEVERABILITY
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
(Initial)

24
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If any term or condition of the subaward is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in

conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and conditions shall not be affected, and the rights
and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the subaward did not contain the
provision held to be invalid or illegal.

L.

INDEMNIFICATION

Accept
(Initial)

Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
(Initial)

2

Property is not applicable. All other terms in this section L.
Indemnification are acceptable.

GENERAL

The Subrecipient agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the State and its employees,
volunteers, agents, and its elected and appointed officials (“the indemnified parties”) from and
against any and all third party claims, liens, demands, damages, liability, actions, causes of action,
losses, judgments, costs, and expenses of every nature, including investigation costs and
expenses, settlement costs, and attorney fees and expenses (“the claims”), sustained or asserted
against the State for personal injury, death, or property loss or damage, arising out of, resulting
from, or attributable to the willful misconduct, negligence, error, or omission of the Subrecipient, its
employees, subcontractors, consultants, representatives, and agents, resulting from this subaward,
except to the extent such Subrecipient liability is attenuated by any action of the State which
directly and proximately contributed to the claims.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

The Subrecipient agrees it will, at its sole cost and expense, defend, indemnify, and hold harmless
the indemnified parties from and against any and all claims, to the extent such claims arise out of,
result from, or are attributable to, the actual or alleged infringement or misappropriation of any
patent, copyright, trade secret, trademark, or confidential information of any third party by the
Subrecipient or its employees, subcontractors, Second Tier Subrecipients, consultants,
representatives, and agents; provided, however, the State gives the Subrecipient r prompt notice in
writing of the claim. The Subrecipient may not settle any infringement claim that will affect the
State’s use of the Licensed Software without the State’s prior written consent, which consent may
be withheld for any reason.

If a judgment or settlement is obtained or reasonably anticipated against the State's use of any
intellectual property for which the Subrecipient has indemnified the State, the Subrecipient shall, at
the Subrecipient's sole cost and expense, promptly modify the item or items which were
determined to be infringing, acquire a license or licenses on the State’s behalf to provide the
necessary rights to the State to eliminate the infringement, or provide the State with a non-
infringing substitute that provides the State the same functionality. At the State’s election, the
actual or anticipated judgment may be treated as a breach of warranty by the Subrecipient, and the
State may receive the remedies provided under this RFP.

PERSONNEL

The Subrecipient shall, at its expense, indemnify and hold harmless the indemnified parties from
and against any claim with respect to withholding taxes, worker's compensation, employee
benefits, or any other claim, demand, liability, damage, or loss of any nature relating to any of the
personnel, including subcontractor's and their employees, and, Second Tier subrecipients and their
employees provided by the Subrecipient.

SELF-INSURANCE

The State of Nebraska is self-insured for any loss and purchases excess insurance coverage
pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 81-8,239.01 (Reissue 2008). If there is a presumed loss under the
provisions of this agreement, Subrecipient may file a claim with the Office of Risk Management
pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 81-8,829 — 81-8,306 for review by the State Claims Board. The
State retains all rights and immunities under the State Miscellaneous (Section 81-8,294), Tort
(Section 81-8,209), and Contract Claim Acts (Section 81-8,302), as outlined in Neb. Rev. Stat. §

The last sentence in the first paragraph under subsection 2. Intellectual
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81-8,209 et seq. and under any other provisions of law and accepts liability under this agreement to
the extent provided by law.

5. The Parties acknowledge that Attorney General for the State of Nebraska is required by statute to
represent the legal interests of the State, and that any provision of this indemnity clause is subject
fo the statutory authority of the Attorney General.

M. ATTORNEY'S FEES
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
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In the event of any litigation, appeal, or other legal action to enforce any provision of the subaward, the
Parties agree to pay all expenses of such action, as permitted by law and if order by the court, including
attorney's fees and costs, if the other Party prevails.

N. PERFORMANCE BOND
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
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The Subrecipient will be required to supply a bond executed by a corporation authorized to contract surety in
the State of Nebraska, payable to the State of Nebraska, which shall be valid for the life of the subaward to
include any renewal and/or extension periods. The amount of the bond must be an established dollar
amount $1,000,000. The bond will guarantee that the Subrecipient will faithfully perform all requirements,
terms and conditions of the subaward. Failure to comply shall be grounds for forfeiture of the bond as
liquidated damages. Amount of forfeiture will be determined by the agency based on loss to the State. The
bond will be returned when the service has been satisfactorily completed as solely determined by the State,
after termination or expiration of the subaward.

0. ASSIGNMENT, SALE, OR MERGER
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
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Either Party may assign the subaward upon mutual written agreement of the other Party. Such agreement
shall not be unreasonably withheld.

The Subrecipient retains the right to enter into a sale, merger, acquisition, internal reorganization, or similar
transaction involving Subrecipient’s business. Subrecipient agrees to cooperate with the State in executing
amendments to the subaward to allow for the transaction. If a third party or entity is involved in the
transaction, the Subrecipient will remain responsible for performance of the subaward until such time as the
person or entity involved in the transaction agrees in writing to be contractually bound by this subaward and
perform all obligations of the subaward.
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P. FORCE MAJEURE
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(Initial) [ (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
(Initial)

Lo

Neither Party shall be liable for any costs or damages, or for default resulting from its inability to perform any
of its obligations under the subaward due to a natural or manmade event outside the control and not the
fault of the affected Party (“Force Majeure Event’). The Party so affected shall immediately make a written
request for relief to the other Party, and shall have the burden of proof to justify the request. The other Party
may grant the relief requested; relief may not be unreasonably withheld. Labor disputes with the impacted
Party's own employees will not be considered a Force Majeure Event.

Q. CONFIDENTIALITY
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All materials and information provided by the Parties or acquired by a Party on behalf of the other Party shall
be regarded as confidential information. All materials and information provided or acquired shall be handled
in accordance with federal and state law, and ethical standards. Should said confidentiality be breached by
a Party, the Party shall notify the other Party immediately of said breach and take immediate corrective
action.

It is incumbent upon the Parties to inform their. officers and employees of the penalties for improper
disclosure imposed by the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. 552a. Specifically, 5 U.S.C. 552a (i)(1), which is
made applicable by 5 U.S.C. 552a (m)(1), provides that any officer or employee, who by virtue of his/her
employment or official position has possession of or access to agency records which contain individually
identifiable information, the disclosure of which is prohibited by the Privacy Act or regulations established
thereunder, and who knowing that disclosure of the specific material is prohibited, willfully discloses the
material in any manner to any person or agency not entitled to receive it, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor
and fined not more than $5,000.

OFFICE OF PUBLIC COUNSEL (Statutory)

If it provides, under the terms of this subaward and on behalf of the State of Nebraska, health and human
services to individuals; service delivery; service coordination; or case management, Subrecipient shall
submit to the jurisdiction of the Office of Public Counsel, pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 81-8,240 et seq.
This section shall survive the termination of this subaward.

LONG-TERM CARE OMBUDSMAN (Statutory)

Subrecipient must comply with the Long-Term Care Ombudsman Act, Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 81-2237 et seq.
This section shall survive the termination of this subaward.
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T. EARLY TERMINATION
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The subaward may be terminated as follows:

1.

The State and the Subrecipient, by mutual written agreement, may terminate the subaward at any
time however, the two parties must agree, in writing, upon the termination conditions, including the
effective date and, in case of partial termination, the portion to be terminated.

The State, in its sole discretion, may terminate the subaward for any reason upon thirty (30)

calendar day’s written notice to the Subrecipient. Such termination shall not relieve the

Subrecipient of warranty or other service obligations incurred under the terms of the subaward. In

the event of termination the Subrecipient shall be entitled to payment, determined on a pro rata

basis, for products or services satisfactorily performed or provided.

The State may terminate the subaward immediately for the following reasons:

a. if directed to do so by statute;

b. Subrecipient has made an assignment for the benefit of creditors, has admitted in writing
its inability to pay debts as they mature, or has ceased operating in the normal course of
business;

c: a trustee or receiver of the Subrecipient or of any substantial part of the Subrecipient ’s
assets has been appointed by a court;

d. fraud, misappropriation, embezzlement, malfeasance, misfeasance, or illegal conduct
pertaining to performance under the subaward by its Subrecipient, its employees, officers,
directors, or shareholders;

e. an involuntary proceeding has been commenced by any Party against the Subrecipient
under any one of the chapters of Title 11 of the United States Code and (i) the proceeding
has been pending for at least sixty (60) calendar days; or (ii) the Subrecipient has
consented, either expressly or by operation of law, to the entry of an order for relief; or (iii)
the Subrecipient has been decreed or adjudged a debtor;

f. a voluntary petition has been filed by the Contractor under any of the chapters of Title 11
of the United States Code;

g. Subrecipient intentionally discloses confidential information;

h. Subrecipient has or announces it will discontinue support of the deliverable; and,

i. In the event funding is no longer available.

The Subrecipient may terminate the subaward upon sending written notification to DHHS setting
forth the reasons for such termination, the effective date, and, in the case of partial termination, the
portion to be terminated. However, if DHHS determines in the case of partial termination that the
reduced or modified portion of the Subaward will not accomplish the purposes for which the
Federal award was made, DHHS may terminate the Subaward in its entirety. In either case, the
effective date shall be as provided by the Subrecipient and may be no less than 180 (one-hundred
and eighty) days.

All notices of termination must be consistent with 45 CFR § 75.372 and shall provide a notice
period and effective date as set forth in this Subaward.

u. CONTRACT AND GRANT CLOSEOUT
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The following closeout procedures apply to this subaward at the end of each federal fiscal year,
except for (a), which shall apply at the end of the federal fiscal year and the end of the subaward
term, and (e), which shall apply at the end of the subaward term only:

a. The Subrecipient shall finalize and pay all costs for services provided under this subaward
as follows:
Term Deadline to Finalize and Pay Obligations
Initial subaward Start date through | November 15, 2019
September 30, 2019
October 1, 2019 through September 30, | November 15, 2020
2020
October 1, 2020 through September 30, | November 15, 2021
2021
October 1, 2021 through September 30, | November 15, 2022
2022
October 1, 2022 through September 30, | November 15, 2023
2023
October 1, 2023 through September 30, | November 15, 2024
2024
October 1, 2024 through September 30, | November 15, 2025
2025
October 1, 2025 through September 30, | November 15, 2026
2026

These deadlines apply to all costs whether paid with state or federal funds, or both. Costs that are
not finalized and paid by these deadlines shall not be reimbursed by DHHS, except that DHHS may
authorize an extension, in writing, of the above deadlines. If DHHS has previously paid for an
incurred cost that has not been finalized and paid by Subrecipient by the applicable deadline,
DHHS may withhold additional payments to recoup that cost.

b. Consistent with the terms of the federal award, and after all reports are received, DHHS
shall make any necessary adjustments upward or downward in the federal share of costs.

c. DHHS shall make prompt payments, as consistent with the terms set forth herein, for all
costs allowable under the terms of this Subaward.

d. Subrecipient shall immediately return to DHHS any unobligated balance of cash advanced
or shall manage such balance in accordance with DHHS instructions.

e. Within 30 days, except as otherwise stated herein, Subrecipient shall assist and cooperate

in the orderly transition and transfer of subaward activities and operations with the
objective of preventing disruption of services. This includes but is not limited to:

iv.
V.

vi.
Vii.

Transfer all completed or partially completed deliverables to the State;

Transfer ownership and title to all completed or partially completed deliverables
to the State;

Return to the State all information and data, unless the Subrecipient is permitted
to keep the information or data by contract or rule of law. Contractor may retain
one copy of any information or data as required to comply with applicable work
product documentation standards or as are automatically retained in the course
of Subrecipient's routine back up procedures;

Cooperate with any successor Subrecipient, person or entity in the assumption of
any or all of the obligations of this subaward;

Cooperate with any successor Subrecipient, person or entity with the transfer of
information or data related to this subaward

Return or vacate any state owned real or personal property; and

Return all data in a mutually acceptable format and manner.

Post-Closeout Adjustments and Continuing Responsibilities. The closeout of the subaward does

not affect any of the following:

a. The right of DHHS to disallow costs and recover funds on the basis of a later audit or
other review. DHHS shall make any cost disallowance determination and notify
Subrecipient within the record retention period.
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The obligation of Contractor to return any funds due as a result of later refunds,
corrections, or other transactions including final indirect cost rate adjustments.

Audit requirements in 45 CFR § 75 Subpart F.

As applicable, property management and disposition requirements in Subpart D—Post
Federal Award Requirements in 45 CFR §§ 75.317 through 75.323.

Records retention requirements contained herein.

10
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1ll. CONTRACTOR DUTIES
A. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR / OBLIGATIONS
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
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It is agreed that the Subrecipient is an independent contractor and that nothing contained herein is intended
or should be construed as creating or establishing a relationship of employment, agency, or a partnership.

The Subrecipient is solely responsible for fulfiling the subaward. The Subrecipient or the Subrecipient’s
representative shall be the sole point of subaward regarding all contractual matters.

The Subrecipient shall secure, at its own expense, all personnel required to perform the services under the
subaward. The personnel the Subrecipient uses to fulfill the subaward shall have no contractual or other
legal relationship with the State; they shall not be considered employees of the State and shall not be
entitied to any compensation, rights or benefits from the State, including but not limited to, tenure rights,
medical and hospital care, sick and vacation leave, severance pay, or retirement benefits.

By-name personnel commitments made in the Subrecipient's proposal shall not be changed without the prior
written approval of the State. Replacement of these personnel, if approved by the State, shall be with
personnel of equal or greater ability and qualifications. '

All personnel assigned by the Subrecipient to the subaward shall be employees of the Subrecipient, a
Second Tier Subrecipient or a subcontractor, and shall be fully qualified to perform the work required herein.
Personnel employed by the Subrecipient, Second Tier Subrecipient, or a subcontractor to fulfill the terms of
the subaward shall remain under the sole direction and control of the Subrecipient, Second Tier
Subrecipient, or the subcontractor respectively.

With respect to its employees, the Subrecipient agrees to be solely responsible for the following:

2. Any and all pay, benefits, and employment taxes and/or other payroll withholding;

3. Any and all vehicles used by the Subrecipient ’s employees, including all insurance required by
state law;

4. Damages incurred by Subrecipient 's employees within the scope of their duties under the
subaward;

5. Maintaining Workers' Compensation and health insurance that complies with state and federal law
and submitting any reports on such insurance to the extent required by governing law;

6. Determining the hours to be worked and the duties to be performed by the Subrecipient s
employees; and,

7. All claims on behalf of any person arising out of employment or alleged employment (including

without limit claims of discrimination alleged against the Subrecipient , its officers, agents, or
subcontractors or subcontractor's employees)

If the Subrecipient intends to utilize any subcontractor, the subcontractor's level of effort, tasks, and time
allocation should be clearly defined in the bidder's proposal. The Subrecipient shall agree that it will not
utilize any subcontractors not specifically included in its proposal in the performance of the contract without
the prior written authorization of the State.

The State reserves the right to require the Subrecipient to reassign or remove from the project any
Subrecipient or subcontractor employee.

Subrecipient shall insure that the terms and conditions contained in any subaward or contract with a Second
Tier Subrecipient or subcontractor does not conflict with the terms and conditions of this subaward.

11
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The Subrecipient shall include a similar provision, for the protection of the State, in the subaward with any
subcontractor engaged to perform work on this Subrecipient .

B. EMPLOYEE WORK ELIGIBILITY STATUS
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
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The Subrecipient is required and hereby agrees to use a federal immigration verification system to
determine the work eligibility status of employees physically performing services within the State of
Nebraska. A federal immigration verification system means the electronic verification of the work
authorization program authorized by the lllegal Immigration Reform and Immigrant Responsibility Act of
1996, 8 U.S.C. 13244, known as the E-Verify Program, or an equivalent federal program designated by the
United States Department of Homeland Security or other federal agency authorized to verify the work
eligibility status of an employee.

If the Subrecipient is an individual or sole proprietorship, the following applies:

1: The Subrecipient must complete the United States Citizenship Attestation Form, available on the
Department of Administrative Services website at hitp://das.nebraska.gov/materiel/purchasing.html

The completed United States Attestation Form should be submitted with the RFP response.

2. If the Subrecipient indicates on such attestation form that he or she is a qualified alien, the
Subrecipient agrees to provide the US Citizenship and Immigration Services documentation
required to verify the Subrecipient's lawful presence in the United States using the Systematic Alien
Verification for Entitlements (SAVE) Program.

3. The Subrecipient understands and agrees that lawful presence in the United States is required and
the Subrecipient may be disqualified or the contract terminated if such lawful presence cannot be
verified as required by Neb. Rev. Stat. §4-108.

COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT /
NONDISCRIMINATION (Statutory)

The Subrecipient shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal statutes and regulations regarding
civil rights laws and equal opportunity employment. The Nebraska Fair Employment Practice Act prohibits
Subrecipients of the State of Nebraska, and their subcontractors, from discriminating against any employee
or applicant for employment, with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions, compensation, or privileges of
employment because of race, color, religion, sex, disability, marital status, or national origin (Neb. Rev. Stat.
§48-1101 to 48-1125). The Subrecipient guarantees compliance with the Nebraska Fair Employment
Practice Act, and breach of this provision shall be regarded as a material breach of subaward. The
Subrecipient shall insert a similar provision in all subcontracts for services to be covered by any subaward /
contract resulting from this RFP.

The Subrecipient shall comply with all civil rights and nondiscrimination law in the provision of the services

under this Subaward. This includes, but is not limited to:

1. The Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq.;

2. Federal regulations governing programs and services provided under grants from the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) at: 45 CFR § 75.300; 45 CFR §§ 80 et seq.
(nondiscrimination under programs receiving or benefitting from assistance through HHS); 45 CFR
§§ 84 et seq. (nondiscrimination on the basis of handicap in HHS programs or activities receiving
federal financial assistance); 45 CFR §§ 86 et seq. (nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in
education programs and activities receiving or benefitting from federal financial assistance); 45
CFR §§ 87 et seq. (Equal Treatment for Faith-Based Organizations); and 45 CFR §§ 91 et seq.

12
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(nondiscrimination on the basis of age in HHS programs or activities receiving federal financial

assistance).
D. COOPERATION WITH OTHER CONTRACTORS
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Subrecipient may be required to work with or in close proximity to other contractors or individuals that may
be working on same or different projects. The Subrecipient shall agree to cooperate with such other
contractors or individuals, and shall not commit or permit any act which may interfere with the performance
of work by any other contractor or individual. Subrecipient is not required to compromise Subrecipient’s
intellectual property or proprietary information unless expressly required to do so by this subaward.

E. PERMITS, REGULATIONS, LAWS
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
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The subaward price shall include the cost of all royalties, licenses, permits, and approvals, whether arising
from patents, trademarks, copyrights or otherwise, that are in any way involved in the contract. The
Subrecipient shall obtain and pay for all royalties, licenses, and permits, and approvals necessary for the
execution of the subaward. The Subrecipient must guarantee that it has the full legal right to the materials,
supplies, equipment, software, and other items used to execute this contract.

F. OWNERSHIP OF INFORMATION AND DATA / DELIVERABLES
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
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1. Data. DHHS shall own all rights in data resulting from this Subaward. The Federal Funding Agency

reserves the right to obtain, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use the data produced under this
subaward, and to authorize others to receive, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use such data for
federal purposes. ;

2, Copyright. As consistent with federal law, Subrecipient may copyright any of the copyrightable
material and may patent any of the patentable products produced in conjunction with the Scope of
Work under subaward without written consent from DHHS. DHHS and any Federal Funding
Agency hereby reserve a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or
otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, the copyrightable material for federal or state
government purposes.

3. Patent. All patent rights under this subaward shall be as set forth in the clause contained in 37
C.F.R. § 401.14, and consistent with all other applicable federal law.

13
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G. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

| RFP Response
A (Initial)

24

The Subrecipient shall throughout the term of the contract maintain insurance as specified herein and
provide the State a current Certificate of Insurance/Acord Form (COIl) verifying the coverage. The
Subrecipient shall not commence work on the subaward until the insurance is in place. If Subrecipient
subcontracts or subawards any portion of the contract the Subrecipient must, throughout the term of the
contract / subaward, either:

1. Provide equivalent insurance for each subcontractor / Second Tier Subrecipient and provide a COI
verifying the coverage for the subcontractor / Second Tier Subrecipient;
2. Require each subcontractor / Second Tier Subrecipient to have equivalent insurance and provide

written notice to the State that the Subrecipient has verified that each subcontractor / Second Tier
Subrecipient has the required coverage; or,
3. Provide the State with copies of each subcontractor's / Second Tier Subrecipient's Certificate of
Insurance evidencing the required coverage.
The Subrecipient shall not allow any subcontractor / Second Tier Subrecipient to commence work until the
subcontractor / second tier subrecipient has equivalent insurance. The failure of the State to require a COl,
or the failure of the Subrecipient to provide a COIl or require subcontractor / Second Tier Subrecipient
insurance shall not limit, relieve, or decrease the liability of the Subrecipient hereunder.

In the event that any policy written on a claims-made basis terminates or is canceled during the term of the
subaward or within three (3)years of termination or expiration of the subaward, the Contractor shall obtain an
extended discovery or reporting period, or a new insurance policy, providing coverage required by this
contract for the term of the contract and three (3)years following termination or expiration of the contract.

If by the terms of any insurance a mandatory deductible is required, or if the Subrecipient elects to increase
the mandatory deductible amount, the Subrecipient shall be responsible for payment of the amount of the
deductible in the event of a paid claim.

Notwithstanding any other clause in this subaward, the State may recover up to the liability limits -of the
insurance policies required herein.

1. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION INSURANCE

The Subrecipient shall take out and maintain during the life of this contract the statutory Workers’
Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance for all of the Subrecipient’'s employees to be
engaged in work on the project under this subaward and, in case any such work is sublet, the
Subrecipient shall require the subcontractor / Second Tier Subrecipient similarly to provide
Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance for all of the subcontractor's / Second
Tier Subrecipient's employees to be engaged in such work. This policy shall be written to meet the
statutory requirements for the state in which the work is to be performed, including Occupational
Disease. The policy shall include a waiver of subrogation in favor of the State. The COI
shall contain the mandatory COIl subrogation waiver language found hereinafter. The
amounts of such insurance shall not be less than the limits stated hereinafter. For employees
working in the State of Nebraska, the policy must be written by an entity authorized by the State of
Nebraska Department of Insurance to write Workers’ Compensation and Employer's Liability
Insurance for Nebraska employees.

4. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE AND COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE

LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Subrecipient shall take out and maintain during the life of this contract such Commercial
General Liability Insurance and Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance as shall protect
Subrecipient and any subcontractor / Second Tier Subrecipient performing work covered by this
subaward from claims for damages for bodily injury, including death, as well as from claims for
property damage, which may arise from operations under this contract, whether such operation be
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by the Subrecipientor by any subcontractor / Second Tier Subrecipient, or by anyone directly or
indirectly employed by either of them, and the amounts of such insurance shall not be less than
limits stated hereinafter.

The Commercial General Liability Insurance shall be written on an occurrence basis, and provide
Premises/Operations, Products/Completed Operations, Independent Contractors, Personal Injury,
and Contractual Liability coverage. The policy shall include the State, and others as required
by the contract documents, as Additional Insured(s). This policy shall be primary, and any
insurance or self-insurance carried by the State shall be considered secondary and non-
contributory. The COI shall contain the mandatory COI liability waiver language found
hereinafter. The Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance shall be written to cover all Owned,

Non-owned, and Hired vehicles.

REQUIRED INSURANCE COVERAGE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

General Aggregate $2,000,000
Products/Completed Operations $2,000,000
Aggregate

Personal/Advertising Injury

$1,000,000 per occurrence

Bodily Injury/Property Damage

$1,000,000 per occurrence

Medical Payments

$10,000 any one person

Damage to Rented Premises (Fire)

$300,000 each occurrence

Contractual Included
Independent Contractors Included
Abuse & Molestation Included

If higher limits are required, the Umbrella/Excess Liability limits are allowed to satisfy the higher

limit.

WORKER’S COMPENSATION
Employers Liability Limits $500K/$500K/$500K
Statutory Limits- All States . Statutory - State of Nebraska
Voluntary Compensation Statutory

COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Bodily Injury/Property Damage

$1,000,000 combined single limit

Include All Owned, Hired & Non-Owned
Automobile liability

Included

Motor Carrier Act Endorsement

Where Applicable

UMBRELLA/EXCESS LIABILITY

Over Primary Insurance |

$5,000,000 per occurrence

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY

All Other Professional Liability (Errors &
Omissions)

$1,000,000 Per Claim / Aggregate

COMMERCIAL CRIME

Crime/Employee Dishonesty Including 3rd
Party Fidelity

$1,000,000

CYBER LIABILITY

Breach of Privacy, Security Breach, Denial
of Service, Remediation, Fines and
Penalties

$5,000,000

MANDATORY COI SUBROGATION WAIVER LANGUAGE

“Workers' Compensation policy shall include a waiver of subrogation in favor of the State of

Nebraska.”

MANDATORY COI LIABILITY WAIVER LANGUAGE

“Commercial General Liability & Commercial Automobile Liability policies shall name the State of
Nebraska as an Additional Insured and the policies shall be primary and any insurance or self-
insurance carried by the State shall be considered secondary and non-contributory as
additionally insured.”

If the mandatory COI subrogation waiver language or mandatory COI liability waiver language on
the COI states that the waiver is subject to, condition upon, or otherwise limit by the insurance
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policy, a copy of the relevant sections of the policy must be submitted with the COI so the State can
review the limitations imposed by the insurance policy.

5. EVIDENCE OF COVERAGE
The Subrecipient shall furnish the Contract Manager, with a certificate of insurance coverage
complying with the above requirements prior to beginning work at:
Department of Health and Human Services
Attn: DHHS Service Area Administrator
301 Centennial Mall South
Lincoln, NE 68508
These certificates or the cover sheet shall reference the RFP number, and the certificates shall
include the name of the company, policy numbers, effective dates, dates of expiration, and
amounts and types of coverage afforded. If the State is damaged by the failure of the Contractor to
maintain such insurance, then the Subrecipient shall be responsible for all reasonable costs
properly attributable thereto.
Reasonable notice of cancellation of any required insurance policy must be submitted to the
contract manager as listed above when issued and a new coverage binder shall be submitted
immediately to ensure no break in coverage.
6. DEVIATIONS

The insurance requirements are subject to limited negotiation. Negotiation typically includes, but is
not necessarily limited to, the correct type of coverage, necessity for Workers’ Compensation, and
the type of automobile coverage carried by the Subrecipient .

H. ANTITRUST
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The Subrecipient hereby assigns to the State any and all claims for overcharges as to goods and/or services
provided in connection with this contract resulting from antitrust violations which arise under antitrust laws of
the United States and the antitrust laws of the State.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST
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By submitting a proposal, bidder certifies that there does not now exist a relationship between the bidder
and any person or entity which is or gives the appearance of a conflict of interest related to this RFP or

project.

The bidder certifies that it shall not take any action or acquire any interest, either directly or indirectly, which
will conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of its services hereunder or which creates an
actual or an appearance of conflict of interest.

The bidder certifies that it will not knowingly employ any individual known by bidder to have a conflict of

interest.
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The Parties shall not knowingly, for a period of two years after execution of the subaward, recruit or employ
any employee or agent of the other Party who has worked on the RFP or project, or who had any influence
on decisions affecting the RFP or project.

J. STATE PROPERTY
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

, RFP Response
A (Initial)

pse//

The Subrecipient shall be responsible for the proper care and custody of any State-owned property which is
furnished for the Subrecipient's use during the performance of the contract. The Subrecipient shall
reimburse the State for any loss or damage of such property; normal wear and tear is expected.

K. SITE RULES AND REGULATIONS
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
Iy (Initial)

2

The Subrecipient shall use its best efforts to ensure that its employees, agents, and subcontractors comply
with site rules and regulations while on State premises. If the Subrecipient must perform on-site work
outside of the daily operational hours set forth by the State, it must make arrangements with the State to
ensure access to the facility and the equipment has been arranged. No additional payment will be made by
the State on the basis of lack of access, unless the State fails to provide access as agreed to in writing
between the State and the Subrecipient .

L. ADVERTISING
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
(Initial)

2

The Subrecipient agrees not to refer to the contract award in advertising in such a manner as to state or
imply that the company or its services are endorsed or preferred by the State. Any publicity releases
pertaining to the project shall not be issued without prior written approval from the State.

NEBRASKA TECHNOLOGY ACCESS STANDARDS (Statutory)

Subrecipient shall review the Nebraska Technology Access Standards, found at
hitp://nitc.nebraska.gov/standards/2-201.html and ensure that products and/or services provided under the
subaward are in compliance or will comply with the applicable standards to the greatest degree possible. In
the event such standards change during the Subrecipient 's performance, the State may create an
amendment to the subaward to request the contract comply with the changed standard at a cost mutually
acceptable to the parties.
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N. DISASTER RECOVERY/BACK UP PLAN

Accept | Reject
(Initial) | (Initial)

b

Reject & Provide
Alternative within
RFP Response
(Initial)

NOTES/COMMENTS:

peA

The Subrecipient shall have a disaster recovery and back-up plan, of which a copy should be provided upon
request to the State, which includes, but is not limited to equipment, personnel, facilities, and transportation,
in order to continue services as specified under the specifications in the contract in the event of a disaster.

0. DRUG POLICY

Accept | Reject
(Initial) | (Initial)

Reject & Provide
Alternative within
RFP Response
(Initial)

NOTES/COMMENTS:

Y4

Subrecipient certifies it maintains a drug free work place environment to ensure worker safety and workplace
integrity. Subrecipient agrees to provide a copy of its drug free workplace policy at any time upon request

by the State.
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Iv. PAYMENT
A. COSTS
Under this subaward, DHHS shall only pay for actual and allowable costs (as defined in this section)
incurred during the term of this subaward.
To be allowable, all costs must be:
i. Necessary for the performance of the subaward activities;
ii. Reasonable, as provided in 45 CFR § 75.404;
iii. Allocable to the federal award, as provided in 45 CFR § 75.405;
iv. Consistent with all other requirements of the Cost Principles in 45 CFR §§ 75 Subpart E;
and,
v. Consistent with all other law, regulation, policy, or other requirements applicable to the
state or federal funds involved.
To be actual, all costs must be finalized and spent by the appropriate dates set forth in Section I.U. Contract
and Grant Closeout, and as otherwise set forth herein. This may include, but is not limited to, restrictions on
funds including in federal appropriations bills for the federal funds used in this subaward.
Any requirements applicable to the federal funds shall also be applied to the state funds involved in this
subaward.
Per federal law, no profit may be made from this subaward. See 45 CFR § 75.400.
B. TAXES (Statutory)
The State is not required to pay taxes and assumes no such liability as a result of this solicitation. Any
property tax payable on the Subrecipient 's equipment which may be installed in a state-owned facility is the
responsibility of the Subrecipient.
C. INVOICES
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
(Initial)

v

Invoices for payments must be submitted by the Subrecipient to the agency requesting the services with
sufficient detail to support payment. Subrecipient’s invoice shall include the agency’s name, address,
contact phone number, date of invoice, and date of service. Invoices should be sent to DHHS Children and
Family Services 301 Centennial Mall S. Lincoln, NE 68509. The terms and conditions included in the
Subrecipient's invoice shall be deemed to be solely for the convenience of the parties. No terms or
conditions of any such invoice shall be binding upon the State, and no action by the State, including without
limitation the payment of any such invoice in whole or in part, shall be construed as binding or estopping the
State with respect to any such term or condition, unless the invoice term or condition has been previously
agreed to by the State as an amendment to the subaward.

D. INSPECTION AND APPROVAL
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
(Initial)

124

Final inspection and approval of all work required under the subaward shall be performed by the designated
State officials.
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The State and/or its authorized representatives shall have the right to enter any premises where the
Subrecipient, Second Tier Subrecipient, or subcontractor duties under the subaward are being performed,
and to inspect, monitor or otherwise evaluate the work being performed. All inspections and evaluations
shall be at reasonable times and in a manner that will not unreasonably delay work.

E. PAYMENT

Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:

(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
. (Initial)
o A The last citation in this section E. Payment should be 45 CFR § 75:305 (b

o . y §75:305 (b)
State will render payment to Subrecipient monthly when the terms and conditions of the subaward and
specifications have been satisfactorily completed on the part of the Subrecipient as solely determined by the
State. (Neb. Rev. Stat. §73-506(1)) Payment will be made by the responsible agency in compliance with
the State of Nebraska Prompt Payment Act (See Neb. Rev. Stat. §81-2401 through 81-2408). The State
may require the Subrecipient to accept payment by electronic means such as ACH deposit. In no event shall
the State be responsible or liable to pay for any services provided by the Subrecipient prior to the Effective
Date of the subaward, and the Subrecipient hereby waives any claim or cause of action for any such
services.
Payments may be withheld as set forth in 45 CFR § 75.305(a)(6), as amended from time to time, as
otherwise provided herein, or according to other applicable law.

F. LATE PAYMENT (Statutory)
The Subrecipient may charge the responsible agency interest for late payment in compliance with the State
of Nebraska Prompt Payment Act (See Neb. Rev. Stat. §81-2401 through 81-2408).

G. SUBJECT TO FUNDING / FUNDING OUT CLAUSE FOR LOSS OF APPROPRIATIONS

Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:

(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
(Initial)

iz

The State's obligation to pay amounts due on the subaward for a fiscal years following the current fiscal year
is contingent upon legislative appropriation of funds. Should said funds not be appropriated, the State may
terminate the subaward with respect to those payments for the fiscal year(s) for which such funds are not
appropriated. The State will give the Subrecipient written notice thirty (30) calendar days prior to the
effective date of termination. All obligations of the State to make payments after the termination date will
cease. The Subrecipient shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any authorized
work which has been. satisfactorily completed as of the termination date for noncancelable obligations
properly incurred by Subrecipient prior to termination, and costs incurred on, or prior to, the termination date.

H. ACCESS TO RECORDS
Acknowledge NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial)

=2

4

7
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Subrecipient shall provide access for DHHS, or its authorized representative, to any documents, papers, or
other records pertinent to Subaward, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. The
Subrecipient shall provide the same access to the Federal Funding Agency, the Inspectors General, the
Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives. These rights also
includes timely and reasonable access to Subrecipient's personnel for the purpose of interview and
discussion related to such documents, papers or other records. These rights are not limited to the retention
periods included herein but continue as long as the records are retained by Subrecipient.

Subrecipient shall comply with all federal retention requirements as amended from time to time and shall
maintain all financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other records pertinent to
Subaward, for three (3) years from the date of submission of the final financial report, as provided in Section
V.M. .Reporting Requirements.

In addition to the foregoing retention periods, all records must be retained as specified in 45 CFR §§ 75.361
(a) through (f), as applicable. This includes, but is not limited to: if any litigation, claim, or audit is started
before the expiration of the three (3) year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, or
audit findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken.

Records that fall under the provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) and
all associated rules and regulations, including but not limited to the policies and procedures identified in 45
CFR § 164.316, shall be maintained for six (6) years from the date of their creation or date when the policy
or procedures were last in effect.

AUDIT REQUIREMENTS

Accept
(Initial)

Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | Alternative within
RFP Response
(Initial)

por’

The Subrecipient shall comply with all applicable federal audit requirements, including but not limited to
those in 45 CFR § 75 Subpart F; an audit required by these regulations must be prepared and issued by an
independent auditor in accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards. A copy of the
audit is to be made electronically available or sent to: Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services,
Financial Services, and P.O. Box 95026, Lincoln, NE 68509-5026.

Subrecipient shall comply with 45 CFR §§ 75.508 through 75.512, including but not limited to: (a) procure or
otherwise arrange for the audit required by this part in accordance with § 75.509, and ensure it is properly
performed and submitted when due in accordance with § 75.512; (b) prepare appropriate financial
statements, including the schedule of expenditures of Federal awards in accordance with § 75.510; (c)
promptly follow up and take corrective action on audit findings, including preparation of a summary schedule
of prior audit findings and a corrective action plan in accordance with § 75.511; (d) provide the auditor with
access to personnel, accounts, books, records, supporting documentation, and other information as needed
for the auditor to perform the audit required by law.

In addition to, and in no way in limitation of any obligation in this Subaward, Subrecipient shall be liable for
audit exceptions, and shall return to DHHS all payments made under this Subaward for which an exception
has been taken or that has been disallowed because of such an exception, upon demand from DHHS.

The Subrecipient shall maintain its accounting records in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. DHHS reserves the right to require Subrecipient to submit required financial reports on the
accrual basis of accounting. If Subrecipient's records are not normally kept on the accrual basis,
Subrecipient is not required to convert its accounting system but shall develop and submit in a timely
manner such accrual information through an analysis of the documentation on hand (such as accounts
payable).
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J. FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Acknowledge

(Initial) /

NOTES/COMMENTS:

B

The Subrecipient shall comply with all applicable provisions of 45 C.F.R. §§ 87.1-87.2. The Subrecipient
certifies that it shall not use direct federal financial assistance to engage in inherently religious activities,
such as worship, religious instruction, and/or proselytization.

K. SMOKE FREE PROVISIONS

Acknowledge
(Initial)

NOTES/COMMENTS:

g

L.

SMOKE FREE. Public Law 103-227, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 (Act), requires that
smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or contracted for by an entity
and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, early childhood development services,
education or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs
either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.
The law also applies to children's services that are provided in indoor facilities that are constructed,
operated, or maintained with such federal funds. The law does not apply to children’s services provided in
private residences; portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment; service providers whose
sole source of applicable Federal funds in Medicare or Medicaid; or facilities where WIC coupons are
redeemed. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary
penalty of up to $1000 for each violation and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the
responsible entity. The Subrecipient certifies that the Subrecipient will comply with the requirements of the
Act and will not allow smoking within any portion of any indoor facility used for the provision of services for
children as defined by the Act.

HUMAN TRAFFICKING PROVISIONS

Acknowledge
(Initial)

NOTES/COMMENTS:

7

The Subrecipient shall comply with and be subject to the requirements of the Trafficking Victims Protection
Act of 2000, 22 USC §§ 7101 et seq.

The Subrecipient, its employees. any subcontractors or Second Tier Subrecipients under this award, and

Second Tier Subrecipients' or subcontractors' employees may not:

1.
2,
3.

Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time that the award is in effect;

Procure a commercial sex act during the period of time that the award is in effect; or

Use forced labor in the performance of the subaward.
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Acknowledge

(Initial) /

NOTES/COMMENTS:

P

No federal or state funds paid under this Subaward shall be paid for any lobbying costs as set forth

herein.

Lobbying Prohibited by 31 U.S.C. § 1352 and 45 CFR §§ 93 et seq, and Required Disclosures.

a.

Subrecipient certifies that no federal or state appropriated funds shall be paid, by or on
behalf of Subrecipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this award for: (a) the awarding
of any federal agreement; (b) the making of any federal grant; (c) the entering into of any
cooperative agreement; and (d) the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any federal agreement, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

If any funds, other than federal appropriated funds, have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence: an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with Subaward, Subrecipient shall complete and submit Federal
Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its
instructions.

Lobbying Activities Prohibited under Federal Appropriations Bilis.

No funds under Subaward shall be used, other than for normal and recognized executive-
legislative relationships, for publicity or propaganda purposes, for the preparation,
distribution, or use of any kit, pamphlet, booklet, publication, electronic communication,
radio, television, or video presentation designed to support or defeat the enactment of
legislation before the Congress or any State or local legislature or legislative body, except
in presentation of the Congress or any State or local legislature itself, or designed to
support or defeat any proposed or pending regulation, administrative action, or order
issued by the executive branch of any state or local government itself.

No funds under this Subaward shall be used to pay the salary or expenses of any grant or
subaward recipient, or agent acting for such recipient, related to any activity designed to
influence the enactment of legislation, appropriations, regulation, administrative action, or
Executive order proposed or pending before the Congress or any State government, State
legislature or local legislature or legislative body, other than normal and recognized
executive legislative relationships or participation by an agency or officer of an State, local
or tribal government in policymaking and administrative processes within the executive
branch of that government.

The prohibitions in the two sections immediately above shall include any activity to
advocate or promote any proposed, pending or future federal, state or local tax increase,
or any proposed, pending, or future requirement or restriction on any legal consumer
product, including its sale of marketing, including but not limited to the advocacy or
promotion of gun control.

Lobbying Costs Unallowable Under the Cost Principles. In addition to the above, no funds shall be
paid for executive lobbying costs as set forth in 45 CFR § 75.450(b). If Subrecipient is a nonprofit
organization or an Institute of Higher Education, other costs of lobbying are also unallowable as set
forth in 45 CFR § 75.450(c).
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N. MANDATORY DISCLOSURES
Acknowledge NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial)

W

The Subrecipient must disclose to the State, in a timely manner and in writing, all violations of Federal
criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting this subaward in accordance
with 2 CFR §200.113. Failure to make required disclosures can result in any of the remedies described in
§200.338 Remedies for noncompliance, including suspension or debarment. (See also 2 CFR part 180 and
31 U.S.C. 3321).

0. PUBLICATIONS
Acknowledge NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial)

£y

Subrecipient must acknowledge federal and DHHS funding when issuing statements, press releases,
requests for proposals, bid invitations, and other documents describing projects or programs funded in
whole or in part with federal and DHHS funds. Subrecipient is required to state: (1) the percentage and
dollar amounts of the total program or project costs financed with federal and DHHS funds; and (2) the
percentage and dollar amount of the total costs financed by nongovernmental sources.

P. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION OR DECLARED INELIGIBLE
Acknowledge NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial)

4

Q.

The Subrecipient certifies that neither it nor its principals are debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any state or federal
department or agency. The Subrecipient certifies that it is registered with the System of Award Management
(SAM) (https://www.sam.gov), in good standing, and that the entity will maintain annual certification in
accordance with Federal Acquisition Regulations. Failure to comply with this section, including maintaining
an active registration and/or good standing with SAM, may result in withholding of payments or immediate
termination of the subaward.

RESEARCH

Acknowledge NOTES/COMMENTS:

(Initial)

2

e

7

The Subrecipient shall not engage in research utilizing the information obtained through the performance of
Subaward without the express written consent of DHHS. The term "research” shall mean the investigation,

24




RFP 5995 Z1
Section IV. Payment

analysis, or review of information, other than aggregate statistical information, which is used for purposes
unconnected with this Subaward.

R. SUBRECIPIENTS OR CONTRACTORS UNDER THIS SUBAWARD
Acknowledge NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial)

/

A

In contracting or subawarding any portions of this subaward, Subrecipient shall follow 45 CFR §§ 75.327
through 75.335. If Subrecipient enters into a subaward (as defined by 45 CFR § 75.2) with any non-federal
entity (also as defined by 45 CFR § 75.2) out any portion of this subaward, Subrecipient shall monitor the
subaward as necessary to ensure that the subaward is used for authorized purposes, in compliance with
federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the subaward; that subaward performance
goals are achieved. As applicable, Subrecipient shall follow the requirements for pass-through entities,
including but not limited to 45 CFR § 75.352.

Subrecipient shall maintain copies of all procurement subawards and documentation of its compliance with
the provisions cited above.

Subrecipient shall ensure that all subcontractors and Second Tier Subrecipients comply with all

requirements of this subaward and applicable federal, state, county and municipal laws, ordinances, rules,
and regulations.
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. TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Bidders should complete Sections Il through VI as part of their proposal. Bidder is expected to read the Terms
and Conditions and should initial either accept, reject, or reject and provide alternative language for each clause. The
bidder should also provide an explanation of why the bidder rejected the clause or rejected the clause and provided
alternate language. By signing the RFP, bldder is agreeing to be legally bound by all the accepted terms and
conditions, and any proposed alternative terms and conditions submitted with the proposal. The State reserves the
right to negotiate rejected or proposed alternative language. If the State and bidder fail to agree on the final Terms
and Conditions, the State reserves the right to reject the proposal. The State of Nebraska is soliciting proposals in
response to this RFP. The State of Nebraska reserves the right to reject proposals that attempt to substitute the
bidder's commercial contracts and/or documents for this RFP.

The bidders should submit with their proposal any license, user agreement, service level agreement, or similar
documents that the bidder wants incorporated in the subaward. The State will not consider incorporation of any
document not submitted with the bidder's proposal as the document will not have been included in the evaluation
process. These documents shall be subject to negotiation and will be incorporated as addendums if agreed to by the
Parties.

If a conflict or ambiguity arises after the Addendum to Contract Award have been negotiated and agreed to, the
Addendum to Contract Award shall be interpreted as follows:

1. If only one Party has a particular clause then that clause shall control;
2. If both Parties have a similar clause, but the clauses do not conflict, the clauses shall be read
together;
3. If both Parties have a similar clause, but the clauses conflict, the State’s clause shall control.
A. GENERAL

Accept | Reject | Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within
RFP Response
(Initial)

;

The subaward resulting from this RFP shall incorporate the following documents:

Request for Proposal and Addenda;

Amendments to the RFP;

Questions and Answers;

Subrecipient's proposal (RFP and properly submitted documents);

The executed Contract and Addendum One to Contract, if applicable; and,
Amendments/Addendums to the Contract.

v p

These documents constitute the entirety of the subaward.

Unless otherwise specifically stated in a future contract amendment, in case of any conflict between the
incorporated documents, the documents shall govern in the following order of preference with number one
(1) receiving preference over all other documents and with each lower numbered document having
preference over any higher numbered document: 1) Amendment to the executed Contract with the most
recent dated amendment having the highest priority, 2) executed Contract and any attached Addenda, 3)
Amendments to RFP and any Questions and Answers, 4) the original RFP document and any Addenda, and
5) the Subrecipient’s submitted Proposal.

Any ambiguity or conflict in the contract discovered after its execution, not otherwise addressed herein, shall
be resolved in accordance with the rules of contract interpretation as established in the State of Nebraska.
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NOTIFICATION

Accept
(Initial)

Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | Alternative within .
RFP Response
_(Initial)

PromiseShip’s subaward manager will be identified at the time of contract

/6) ;7/2/ negotiations prior to subaward execution.

E.

Subrecipient and State shall identify the subaward manager who shall serve as the point of contact for the
executed subaward.

Communications regarding the executed subaward shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been
given if delivered personally or mailed, by U.S. Mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to the parties
at their respective addresses set forth below, or at such other addresses as may be specified in writing by
either of the parties. All notices, requests, or communications shall be deemed effective upon personal
delivery or three (3) calendar days following deposit in the mail.

NOTICE (POC)

The State reserves the right to appoint a Buyer's Representative to manage [or assist the Buyer in managing
the subaward on behalf of the State. The Buyer's Representative will be appointed in writing, and the
appointment document will specify the extent of the Buyer's Representative authority and responsibilities. |f
a Buyer's Representative is appointed, the Subreceipient will be provided a copy of the appointment
document, and is expected to cooperate accordingly with the Buyer's Representative. The Buyer's
Representative has no authority to bind the State to a contract, amendment, addendum, or other change or
addition to the Subrecipient.

GOVERNING LAW (Statutory)

Notwithstanding any other provision of this subaward, or any amendment or addendum(s) entered into
contemporaneously or at a later time, the parties understand and agree that, (1) the State of Nebraska is a
sovereign state and its authority to contract is therefore subject to limitation by the State's Constitution,
statutes, common law, and regulation; (2) this subaward will be interpreted and enforced under the laws of
the State of Nebraska; (3) any action to enforce the provisions of this agreement must be brought in the
State of Nebraska per state law; (4) the person signing this subaward on behalf of the State of Nebraska
does not have the authority to waive the State's sovereign immunity, statutes, common law, or regulations;
(5) the indemnity, limitation of liability, remedy, and other similar provisions of the final contract, if any, are
entered into subject to the State's Constitution, statutes, common law, regulations, and sovereign immunity;
and, (6) all terms and conditions of the final subaward, including but not limited to the clauses concerning
third party use, licenses, warranties, limitations of liability, governing law and venue, usage verification,
indemnity, liability, remedy or other similar provisions of the final subaward are entered into specifically
subject to the State's Constitution, statutes, common law, regulations, and sovereign immunity.

The Parties must comply with all applicable local, state and federal laws, ordinances, rules, orders, and
regulations.

BEGINNING OF WORK

Accept
(Initial)

Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | Alternative within
RFP Response
(Initial)

J7

The bidder shall not commence any billable work until a valid subaward has been fully executed by the State
and the successful Subrecipient. The Subreceipient will be notified in writing when work may begin.
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F. CHANGE ORDERS
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
{Initial)

The State and the Subrecipient, upon the written agreement, may make changes to the contract within the
general scope of the RFP. Changes may involve specifications, the quantity of work, or such other items as
the State may find necessary or desirable. Corrections of any deliverable, service, or work required
pursuant to the subaward shall not be deemed a change. The Subrecipient may not claim forfeiture of the
subaward by reasons of such changes.

The Subrecipient shall prepare a written description of the work required due to the change and an itemized
cost sheet for the change. Changes in work and the amount of compensation to be paid to the Subreceipient
shall be determined in accordance with applicable unit prices if any, a pro-rated value, or through
negotiations. The State shall not incur a price increase for changes that should have been included in the
Subrecipient's proposal, were foreseeable, or result from difficulties with or failure of the Subrecipient's
proposal or performance.

No change shall be implemented by the Subrecipient until approved by the State, and the subaward is
amended to reflect the change and associated costs, if any. If there is a dispute regarding the cost, but both
parties agree that immediate implementation is necessary, the change may be implemented, and cost
negotiations may continue with both Parties retaining all remedies under the subaward and law.

G. NOTICE OF POTENTIAL CONTRACTOR BREACH
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
(Initial)

Vi

o

If Subrecipient breaches the subaward or anticipates breaching the subaward, the Subrecipient shall
immediately give written notice to the State. The notice shall explain the breach or potential breach, a
proposed cure, and may include a request for a waiver of the breach if so desired. The State may, in its
discretion, temporarily or permanently waive the breach. By granting a waiver, the State does not forfeit any
rights or remedies to which the State is entitled by law or equity, or pursuant to the provisions of the
subaward. Failure to give immediate notice, however, may be grounds for denial of any request for a waiver
of a breach.

H. BREACH
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS: i
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
(Initial)

L2

Either Party may terminate the contract, in whole or in part, if the other Party breaches its duty to perform its
obligations under the subaward in a timely and proper manner. Termination requires written notice of
default and a thirty (30) calendar day (or longer at the non-breaching Party's discretion considering the
gravity and nature of the default) cure period. Said notice shall be delivered by Certified Mail, Return
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Receipt Requested, or in person with proof of delivery. Allowing time to cure a failure or breach of subaward
does not waive the right to immediately terminate the subaward for the same or different subaward breach
which may occur at a different time. In case of default of the Subrecipient, the State may subaward the
service from other sources and hold the Subrecipient responsible for any excess cost occasioned thereby.
The State’s failure to make payment shall not be a breach, and the Subrecipient shall retain all available
statutory remedies and protections.

NON-WAIVER OF BREACH

Accept
(Initial)

Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | Alternative within
RFP Response
) (Initial)

2

The acceptance of late performance with or without objection or reservation by a Party shall not waive any
rights of the Party nor constitute a waiver of the requirement of timely performance of any obligations
remaining to be performed.

4 REMEDIES FOR NONCOMPLIANCE
Acknowledge NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial)

L7/

DHHS may, if Subrecipient fails to comply with federal statutes, regulations, Title IV-E state plan, or with the
terms of the Subaward:

Impose any of the Specific Conditions listed in 45 CFR § 75.207;

Temporarily withhold any payments pending the correction of the deficiency by Subrecipient;
Disallow all or part of the cost of the activity or action not in compliance;

Wholly or partly suspend or terminate Subaward (see also Termination, below, and Breach, above);
Recommend suspension or debarment proceedings be initiated by the Federal Funding Agency;
and

6. Take any other remedies that may be legally available.

ahON=

If DHHS imposes items 3, 4, or 6, above, DHHS may withhold future payments, or seek repayment to
recoup costs paid by DHHS, or both.

Failures to comply include, but are not limited to, Subrecipient’s inability to meet or exceed the federal
standards contained in FFPSA. If this, or any other failure bySubrecipient to comply with any federal statute,
regulation, Title IV-E state plan, or term of this Subaward, is a proximate cause of any reduction in federal
funds to DHHS, DHHS may disallow costs under this Subaward in an amount up to DHHS’ reduction in
federal funding.

Nothing in this section shall limit any other legal remedies available to DHHS.

K. SEVERABILITY
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/ICOMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
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If any term or condition of the subaward is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in
conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and conditions shall not be affected, and the rights
and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the subaward did not contain the
provision held to be invalid or illegal.

L. INDEMNIFICATION

Accept
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Property is not applicable. All other terms in this section L.
Indemnification are acceptable.

GENERAL

The Subrecipient agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the State and its employees,
volunteers, agents, and its elected and appointed officials (“the indemnified parties”) from and
against any and all third party claims, liens, demands, damages, liability, actions, causes of action,
losses, judgments, costs, and expenses of every nature, including investigation costs and
expenses, settlement costs, and attorney fees and expenses (“the claims”), sustained or asserted
against the State for personal injury, death, or property loss or damage, arising out of, resulting
from, or attributable to the willful misconduct, negligence, error, or omission of the Subrecipient, its
employees, subcontractors, consultants, representatives, and agents, resulting from this subaward,
except to the extent such Subrecipient liability is attenuated by any action of the State which
directly and proximately contributed to the claims.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

The Subrecipient agrees it will, at its sole cost and expense, defend, indemnify, and hold harmless
the indemnified parties from and against any and all claims, to the extent such claims arise out of,
result from, or are attributable to, the actual or alleged infringement or misappropriation of any
patent, copyright, trade secret, trademark, or confidential information of any third party by the
Subrecipient or its employees, subcontractors, Second Tier Subrecipients, consultants,
representatives, and agents; provided, however, the State gives the Subrecipient r prompt notice in
writing of the claim. The Subrecipient may not settle any infringement claim that will affect the
State’s use of the Licensed Software without the State’s prior written consent, which consent may
be withheld for any reason.

If a judgment or settlement is obtained or reasonably anticipated against the State’s use of any
intellectual property for which the Subrecipient has indemnified the State, the Subrecipient shall, at
the Subrecipient's sole cost and expense, promptly modify the item or items which were
determined to be infringing, acquire a license or licenses on the State’s behalf to provide the
necessary rights to the State to eliminate the infringement, or provide the State with a non-
infringing substitute that provides the State the same functionality. At the State’s election, the
actual or anticipated judgment may be treated as a breach of warranty by the Subrecipient, and the
State may receive the remedies provided under this RFP.

PERSONNEL

The Subrecipient shall, at its expense, indemnify and hold harmless the indemnified parties from
and against any claim with respect to withholding taxes, worker's compensation, employee
benefits, or any other claim, demand, liability, damage, or loss of any nature relating to any of the
personnel, including subcontractor's and their employees, and, Second Tier subrecipients and their
employees provided by the Subrecipient.

SELF-INSURANCE

The State of Nebraska is self-insured for any loss and purchases excess insurance coverage
pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 81-8,239.01 (Reissue 2008). If there is a presumed loss under the
provisions of this agreement, Subrecipient may file a claim with the Office of Risk Management
pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 81-8,829 — 81-8,306 for review by the State Claims Board. The
State retains all rights and immunities under the State Miscellaneous (Section 81-8,294), Tort
(Section 81-8,209), and Contract Claim Acts (Section 81-8,302), as outlined in Neb. Rev. Stat. §

The last sentence in the first paragraph under subsection 2. Intellectual




RFP 5995 Z1
Section Il. Terms and Conditions

81-8,209 et seq. and under any other provisions of law and accepts liability under this agreement to
the extent provided by law.

5. The Parties acknowledge that Attorney General for the State of Nebraska is required by statute to
represent the legal interests of the State, and that any provision of this indemnity clause is subject
to the statutory authority of the Attorney General.

M. ATTORNEY'S FEES
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
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In the event of any litigation, appeal, or other legal action to enforce any provision of the subaward, the
Parties agree to pay all expenses of such action, as permitted by law and if order by the court, including
attorney's fees and costs, if the other Party prevails.

N. PERFORMANCE BOND
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within
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The Subrecipient will be required to supply a bond executed by a corporation authorized to contract surety in
the State of Nebraska, payable to the State of Nebraska, which shall be valid for the life of the subaward to
include any renewal and/or extension periods. The amount of the bond must be an established dollar
amount $1,000,000. The bond will guarantee that the Subrecipient will faithfully perform all requirements,
terms and conditions of the subaward. Failure to comply shall be grounds for forfeiture of the bond as
liquidated damages. Amount of forfeiture will be determined by the agency based on loss to the State. The
bond will be returned when the service has been satisfactorily completed as solely determined by the State,
after termination or expiration of the subaward.

0. ASSIGNMENT, SALE, OR MERGER
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
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RFP Response
(Initial)

£

Either Party may assign the subaward upon mutual written agreement of the other Party. Such agreement
shall not be unreasonably withheld.

The Subrecipient retains the right to enter into a sale, merger, acquisition, internal reorganization, or similar
transaction involving Subrecipient’s business. Subrecipient agrees to cooperate with the State in executing
amendments to the subaward to allow for the transaction. If a third party or entity is involved in the
transaction, the Subrecipient will remain responsible for performance of the subaward until such time as the
person or entity involved in the transaction agrees in writing to be contractually bound by this subaward and
perform all obligations of the subaward.
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P. FORCE MAJEURE
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Neither Party shall be liable for any costs or damages, or for default resulting from its inability to perform any
of its obligations under the subaward due to a natural or manmade event outside the control and not the
fault of the affected Party ("Force Majeure Event’). The Party so affected shall immediately make a written
request for relief to the other Party, and shall have the burden of proof to justify the request. The other Party
may grant the relief requested; relief may not be unreasonably withheld. Labor disputes with the impacted
Party's own employees will not be considered a Force Majeure Event.

Q. CONFIDENTIALITY
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within
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All materials and information provided by the Parties or acquired by a Party on behalf of the other Party shall
be regarded as confidential information. All materials and information provided or acquired shall be handled
in accordance with federal and state law, and ethical standards. Should said confidentiality be breached by
a Party, the Party shall notify the other Party immediately of said breach and take immediate corrective
action.

It is incumbent upon the Parties to inform their officers and employees of the penalties for improper
disclosure imposed by the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. 552a. Specifically, 5 U.S.C. 552a (i)}(1), which is
made applicable by 5 U.S.C. 552a (m)(1), provides that any officer or employee, who by virtue of his/her
employment or official position has possession of or access to agency records which contain individually
identifiable information, the disclosure of which is prohibited by the Privacy Act or regulations established
thereunder, and who knowing that disclosure of the specific material is prohibited, willfully discloses the
material in any manner to any person or agency not entitled to receive it, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor
and fined not more than $5,000.

OFFICE OF PUBLIC COUNSEL (Statutory)

If it provides, under the terms of this subaward and on behalf of the State of Nebraska, health and human
services to individuals; service delivery; service coordination; or case management, Subrecipient shall
submit to the jurisdiction of the Office of Public Counsel, pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 81-8,240 et seq.
This section shall survive the termination of this subaward.

LONG-TERM CARE OMBUDSMAN (Statutory)

Subrecipient must comply with the Long-Term Care Ombudsman Act, Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 81-2237 et seq.
This section shall survive the termination of this subaward.
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T. EARLY TERMINATION
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The subaward may be terminated as follows:

1.

The State and the Subrecipient, by mutual written agreement, may terminate the subaward at any
time however, the two parties must agree, in writing, upon the termination conditions, including the
effective date and, in case of partial termination, the portion to be terminated.

The State, in its sole discretion, may terminate the subaward for any reason upon thirty (30)

calendar day's written notice to the Subrecipient. Such termination shall not relieve the

Subrecipient of warranty or other service obligations incurred under the terms of the subaward. In

the event of termination the Subrecipient shall be entitled to payment, determined on a pro rata

basis, for products or services satisfactorily performed or provided.

The State may terminate the subaward immediately for the following reasons:

a. if directed to do so by statute;

b. Subrecipient has made an assignment for the benefit of creditors, has admitted in writing
its inability to pay debts as they mature, or has ceased operating in the normal course of
business;

c. a trustee or receiver of the Subrecipient or of any substantial part of the Subrecipient 's
assets has been appointed by a court;

d. fraud, misappropriation, embezzlement, malfeasance, misfeasance, or illegal conduct
pertaining to performance under the subaward by its Subrecipient, its employees, officers,
directors, or shareholders;

e. an involuntary proceeding has been commenced by any Party against the Subrecipient
under any one of the chapters of Title 11 of the United States Code and (i) the proceeding
has been pending for at least sixty (60) calendar days; or (ii) the Subrecipient has
consented, either expressly or by operation of law, to the entry of an order for relief; or (iii)
the Subrecipient has been decreed or adjudged a debtor;

f. a voluntary petition has been filed by the Contractor under any of the chapters of Title 11
of the United States Code;

g. Subrecipient intentionally discloses confidential information;

h. Subrecipient has or announces it will discontinue support of the deliverable; and,

i. In the event funding is no longer available.

The Subrecipient may terminate the subaward upon sending written notification to DHHS setting
forth the reasons for such termination, the effective date, and, in the case of partial termination, the
portion to be terminated. However, if DHHS determines in the case of partial termination that the
reduced or modified portion of the Subaward will not accomplish the purposes for which the
Federal award was made, DHHS may terminate the Subaward in its entirety. In either case, the
effective date shall be as provided by the Subrecipient and may be no less than 180 (one-hundred
and eighty) days.

All notices of termination must be consistent with 45 CFR § 75.372 and shall provide a notice
period and effective date as set forth in this Subaward.

u. CONTRACT AND GRANT CLOSEOUT
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1. The following closeout procedures apply to this subaward at the end of each federal fiscal year,
except for (a), which shall apply at the end of the federal fiscal year and the end of the subaward
term, and (e), which shall apply at the end of the subaward term only:

a. The Subrecipient shall finalize and pay all costs for services provided under this subaward
as follows:
Term Deadline to Finalize and Pay Obligations
Initial subaward Start date through | November 15, 2019
September 30, 2019
October 1, 2019 through September 30, | November 15, 2020
2020
October 1, 2020 through September 30, | November 15, 2021
2021
October 1, 2021 through September 30, | November 15, 2022
2022
October 1, 2022 through September 30, | November 15, 2023
2023
October 1, 2023 through September 30, | November 15, 2024
2024
October 1, 2024 through September 30, | November 15, 2025
2025
October 1, 2025 through September 30, | November 15, 2026
2026

These deadlines apply to all costs whether paid with state or federal funds, or both. Costs that are
not finalized and paid by these deadlines shall not be reimbursed by DHHS, except that DHHS may
authorize an extension, in writing, of the above deadlines. If DHHS has previously paid for an
incurred cost that has not been finalized and paid by Subrecipient by the applicable deadline,
DHHS may withhold additional payments to recoup that cost.

b. Consistent with the terms of the federal award, and after all reports are received, DHHS
shall make any necessary adjustments upward or downward in the federal share of costs.

c. DHHS shall make prompt payments, as consistent with the terms set forth herein, for all
costs allowable under the terms of this Subaward.

d. Subrecipient shall immediately return to DHHS any unobligated balance of cash advanced
or shall manage such balance in accordance with DHHS instructions.

e. Within 30 days, except as otherwise stated herein, Subrecipient shall assist and cooperate

in the orderly transition and transfer of subaward activities and operations with the
objective of preventing disruption of services. This includes but is not limited to:

Transfer all completed or partially completed deliverables to the State;

Transfer ownership and title to all completed or partially completed deliverables
to the State;

Return to the State all information and data, unless the Subrecipient is permitted
to keep the information or data by contract or rule of law. Contractor may retain
one copy of any information or data as required to comply with applicable work
product documentation standards or as are automatically retained in the course
of Subrecipient’s routine back up procedures;

iv. Cooperate with any successor Subrecipient, person or entity in the assumption of
any or all of the obligations of this subaward;
V. Cooperate with any successor Subrecipient, person or entity with the transfer of
information or data related to this subaward
vi. Return or vacate any state owned real or personal property; and
vii. Return all data in a mutually acceptable format and manner.
2. Post-Closeout Adjustments and Continuing Responsibilities. The closeout of the subaward does
not affect any of the following:
a. The right of DHHS to disallow costs and recover funds on the basis of a later audit or

other review. DHHS shall make any cost disallowance determination and notify
Subrecipient within the record retention period.
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The obligation of Contractor to return any funds due as a result of later refunds,
corrections, or other transactions including final indirect cost rate adjustments.

Audit requirements in 45 CFR § 75 Subpart F.

As applicable, property management and disposition requirements in Subpart D—Post
Federal Award Requirements in 45 CFR §§ 75.317 through 75.323.

Records retention requirements contained herein.

10
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. CONTRACTOR DUTIES

A. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR / OBLIGATIONS
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
) (Initial)
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It is agreed that the Subrecipient is an independent contractor and that nothing contained herein is intended
or should be construed as creating or establishing a relationship of employment, agency, or a partnership.

The Subrecipient is solely responsible for fulfiling the subaward. The Subrecipient or the Subrecipient’s
representative shall be the sole point of subaward regarding all contractual matters.

The Subrecipient shall secure, at its own expense, all personnel required to perform the services under the
subaward. The personnel the Subrecipient uses to fulfill the subaward shall have no contractual or other
legal relationship with the State; they shall not be considered employees of the State and shall not be
entitled to any compensation, rights or benefits from the State, including but not limited to, tenure rights,
medical and hospital care, sick and vacation leave, severance pay, or retirement benefits.

By-name personnel commitments made in the Subrecipient’s proposal shall not be changed without the prior
written approval of the State. Replacement of these personnel, if approved by the State, shall be with
personnel of equal or greater ability and qualifications. '

All personnel assigned by the Subrecipient to the subaward shall be employees of the Subrecipient, a
Second Tier Subrecipient or a subcontractor, and shall be fully qualified to perform the work required herein.
Personnel employed by the Subrecipient, Second Tier Subrecipient, or a subcontractor to fulfill the terms of
the subaward shall remain under the sole direction and control of the Subrecipient, Second Tier
Subrecipient, or the subcontractor respectively.

With respect to its employees, the Subrecipient agrees to be solely responsible for the following:

2. Any and all pay, benefits, and employment taxes and/or other payroll withholding;

3. Any and all vehicles used by the Subrecipient 's employees, including all insurance required by
state law,

4, Damages incurred by Subrecipient 's employees within the scope of their duties under the
subaward;

5. Maintaining Workers’ Compensation and health insurance that complies with state and federal law
and submitting any reports on such insurance to the extent required by governing law;

6. Determining the hours to be worked and the duties to be performed by the Subrecipient s
employees; and,

7 All claims on behalf of any person arising out of employment or alleged employment (including

without limit claims of discrimination alleged against the Subrecipient , its officers, agents, or
subcontractors or subcontractor's employees)

If the Subrecipient intends to utilize any subcontractor, the subcontractor's level of effort, tasks, and time
allocation should be clearly defined in the bidder's proposal. The Subrecipient shall agree that it will not
utilize any subcontractors not specifically included in its proposal in the performance of the contract without
the prior written authorization of the State.

The State reserves the right to require the Subrecipient to reassign or remove from the project any
Subrecipient or subcontractor employee.

Subrecipient shall insure that the terms and conditions contained in any subaward or contract with a Second
Tier Subrecipient or subcontractor does not conflict with the terms and conditions of this subaward.

11
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The Subrecipient shall include a similar provision, for the protection of the State, in the subaward with any
subcontractor engaged to perform work on this Subrecipient .

EMPLOYEE WORK ELIGIBILITY STATUS

Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | Alternative within
RFP Response
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The Subrecipient is required and hereby agrees to use a federal immigration verification system to
determine the work eligibility status of employees physically performing services within the State of
Nebraska. A federal immigration verification system means the electronic verification of the work
authorization program authorized by the lllegal Immigration Reform and Immigrant Responsibility Act of
1996, 8 U.S.C. 1324a, known as the E-Verify Program, or an equivalent federal program designated by the
United States Department of Homeland Security or other federal agency authorized to verify the work
eligibility status of an employee.

If the Subrecipient is an individual or sole proprietorship, the following applies:

1. The Subrecipient must complete the United States Citizenship Attestation Form, available on the
Department of Administrative Services website at http://das.nebraska.gov/materiel/purchasing.html

The completed United States Attestation Form should be submitted with the RFP response.

2. If the Subrecipient indicates on such attestation form that he or she is a qualified alien, the
Subrecipient agrees to provide the US Citizenship and Immigration Services documentation
required to verify the Subrecipient's lawful presence in the United States using the Systematic Alien
Verification for Entitlements (SAVE) Program.

3. The Subrecipient understands and agrees that lawful presence in the United States is required and
the Subrecipient may be disqualified or the contract terminated if such lawful presence cannot be
verified as required by Neb. Rev. Stat. §4-108.

COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT /
NONDISCRIMINATION (Statutory)

The Subrecipient shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal statutes and regulations regarding
civil rights laws and equal opportunity employment. The Nebraska Fair Employment Practice Act prohibits
Subrecipients of the State of Nebraska, and their subcontractors, from discriminating against any employee
or applicant for employment, with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions, compensation, or privileges of
employment because of race, color, religion, sex, disability, marital status, or national origin (Neb. Rev. Stat.
§48-1101 to 48-1125). The Subrecipient guarantees compliance with the Nebraska Fair Employment
Practice Act, and breach of this provision shall be regarded as a material breach of subaward. The
Subrecipient shall insert a similar provision in all subcontracts for services to be covered by any subaward /
contract resulting from this RFP.

The Subrecipient shall comply with all civil rights and nondiscrimination law in the provision of the services

under this Subaward. This includes, but is not limited to:

1. The Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq.;

2. Federal regulations governing programs and services provided under grants from the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) at: 45 CFR § 75.300; 45 CFR §§ 80 et seq.
(nondiscrimination under programs receiving or benefitting from assistance through HHS); 45 CFR
8§ 84 et seq. (nondiscrimination on the basis of handicap in HHS programs or activities receiving
federal financial assistance); 45 CFR §§ 86 et seq. {(nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in
education programs and activities receiving or benefitting from federal financial assistance); 45
CFR §§ 87 et seq. (Equal Treatment for Faith-Based Organizations); and 45 CFR §§ 91 et seq.
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(nondiscrimination on the basis of age in HHS programs or activities receiving federal financial

assistance).
D. COOPERATION WITH OTHER CONTRACTORS
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Subrecipient may be required to work with or in close proximity to other contractors or individuals that may
be working on same or different projects. The Subrecipient shall agree to cooperate with such other
contractors or individuals, and shall not commit or permit any act which may interfere with the performance
of work by any other contractor or individual. Subrecipient is not required to compromise Subrecipient’s
intellectual property or proprietary information unless expressly required to do so by this subaward.

E. PERMITS, REGULATIONS, LAWS
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The subaward price shall include the cost of all royalties, licenses, permits, and approvals, whether arising
from patents, trademarks, copyrights or otherwise, that are in any way involved in the contract. The
Subrecipient shall obtain and pay for all royalties, licenses, and permits, and approvals necessary for the
execution of the subaward. The Subrecipient must guarantee that it has the full legal right to the materials,
supplies, equipment, software, and other items used to execute this contract.

F. OWNERSHIP OF INFORMATION AND DATA / DELIVERABLES
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1. Data. DHHS shall own all rights in data resulting from this Subaward. The Federal Funding Agency
reserves the right to obtain, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use the data produced under this
subaward, and to authorize others to receive, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use such data for
federal purposes. i

2, Copyright. As consistent with federal law, Subrecipient may copyright any of the copyrightable
material and may patent any of the patentable products produced in conjunction with the Scope of
Work under subaward without written consent from DHHS. DHHS and any Federal Funding
Agency hereby reserve a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or
otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, the copyrightable material for federal or state
government purposes.

3. Patent. All patent rights under this subaward shall be as set forth in the clause contained in 37
C.F.R. § 401.14, and consistent with all other applicable federal law.
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G. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
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The Subrecipient shall throughout the term of the contract maintain insurance as specified herein and
provide the State a current Certificate of Insurance/Acord Form (COl) verifying the coverage. The
Subrecipient shall not commence work on the subaward until the insurance is in place. If Subrecipient
subcontracts or subawards any portion of the contract the Subrecipient must, throughout the term of the
contract / subaward, either:

1. Provide equivalent insurance for each subcontractor / Second Tier Subrecipient and provide a COI
verifying the coverage for the subcontractor / Second Tier Subrecipient;
2. Require each subcontractor / Second Tier Subrecipient to have equivalent insurance and provide

written notice to the State that the Subrecipient has verified that each subcontractor / Second Tier
Subrecipient has the required coverage; or,
3. Provide the State with copies of each subcontractor's / Second Tier Subrecipient’s Certificate of
Insurance evidencing the required coverage.
The Subrecipient shall not allow any subcontractor / Second Tier Subrecipient to commence work until the
subcontractor / second tier subrecipient has equivalent insurance. The failure of the State to require a COlI,
or the failure of the Subrecipient to provide a COIl or require subcontractor / Second Tier Subrecipient
insurance shall not limit, relieve, or decrease the liability of the Subrecipient hereunder.

In the event that any policy written on a claims-made basis terminates or is canceled during the term of the
subaward or within three (3)years of termination or expiration of the subaward, the Contractor shall obtain an
extended discovery or reporting period, or a new insurance policy, providing coverage required by this
contract for the term of the contract and three (3)years following termination or expiration of the contract.

If by the terms of any insurance a mandatory deductible is required, or if the Subrecipient elects to increase
the mandatory deductible amount, the Subrecipient shall be responsible for payment of the amount of the
deductible in the event of a paid claim.

Notwithstanding any other clause in this subaward, the State may recover up to the liability limits -of the
insurance policies required herein.

1. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION INSURANCE

The Subrecipient shall take out and maintain during the life of this contract the statutory Workers'
Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance for all of the Subrecipient's employees to be
engaged in work on the project under this subaward and, in case any such work is sublet, the
Subrecipient shall require the subcontractor / Second Tier Subrecipient similarly to provide
Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance for all of the subcontractor's / Second
Tier Subrecipient’'s employees to be engaged in such work. This policy shall be written to meet the
statutory requirements for the state in which the work is to be performed, including Occupational
Disease. The policy shall include a waiver of subrogation in favor of the State. The COI
shall contain the mandatory COl subrogation waiver language found hereinafter. The
amounts of such insurance shall not be less than the limits stated hereinafter. For employees
working in the State of Nebraska, the policy must be written by an entity authorized by the State of
Nebraska Department of Insurance to write Workers’ Compensation and Employer's Liability
Insurance for Nebraska employees.

4, COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE AND COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE
LIABILITY INSURANCE
The Subrecipient shall take out and maintain during the life of this contract such Commercial
General Liability Insurance and Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance as shall protect
Subrecipient and any subcontractor / Second Tier Subrecipient performing work covered by this
subaward from claims for damages for bodily injury, including death, as well as from claims for
property damage, which may arise from operations under this contract, whether such operation be
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by the Subrecipientor by any subcontractor / Second Tier Subrecipient, or by anyone directly or
indirectly employed by either of them, and the amounts of such insurance shall not be less than
limits stated hereinafter.

The Commercial General Liability Insurance shall be written on an occurrence basis, and provide
Premises/Operations, Products/Completed Operations, Independent Contractors, Personal Injury,
and Contractual Liability coverage. The policy shall include the State, and others as required
by the contract documents, as Additional Insured(s). This policy shall be primary, and any
insurance or self-insurance carried by the State shall be considered secondary and non-
contributory. The COI shall contain the mandatory COI liability waiver language found
hereinafter. The Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance shall be written to cover all Owned,
Non-owned, and Hired vehicles.

REQUIRED INSURANCE COVERAGE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

General Aggregate $2,000,000
Products/Completed Operations $2,000,000
Aggregate

Personal/Advertising Injury

$1,000,000 per occurrence

Bodily Injury/Property Damage

$1.,000,000 per occurrence

Medical Payments

$10,000 any one person

Damage to Rented Premises (Fire)

$300,000 each occurrence

Contractual Included
Independent Contractors Included
Abuse & Molestation Included

If higher limits are required, the Umbrella/Excess
limit.

Liability limits are allowed to satisfy the higher

WORKER’S COMPENSATION

Employers Liability Limits $500K/$500K/$500K
Statutory Limits- All States . Statutory - State of Nebraska
Voluntary Compensation Statutory

COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Bodily Injury/Property Damage

$1,000,000 combined single limit

Include All Owned, Hired & Non-Owned
Automobile liability

Included

Motor Carrier Act Endorsement

Where Applicable

UMBRELLA/EXCESS LIABILITY

Over Primary Insurance

| $5,000,000 per occurrence

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY

All Other Professional Liability (Errors &
Omissions)

$1,000,000 Per Claim / Aggregate

COMMERCIAL CRIME

Crime/Employee Dishonesty Including 3rd
Party Fidelity

$1,000,000

CYBER LIABILITY

Breach of Privacy, Security Breach, Denial
of Service, Remediation, Fines and
Penalties

$5,000,000

MANDATORY COI SUBROGATION WAIVER LANGUAGE

“Workers' Compensation policy shall include a waiver of subrogation in favor of the State of
Nebraska.”

MANDATORY COI LIABILITY WAIVER LANGUAGE

“Commercial General Liability & Commercial Automobile Liability policies shall name the State of
Nebraska as an Additional Insured and the policies shall be primary and any insurance or self-
insurance carried by the State shall be considered secondary and non-contributory as
additionally insured.”

If the mandatory COIl subrogation waiver language or mandatory COI liability waiver language on
the COI states that the waiver is subject to, condition upon, or otherwise limit by the insurance
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policy, a copy of the relevant sections of the policy must be submitted with the COI so the State can
review the limitations imposed by the insurance policy.

5. EVIDENCE OF COVERAGE
The Subrecipient shall furnish the Contract Manager, with a certificate of insurance coverage
complying with the above requirements prior to beginning work at:
Department of Health and Human Services
Attn: DHHS Service Area Administrator
301 Centennial Mall South
Lincoln, NE 68508
These certificates or the cover sheet shall reference the RFP number, and the certificates shall
include the name of the company, policy numbers, effective dates, dates of expiration, and
amounts and types of coverage afforded. If the State is damaged by the failure of the Contractor to
maintain such insurance, then the Subrecipient shall be responsible for all reasonable costs
properly attributable thereto.
Reasonable notice of cancellation of any required insurance policy must be submitted to the
contract manager as listed above when issued and a new coverage binder shall be submitted
immediately to ensure no break in coverage.
6. DEVIATIONS
The insurance requirements are subject to limited negotiation. Negotiation typically includes, but is
not necessarily limited to, the correct type of coverage, necessity for Workers’ Compensation, and
the type of automobile coverage carried by the Subrecipient .
H. ANTITRUST
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within
RFP Response
/ (Initial)

M//

The Subrecipient hereby assigns to the State any and all claims for overcharges as to goods and/or services
provided in connection with this contract resulting from antitrust violations which arise under antitrust laws of
the United States and the antitrust laws of the State.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Accept
(Initial)

L

Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
(Initial)

T

By submitting a proposal, bidder certifies that there does not now exist a relationship between the bidder
and any person or entity which is or gives the appearance of a conflict of interest related to this RFP or

project.

The bidder certifies that it shall not take any action or acquire any interest, either directly or indirectly, which
will conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of its services hereunder or which creates an
actual or an appearance of conflict of interest.

The bidder certifies that it will not knowingly employ any individual known by bidder to have a conflict of

interest.
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The Parties shall not knowingly, for a period of two years after execution of the subaward, recruit or employ
any employee or agent of the other Party who has worked on the RFP or project, or who had any influence
on decisions affecting the RFP or project.

J. STATE PROPERTY
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

) RFP Response
A (Initial)

st

The Subrecipient shall be responsible for the proper care and custody of any State-owned property which is
furnished for the Subrecipient's use during the performance of the contract. The Subrecipient shall
reimburse the State for any loss or damage of such property; normal wear and tear is expected.

K. SITE RULES AND REGULATIONS
Accept | Reject | Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
(Initial)

o !

The Subrecipient shall use its best efforts to ensure that its employees, agents, and subcontractors comply
with site rules and regulations while on State premises. If the Subrecipient must perform on-site work
outside of the daily operational hours set forth by the State, it must make arrangements with the State to
ensure access to the facility and the equipment has been arranged. No additional payment will be made by
the State on the basis of lack of access, unless the State fails to provide access as agreed to in writing
between the State and the Subrecipient .

L. ADVERTISING
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
(Initial)

i

The Subrecipient agrees not to refer to the contract award in advertising in such a manner as to state or
imply that the company or its services are endorsed or preferred by the State. Any publicity releases
pertaining to the project shall not be issued without prior written approval from the State.

NEBRASKA TECHNOLOGY ACCESS STANDARDS (Statutory)

Subrecipient shall review the Nebraska Technology Access Standards, found at
http://nitc.nebraska.gov/standards/2-201.html and ensure that products and/or services provided under the
subaward are in compliance or will comply with the applicable standards to the greatest degree possible. In
the event such standards change during the Subrecipient 's performance, the State may create an
amendment to the subaward to request the contract comply with the changed standard at a cost mutually
acceptable to the parties.
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N. DISASTER RECOVERY/BACK UP PLAN

Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within
RFP Response
7z (Initial)

A

The Subrecipient shall have a disaster recovery and back-up plan, of which a copy should be provided upon
request to the State, which includes, but is not limited to equipment, personnel, facilities, and transportation,
in order to continue services as specified under the specifications in the contract in the event of a disaster.

0. DRUG POLICY

Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

/ (Initial)

RFP Response
£

Subrecipient certifies it maintains a drug free work place environment to ensure worker safety and workplace

integrity. Subrecipient agrees to provide a copy of its drug free workplace policy at any time upon request
by the State.
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Iv. PAYMENT
A. COSTS
Under this subaward, DHHS shall only pay for actual and allowable costs (as defined in this section)
incurred during the term of this subaward.
To be allowable, all costs must be:
i. Necessary for the performance of the subaward activities;
ii. Reasonable, as provided in 45 CFR § 75.404;
iii. Allocable to the federal award, as provided in 45 CFR § 75.405;
iv. Consistent with all other requirements of the Cost Principles in 45 CFR §§ 75 Subpart E;
and,
v. Consistent with all other law, regulation, policy, or other requirements applicable to the
state or federal funds involved.
To be actual, all costs must be finalized and spent by the appropriate dates set forth in Section 1l.U. Contract
and Grant Closeout, and as otherwise set forth herein. This may include, but is not limited to, restrictions on
funds including in federal appropriations bills for the federal funds used in this subaward.
Any requirements applicable to the federal funds shall also be applied to the state funds involved in this
subaward.
Per federal law, no profit may be made from this subaward. See 45 CFR § 75.400.
B. TAXES (Statutory)
The State is not required to pay taxes and assumes no such liability as a result of this solicitation. Any
property tax payable on the Subrecipient 's equipment which may be installed in a state-owned facility is the
responsibility of the Subrecipient.
C. INVOICES
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
(Initial)

v

Invoices for payments must be submitted by the Subrecipient to the agency requesting the services with
sufficient detail to support payment. Subrecipient’s invoice shall include the agency’'s name, address,
contact phone number, date of invoice, and date of service. Invoices should be sent to DHHS Children and
Family Services 301 Centennial Mall S. Lincoln, NE 68509. The terms and conditions included in the
Subrecipient's invoice shall be deemed to be solely for the convenience of the parties. No terms or
conditions of any such invoice shall be binding upon the State, and no action by the State, including without
limitation the payment of any such invoice in whole or in part, shall be construed as binding or estopping the
State with respect to any such term or condition, unless the invoice term or condition has been previously
agreed to by the State as an amendment to the subaward.

D. INSPECTION AND APPROVAL
Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
(Initial)

24

Final inspection and approval of all work required under the subaward shall be performed by the designated
State officials.
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The State and/or its authorized representatives shall have the right to enter any premises where the
Subrecipient, Second Tier Subrecipient, or subcontractor duties under the subaward are being performed,
and to inspect, monitor or otherwise evaluate the work being performed. All inspections and evaluations
shall be at reasonable times and in a manner that will not unreasonably delay work.

E. PAYMENT

Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:

(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
7 (Initial)
74 / The last citation in this section E. Payment should be 45 CFR § 75:305 (b)
2 (6).

State will render payment to Subrecipient monthly when the terms and conditions of the subaward and
specifications have been satisfactorily completed on the part of the Subrecipient as solely determined by the
State. (Neb. Rev. Stat. §73-506(1)) Payment will be made by the responsible agency in compliance with
the State of Nebraska Prompt Payment Act (See Neb. Rev. Stat. §81-2401 through 81-2408). The State
may require the Subrecipient to accept payment by electronic means such as ACH deposit. In no event shall
the State be responsible or liable to pay for any services provided by the Subrecipient prior to the Effective
Date of the subaward, and the Subrecipient hereby waives any claim or cause of action for any such
services.
Payments may be withheld as set forth in 45 CFR § 75.305(a)(6), as amended from time to time, as
otherwise provided herein, or according to other applicable law.

F. LATE PAYMENT (Statutory)
The Subrecipient may charge the responsible agency interest for late payment in compliance with the State
of Nebraska Prompt Payment Act (See Neb. Rev. Stat. §81-2401 through 81-2408).

G. SUBJECT TO FUNDING / FUNDING OUT CLAUSE FOR LOSS OF APPROPRIATIONS

Accept | Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:

(Initial) | (Initial) | Alternative within

RFP Response
(Initial)

The State’s obligation to pay amounts due on the subaward for a fiscal years following the current fiscal year
is contingent upon legislative appropriation of funds. Should said funds not be appropriated, the State may
terminate the subaward with respect to those payments for the fiscal year(s) for which such funds are not
appropriated. The State will give the Subrecipient written notice thirty (30) calendar days prior to the
effective date of termination. All obligations of the State to make payments after the termination date will
cease. The Subrecipient shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any authorized
work which has been satisfactorily completed as of the termination date for noncancelable obligations
properly incurred by Subrecipient prior to termination, and costs incurred on, or prior to, the termination date.

H. ACCESS TO RECORDS
Acknowledge NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial)

<L

wd
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Subrecipient shall provide access for DHHS, or its authorized representative, to any documents, papers, or
other records pertinent to Subaward, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. The
Subrecipient shall provide the same access to the Federal Funding Agency, the Inspectors General, the
Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives. These rights also
includes timely and reasonable access to Subrecipient's personnel for the purpose of interview and
discussion related to such documents, papers or other records. These rights are not limited to the retention
periods included herein but continue as long as the records are retained by Subrecipient.

Subrecipient shall comply with all federal retention requirements as amended from time to time and shall
maintain all financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other records pertinent to
Subaward, for three (3) years from the date of submission of the final financial report, as provided in Section
V.M. .Reporting Requirements.

In addition to the foregoing retention periods, all records must be retained as specified in 45 CFR §§ 75.361
(a) through (f), as applicable. This includes, but is not limited to: if any litigation, claim, or audit is started
before the expiration of the three (3) year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, or
audit findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken.

Records that fall under the provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) and
all associated rules and regulations, including but not limited to the policies and procedures identified in 45
CFR § 164.316, shall be maintained for six (6) years from the date of their creation or date when the policy
or procedures were last in effect.

AUDIT REQUIREMENTS

Accept
(Initial)

Reject Reject & Provide | NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) | Alternative within
RFP Response
(Initial)

ot

The Subrecipient shall comply with all applicable federal audit requirements, including but not limited to
those in 45 CFR § 75 Subpart F; an audit required by these regulations must be prepared and issued by an
independent auditor in accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards. A copy of the
audit is to be made electronically available or sent to: Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services,
Financial Services, and P.O. Box 95026, Lincoln, NE 68509-5026.

Subrecipient shall comply with 45 CFR §§ 75.508 through 75.512, including but not limited to: (a) procure or
otherwise arrange for the audit required by this part in accordance with § 75.509, and ensure it is properly
performed and submitted when due in accordance with § 75.512; (b) prepare appropriate financial
statements, including the schedule of expenditures of Federal awards in accordance with § 75.510; (c)
promptly follow up and take corrective action on audit findings, including preparation of a summary schedule
of prior audit findings and a corrective action plan in accordance with § 75.511; (d) provide the auditor with
access to personnel, accounts, books, records, supporting documentation, and other information as needed
for the auditor to perform the audit required by law.

In addition to, and in no way in limitation of any obligation in this Subaward, Subrecipient shall be liable for
audit exceptions, and shall return to DHHS all payments made under this Subaward for which an exception
has been taken or that has been disallowed because of such an exception, upon demand from DHHS.

The Subrecipient shall maintain its accounting records in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. DHHS reserves the right to require Subrecipient to submit required financial reports on the
accrual basis of accounting. If Subrecipient's records are not normally kept on the accrual basis,
Subrecipient is not required to convert its accounting system but shall develop and submit in a timely
manner such accrual information through an analysis of the documentation on hand (such as accounts
payable).
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J. FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
Acknowledge NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial) /

/@/w’

The Subrecipient shall comply with all applicable provisions of 45 C.F.R. §§ 87.1-87.2. The Subrecipient
certifies that it shall not use direct federal financial assistance to engage in inherently religious activities,
such as worship, religious instruction, and/or proselytization.

K. SMOKE FREE PROVISIONS
Acknowledge NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial)

&

SMOKE FREE. Public Law 103-227, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 (Act), requires that
smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or contracted for by an entity
and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, early childhood development services,
education or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs
either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.
The law also applies to children's services that are provided in indoor facilities that are constructed,
operated, or maintained with such federal funds. The law does not apply to children's services provided in
private residences; portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment; service providers whose
sole source of applicable Federal funds in Medicare or Medicaid; or facilities where WIC coupons are
redeemed. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary
penalty of up to $1000 for each violation and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the
responsible entity. The Subrecipient certifies that the Subrecipient will comply with the requirements of the
Act and will not allow smoking within any portion of any indoor facility used for the provision of services for
children as defined by the Act.

L. HUMAN TRAFFICKING PROVISIONS
Acknowledge NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial)

77

The Subrecipient shall comply with and be subject to the requirements of the Trafficking Victims Protection
Act of 2000, 22 USC §§ 7101 et seq.

The Subrecipient, its employees, any subcontractors or Second Tier Subrecipients under this award, and
Second Tier Subrecipients' or subcontractors' employees may not:

1. Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time that the award is in effect;
2. Procure a commercial sex act during the period of time that the award is in effect; or
3. Use forced labor in the performance of the subaward.
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Acknowledge

(Initial) /

NOTES/COMMENTS:

r

No federal or state funds paid under this Subaward shall be paid for any lobbying costs as set forth

herein.

Lobbying Prohibited by 31 U.S.C. § 1352 and 45 CFR §§ 93 et seq, and Required Disclosures.

Subrecipient certifies that no federal or state appropriated funds shall be paid, by or on
behalf of Subrecipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this award for: (a) the awarding
of any federal agreement; (b) the making of any federal grant; (c) the entering into of any
cooperative agreement; and (d) the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any federal agreement, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

If any funds, other than federal appropriated funds, have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence: an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with Subaward, Subrecipient shall complete and submit Federal
Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its
instructions.

Lobbying Activities Prohibited under Federal Appropriations Bills.

a.

No funds under Subaward shall be used, other than for normal and recognized executive-
legislative relationships, for publicity or propaganda purposes, for the preparation,
distribution, or use of any kit, pamphlet, booklet, publication, electronic communication,
radio, television, or video presentation designed to support or defeat the enactment of
legislation before the Congress or any State or local legislature or legislative body, except
in presentation of the Congress or any State or local legislature itself, or designed to
support or defeat any proposed or pending regulation, administrative action, or order
issued by the executive branch of any state or local government itself.

No funds under this Subaward shall be used to pay the salary or expenses of any grant or
subaward recipient, or agent acting for such recipient, related to any activity designed to
influence the enactment of legislation, appropriations, regulation, administrative action, or
Executive order proposed or pending before the Congress or any State government, State
legislature or local legislature or legislative body, other than normal and recognized
executive legislative relationships or participation by an agency or officer of an State, local
or tribal government in policymaking and administrative processes within the executive
branch of that government.

The prohibitions in the two sections immediately above shall include any activity to
advocate or promote any proposed, pending or future federal, state or local tax increase,
or any proposed, pending, or future requirement or restriction on any legal consumer
product, including its sale of marketing, including but not limited to the advocacy or
promotion of gun control.

Lobbying Costs Unallowable Under the Cost Principles. In addition to the above, no funds shall be
paid for executive lobbying costs as set forth in 45 CFR § 75.450(b). |f Subrecipient is a nonprofit
organization or an Institute of Higher Education, other costs of lobbying are also unallowable as set
forth in 45 CFR § 75.450(c).
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N. MANDATORY DISCLOSURES
Acknowledge NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial)

WP

The Subrecipient must disclose to the State, in a timely manner and in writing, all violations of Federal
criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting this subaward in accordance
with 2 CFR §200.113. Failure to make required disclosures can result in any of the remedies described in
§200.338 Remedies for noncompliance, including suspension or debarment. (See also 2 CFR part 180 and
31 U.S.C. 3321).

0. PUBLICATIONS
Acknowledge NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial)

£y

Subrecipient must acknowledge federal and DHHS funding when issuing statements, press releases,
requests for proposals, bid invitations, and other documents describing projects or programs funded in
whole or in part with federal and DHHS funds. Subrecipient is required to state: (1) the percentage and
dollar amounts of the total program or project costs financed with federal and DHHS funds; and (2) the
percentage and dollar amount of the total costs financed by nongovernmental sources.

P, DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION OR DECLARED INELIGIBLE
Acknowledge NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial)

4

Q.

The Subrecipient certifies that neither it nor its principals are debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any state or federal
department or agency. The Subrecipient certifies that it is registered with the System of Award Management
(SAM) (https://www.sam.gov), in good standing, and that the entity will maintain annual certification in
accordance with Federal Acquisition Regulations. Failure to comply with this section, including maintaining
an active registration and/or good standing with SAM, may result in withholding of payments or immediate
termination of the subaward.

RESEARCH

Acknowledge NOTES/COMMENTS:

(Initial)

el

o

/%

The Subrecipient shall not engage in research utilizing the information obtained through the performance of
Subaward without the express written consent of DHHS. The term "research" shall mean the investigation,
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analysis, or review of information, other than aggregate statistical information, which is used for purposes
unconnected with this Subaward.

R. SUBRECIPIENTS OR CONTRACTORS UNDER THIS SUBAWARD
Acknowledge NOTES/COMMENTS:
(Initial)

4

&

In contracting or subawarding any portions of this subaward, Subrecipient shall follow 45 CFR §§ 75.327
through 75.335. If Subrecipient enters into a subaward (as defined by 45 CFR § 75.2) with any non-federal
entity (also as defined by 45 CFR § 75.2) out any portion of this subaward, Subrecipient shall monitor the
subaward as necessary to ensure that the subaward is used for authorized purposes, in compliance with
federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the subaward; that subaward performance
goals are achieved. As applicable, Subrecipient shall follow the requirements for pass-through entities,
including but not limited to 45 CFR § 75.352.

Subrecipient shall maintain copies of all procurement subawards and documentation of its compliance with
the provisions cited above.

Subrecipient shall ensure that all subcontractors and Second Tier Subrecipients comply with all

requirements of this subaward and applicable federal, state, county and municipal laws, ordinances, rules,
and regulations.
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CORPORATE OVERVIEW: CO-1

Req # Requirement Comply
CO-1 The bidder should provide financial statements applicable to the firm. If publicly held, X
the bidder should provide a copy of the corporation's most recent audited financial
reports and statements, and the name, address, and telephone number of the fiscally
responsible representative of the bidder’s financial or banking organization.

If the bidder is not a publicly held corporation, either the reports and statements
required of a publicly held corporation, or a description of the organization, including
size, longevity, client base, areas of specialization and expertise, and any other
pertinent information, should be submitted in such a manner that proposal evaluators
may reasonably formulate a determination about the stability and financial strength of
the organization. Additionally, a non-publicly held firm should provide a banking
reference.

The bidder must disclose any and all judgments, pending or expected litigation, or
other real or potential financial reversals, which might materially affect the viability or
stability of the organization, or state that no such condition is known to exist.

BIDDER’S RESPONSE:

Includes references to the following subdivisions in Section V. Project Description and Scope of Work:
e H. Financial Requirements

Financial Statements

PromiseShip is nonprofit corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Nebraska,
and as such is not a publicly held corporation. PromiseShip will continue to provide DHHS with financial
statements for review on a monthly basis. Financial statements will include a balance sheet, income
statement, statement of cash flows, accounts payable aging report, and reconciliation of accrued
expenses to the balance sheet.

Providing monthly financial statements will allow DHHS to monitor the financial position of PromiseShip
and the case management subaward, as well as allow DHHS to gain insight into operational issues and
changes uncovered by analyzing financial data.

One of the primary benefits provided by child welfare privatization is financial transparency.
PromiseShip financial statements will include all costs in one statement, giving transparency to both
expenditures and revenue. Administrative and salary expenses are paid from one cost center, making it
easy to separate child welfare from other types of expenses and see the true cost of providing case
management.
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With transparency comes accountability, which is crucial to an organization being a good steward of all
State and Federal funds. All PromiseShip financial information will be backed by supporting
documentation, which DHHS will be able to review and determine the reasonableness and
appropriateness of each expenditure.

Regular financial reporting benefits DHHS, PromiseShip, and subcontractors of our provider network.
Monthly review of detailed financial data during the development of financial statements allows the
organization to see red flags that might be indicators of problems with spending, billing, or payment.
The financial data used to produce statements for DHHS is also used to review and improve operations.

Financial data is not relevant unless it is timely and user-friendly. PromiseShip will continue its practice
of submitting financial statements to DHHS within 30 days of month-end to provide the most accurate
data as early as possible. Specifically, PromiseShip will provide the following financial statements to
DHHS each month:

e The Statement of Financial Position: This statement provides a snapshot of PromiseShip’s finances
as a whole on the last day of each month. By reviewing this document, DHHS will have an overview
of PromiseShip’s financial condition as of the date of the statement. Furthermore, PromiseShip
believes that the best way to maintain good relationships with providers is to make every effort to
ensure that they receive their payments in a timely manner, and we agree that a monthly accounts
payable aging report allows DHHS to review PromiseShip’s performance related to provider
payment. Therefore, PromiseShip will provide DHHS with an Accounts Payable Aging Report by
provider with payables divided into amounts aged 0-29, 30-59, 60-89, 90-119, and 120+ days. The
detailed aging report is reconciled to the payables balance on the Statement of Financial Position
every month.

e The Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets (i.e., Income Statement): This
statement provides a summary of the financial activity throughout the year. By reviewing this
document, DHHS will have a high-level overview of expenses and revenues with sufficient detail to
see which expenses may have been higher or lower than expected. It will also provide information
about population changes reflected through revenue and expense activity. PromiseShip will produce
two versions of this statement in order to provide a comprehensive overview for DHHS, which
includes: 1) a month-by-month statement that shows activity during the current State fiscal year;
and 2) and a cumulative statement that shows year-to-date activity for the current State fiscal year.
The cumulative statement will include the effect of non-reimbursable expenses and show the
difference between contract revenues and contract expenditures for reconciliation purposes.

e Statement of Cash Flows: This statement provides an overview of spending and cash receipts over
the most recent month. This statement is an indicator of the financial health of PromiseShip and will
provide information about changes in payables and receivables that may be indicators of
PromiseShip’s ability to remain current on its payment processes.

e Statement of Functional Expenses: PromiseShip will provide DHHS with financial details so the
DHHS Internal Audit team is able to prepare its Statement of Functional Expenses. This statement
will be used to reconcile contract revenue and expenditures in order to calculate the following
month’s payment.
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PromiseShip will prepare all of these statements from financial detail contained in its Banner and
FAMCare systems. The Banner system is the General Ledger (GL) finance system administered by Boys
Town to which we are provided access for entering, tracking, and reporting revenue and expenditure
data for PromiseShip. FAMCare is the billing and utilization management system administered by
PromiseShip for entering, tracking, and reporting provider services expenditures.

The Banner and FAMCare financial reports will be included with the financial statements provided to
DHHS for review and testing purposes. PromiseShip will perform a preliminary review of the financial
detail in order to identify and segregate non-reimbursable expenses. The financial statements will be
prepared using only paid items as expenses in order to more easily determine the actual amount of
contract money spent during the month. The financial detail and statements will be updated every
month as the balance of paid claims changes.

Audited Financial Statements

PromiseShip is a Nebraska nonprofit corporation, which is tax exempt pursuant to section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code and satisfies the expectation of the State that a Bidder provide a copy of its
most recent audited financial reports and statements. Please see Appendix 1 of the Corporate Overview
Appendices for a copy of the 2017 Audited Financial Statements with the A-133 Single Audit, which are
PromiseShip’s most recent audited financial statements.

At PromiseShip’s fiscal year end (December 31), PromiseShip’s financial statements are prepared on an
accrual basis and audited by an independent third-party auditing firm, KPMG, LLP. These include a: 1)
Statement of Financial Position; 2) Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets; 3)
Statement of Cash Flows; and 4) Statement of Functional Expenses for the current and prior year.

The independent auditor also performs a Single Audit as required by DHHS and governmental auditing
standards. PromiseShip has achieved unqualified opinions in all audits, with no significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses found in their controls over financial reporting. A copy of PromiseShip’s most
recent audited financial statements with the A-133 Single Audit for calendar year 2017 is attached (see
Appendix 1 of the Corporate Overview Appendices).

Banking Reference

PromiseShip’s banking institution is:

First National Bank

Attn: Jake Holdenried, Vice President
1620 Dodge Street

Omaha, Nebraska 68197

(402) 602-5396

First National Bank is an Omaha-based, family-owned banking institution with a century-and-a-half

history of serving individuals, families and businesses. A banking reference letter is included as
Appendix 2 of the Corporate Overview Appendices.
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Disclosure of Judgments, Litigation, or Real or Potential Financial Reversals

Judgments

There are no outstanding judgments against PromiseShip.

Litigation

Nebraska Families Collaborative (dba PromiseShip) has been named as a defendant in two lawsuits.

Nebraska Families Collaborative (dba PromiseShip) was named as one of numerous defendants
in a civil action filed September 1, 2017, in the United States District Court for the District of
Nebraska by Catherine Y. Wang Anderson, Case No. 4:17-CV-03073. Ms. Wang Anderson is
seeking damages for alleged violations of state and federal statutes and common law. On
September 28, 2018 the court dismissed many of the claims against NFC and its employees. NFC
does not expect a judgment to be entered against it or any of its employees in the matter.

Nebraska Families Collaborative (dba PromiseShip) was named as a defendant in a second
amended complaint filed in the District Court of Douglas County, Nebraska on December 20,
2018, by Bryon January and Monique January seeking damages for alleged negligence. NFC filed
its answer denying the allegations on February 4, 2019. PromiseShip does not expect a judgment
to be entered against it in the matter.

Financial Reversals

There are no other real or potential financial reversals that might materially affect the viability or
stability of the organization.
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CORPORATE OVERVIEW: CO-2

Requirement
The bidder should provide a summary matrix listing the bidder’s previous projects
similar to this RFP in size, scope, and complexity. The State will use no more than three
(3) narrative project descriptions submitted by the bidder during its evaluation of the
proposal.

BIDDER'S RESPONSE:

Includes references to the following subdivisions in Section V. Project Description and Scope of Work:
e Not applicable

Summary Matrix

PromiseShip presents a summary matrix in Table 8 of all previous projects similar to RFP 5995 Z1 in size,
scope, and complexity.

Table 8. Summary Matrix of PromiseShip’s Projects Similar to RFP 5995 Z1

Project Size, Scope, Complexity, and Similarity of Project
Project #1: Size: Serve nearly 15,000 children and their families from July 1, 2014
Case Management through December 31, 2019.
Subaward, Subgrant and Scope: Providing full-service case management and an individualized
Subcontract with the system of care for families and their children who are wards of the
Nebraska Department of | Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services involved in the Child
Health and Human Welfare or Juvenile Court System or who are non-court involved children
Services (#76910-04, and families in the Child Welfare System. Service delivery, service

#71468-04, #22706-Y3) | coordination, and case management functions are provided for families in
Nebraska’s Eastern Service Area (Douglas and Sarpy Counties).

Complexity: As a “no reject, no eject” subaward, PromiseShip is
required to accept and serve all children and families referred by DHHS.
Referrals may be made at any time and PromiseShip is available to receive
referrals 24 hours a day, every day of the year. Children and families may
be court involved or non-court involved and are served unconditionally
regardless of a child or family’s diagnoses, history, presenting problems,
family composition or behaviors. PromiseShip provides a complete
continuum of non-treatment, non-Medicaid funded services, supports,
and placement resources to meet the needs of children and families.
PromiseShip is required to meet case management and outcome
measures established by DHHS and federal authorities. A Continuous
Quality Improvement (CQl) System is used to monitor and report progress
towards meeting established measures. Funding for this subaward is
based on a fixed monthly payment, including provision of all direct
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Size, Scope, Complexity, and Similarity of Project

services for children and families. PromiseShip manages a service provider
network, including utilization management, authorization, and payment of
direct services. PromiseShip conducts background checks and drug tests of
all subcontractors, and monitors performance to ensure they are meeting
quality standards in delivery of services to children and families.

Similarity: Serves 100% of the child welfare population in the Eastern
Service Area (Douglas and Sarpy Counties), by providing full-service case
management, coordination of care, and provider network management
for families and their children who are wards of DHHS involved in the Child
Welfare or Juvenile Court System or who are non-court involved children
and families in the Child Welfare System. This is the same target
population and services as required for RFP 5995 Z71.

Project #2: Size: Served approximately 8,400 children and their families from
Service Delivery and November 1, 2009 through June 30, 2014.

Service Coordination Scope: Provided an individualized system of care for families and
Contract with the their children who were wards of the State of Nebraska involved in the
Nebraska Department of | Child Welfare and Juvenile Services System or who were non-court
Health and Human involved children and families involved in the Child Welfare System.
Services (#41449-04) Service and service coordination were provided for families served

throughout the Eastern Service Area (Douglas and Sarpy Counties).
Complexity: Accepted and served all children and families referred by
DHHS under a “no reject, no eject” contract. Children and families served
were either court-involved or non-court involved and were served
unconditionally regardless of a child or family’s diagnoses, history,
presenting problems, family composition or behaviors. Provided service
coordination for treatment and non-treatment services for court involved
and non-court involved children and families, as defined in the approved
Operations Manual. Also provided non-treatment services and
coordinated all aspects of care, organization, and planning for the children
and families. Provided a complete continuum of non-treatment, non-
Medicaid funded services, supports and placement resources to meet the
needs of children and families. Ensured appropriate and timely mental
health, behavioral health, and substance abuse treatment services were
provided to adult family members and children. Conformed to child
placement best practices, including placing children in an appropriate
approved or licensed home or licensed facility, upon prior approval from
DHHS. Under the contract, required to provide aftercare services for
children and families, as defined in the Eastern Service Area Operations
Manual. Funding for this subaward was based on a fixed monthly payment
and a variable monthly payment, the latter of which was based on the
accumulated total number of days case management was provided for a
child during the month. Services and supports were compensated at the
daily variable rate for each child specifically identified in the
Safety/Risk/Prevention Assessment as requiring services and supports and
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Project Size, Scope, Complexity, and Similarity of Project

named in the written referral from DHHS. Variable payments for services
and supports were based on actual days in care and excluded any child
committed to a Youth Rehabilitation and Treatment Center. Managed a
service provider network, including utilization management, authorization,
and payment of direct services. Background checks and drug tests were
conducted on all subcontractors, and monitored performance to ensure
they met quality standards in delivery of services for children and families.

Similarity: Served a portion of the child welfare population in the
Eastern Service Area (Douglas and Sarpy Counties), by providing service
and service coordination for families and their children who are wards of
DHHS involved in the Child Welfare or Juvenile Court System or who are
non-court involved children and families in the Child Welfare System. This
is similar to the target population and services required for RFP 5995 Z1.
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Narrative Project Descriptions

Since 2009, PromiseShip has served more than 20,000 children and their families involved in Nebraska’s
child welfare system in the Eastern Service Area. Below are two narrative project descriptions of
projects similar to RFP 5995 Z1 in size, scope and complexity, including the current Subaward (#76910-
04 and all its amendments) that PromiseShip holds with the State of Nebraska.

Narrative Project Description #1: Case Management Subaward #76910-04
iii. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

f)

g)

h)

j)

Time Period: 7/1/2014 - 12/31/2019

Scheduled and Actual Completion Dates: The subaward is currently in effect as of the date of
the RFP 5995 Z1 bid opening. The scheduled completion date is 6/30/2019, and the actual
completion date is anticipated to be 12/31/2019, per Amendment Four (August 2018).

Responsibilities: The purpose of this subaward is: To provide case management and an
individualized system of care for families and their children who are wards of the Nebraska
Department of Health and Human Services involved in the Child Welfare or Juvenile Court
System or who are non-court involved children and families involved in the Child Welfare
System. Service delivery, service coordination, and case management functions will be provided
for families served in the Eastern Service Area.

Customer Reference: The customer for this project is DHHS Division of Children and Family
Services. As such, it would be inappropriate for DHHS to serve as a customer reference and it
would be in direct violation of the RFP requirements that would create a conflict of interest for
objective evaluation of this proposal.

Prime Subrecipient or Subcontractor: PromiseShip is the Prime Subrecipient for this subaward.

e Original scheduled completion date: 6/30/2019

e Original budget: Not to exceed $71,500,000 per year
e Currently planned completion date: 12/31/2019

e Currently planned budget: Not to exceed $71,500,000 per year
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Narrative Project Description #2: Service Delivery & Service Coordination Contract #41449-04
ii. PROJECT DESCRIPTION
f) Time Period: 11/1/2009 — 6/30/2014

g) Scheduled and Actual Completion Dates: The scheduled completion date was 6/30/2014, and
the actual completion date was 6/30/2014.

h) Responsibilities: The purpose of this subaward was to: Provide an individualized system of care
for families and their children who were wards of the State of Nebraska involved in the Child
Welfare and Juvenile Services System or who were non-court involved children and families
involved in the Child Welfare System. Service and service coordination were provided for
families served throughout the Eastern Service Area (Douglas and Sarpy Counties).

i) Customer Reference: The customer for this project is DHHS Division of Children and Family
Services. As such, it would be inappropriate for DHHS to serve as a customer reference and it
would be in direct violation of the RFP requirements that would create a conflict of interest for
objective evaluation of this proposal.

j)  Prime Subrecipient or Subcontractor: Nebraska Families Collaborative was the Prime
Subcontractor for this contract.

e Original scheduled completion date: 6/30/2014

e Original budget: Not to exceed $19,185,452.00
e Actual completion date: 6/30/2014

e Actual budget: Not to exceed $181,134,004.12
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CORPORATE OVERVIEW: CO-3

Req # Requirement Comply
CO-3 The bidder should present a detailed description of its proposed approach to the X
management of the project.

The bidder should identify the specific professionals who will work on the State’s
project if their company is awarded the subaward resulting from this RFP. The names
and titles of the team proposed for assignment to the State project should be
identified in full, with a description of the team leadership, interface and support
functions, and reporting relationships. The primary work assigned to each person
should also be identified.

The bidder should provide resumes for all personnel proposed by the bidder to work
on the project. The State will consider the resumes as a key indicator of the bidder’s
understanding of the skill mixes required to carry out the requirements of the RFP in
addition to assessing the experience of specific individuals.

BIDDER’S RESPONSE:

Includes references to the following subdivisions in Section V. Project Description and Scope of Work:
e Not applicable

Project Management Approach Summary

PromiseShip has been providing services in the child welfare field for a decade. Our staff live and work in
the communities we serve, so we are familiar with the local challenges families face on a daily basis.
PromiseShip is 100% locally managed, meaning the subaward for full service case management would
be as well.

PromiseShip is currently led by President and CEO, David Newell, CSW, ACSW, who joined the
organization in 2010. Effective May 24, 2019, Newell will step down from his role to take on an
opportunity in another state and Ron Zychowski will assume the role of President and CEQO. In this role,
Zychowski will have overall responsibility for the organization’s services and programs. He will also serve
as the main contact between PromiseShip and the State/DHHS for the subaward issued under RFP 5995
Z1. Zychowski will report to a Board of Directors that is comprised of 46% founding member
organizations (Boys Town, Child Saving Institute, Heartland Family Service, OMNI Inventive Care, and
Nebraska Family Support Network) and 54% community members (see Corporate Overview, section
A.2.a. Bidder Identification and Information).

PromiseShip will be ready on the Operational Start Date of the contract to continue providing high
quality case management services for children and families who are referred by DHHS. As the current
subrecipient providing full services case management services for the Eastern Service Area, there will be
no disruption to families’ case plans or coordination of care because our staff are already familiar with
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and have built trusted relationships with the families and service providers in Douglas and Sarpy
Counties.

PromiseShip employs 336 dedicated staff who live and work in the Omaha metro area. We recruit and
employ highly skilled and educated professionals, 78% of whom have Bachelor’s degrees, followed by
19% with a Master’s degree, 2% with an Associate’s degree and 1% with a doctoral degree (PhD or JD).

PromiseShip uses a collaborative approach to provide child welfare case management and service
coordination for children and families served in the Eastern Service Area (Douglas and Sarpy Counties).
Building on the last ten years of a successful public-private partnership with DHHS is essential to
continued effective management of case management and service coordination.

Specific Professionals & Primary Work Assigned

PromiseShip’s Project Team is comprised of executive leadership, senior leadership, and other key
leadership positions who bring a wealth of knowledge, expertise, and experience that will contribute to
successful implementation of full service case management and service coordination for children and
families involved in the Child Welfare and Juvenile Court Systems within the Eastern Service Area. Table
9 outlines the Project Team members and primary work assigned to each while resumés for all named
key personnel are included as Appendix 3 of the Corporate Overview Appendices.

Table 9. PromiseShip's Full Service Case Management Project Team

Name & Job Title Primary Work Assigned

EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP TEAM:
David Newell, CSW, ACSW Responsible for entire management of PromiseShip, including
President & Chief Executive Officer | oversight for: contracts; fiscal and clinical administration;
programs and services; provider network development; public
and community relations; and management of a collaborative
leadership role with the Nebraska Department of Health and
Human Services and the Division of Children and Family
Services. Responsible for involving the Board of Directors in
development of strategic vision, mission and values. On May 24,
2019, he will step down from this role and Ron Zychowski will
assume the role of President and CEO with all assigned duties.

Ron Zychowski, MBA Responsible for ensuring the alignment of agency operations
Senior Director of Executive around short- and long-term organizational goals and strategies
Operations so that PromiseShip will continue to grow and achieve

operational excellence. On May 24, 2019, he will assume the
role of President and CEO with all assigned duties. The role of
Senior Director of Executive Operations will not be filled.
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Name & Job Title Primary Work Assigned

Lynn Castrianno, PhD, MLS

VP of CQl and Data Management;
and appointed Technology
Coordinator ligison with DHHS for
Subaward

Responsible for continuous quality improvement, records,
compliance with accreditation and DHHS standards. Oversees
performance metrics analysis, design, development, and the
execution of the agency operations. Also responsible for IT and
the development and maintenance of the internal data
management system, FAMCare. Will serve as the appointed
Technology Coordinator who will serve as the primary contact
between PromiseShip and DHHS to address IT related issues
and will be responsible for all requirements outlined under
item 5 in Section V, subdivision K. Information System
Requirements of the RFP.

Robin Chadwell, LCSW
| VP of Network Services Innovation

Responsible for oversight of the Network management team,
treatment/clinical team, utilization management teams, and
program support worker teams. Ensures children and families
have access to a service continuum to meet their unique needs,
including managing a network of community-based providers
(“Provider Network) and working collaboratively with them to
identify and fill service gaps. Responsible for developing and
maintaining a service continuum that will assist in the support
of children and parents while they are striving to strengthen
their families. Additional responsibilities include ensuring
accessibility, prompt delivery, and quality of services and
supports, as well as collaboration with the managed care
organizations (MCOs) for coordination of care.

Viv Ewing, PhD
VP of Administrative Services

Responsible for oversight of human resources, training,
communications, fund development, and administrative
support. Performs Human Resources related duties in the
following functional areas: acquisition, onboarding, employee
relations, training, retention, affirmative action, and human
resources compliance. Creates and oversees the
implementation of a strategic approach to fundraising and
donor relations. Directs strategic corporate communications.

Stacy Giebler, CPA
Chief Financial Officer

Responsible for the accurate reporting of the organization’s
financial position, including financial reporting, budgeting,
negotiating contract payments, cash management, and
managing the Billing and Payables Departments. Reviews and
analyzes the revenue, expense, asset and liability accounts and
reconciles discrepancies. Develops and maintains annual
operating budget.

Monika Gross, JD
General Counsel and VP of Legal

Responsible for administering the legal affairs of PromiseShip
by providing legal advice, representation and services,
overseeing the organization’s compliance program,
implementing risk management and mitigation strategies, and
contract administration.
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Name & Job Title Primary Work Assigned
Melissa Nance, MS Responsible for the oversight of all case management teams
VP of Programs that serve at risk families (non-court) and children in out-of-

home care and their families (court-involved). These include
the following services: case management, kinship, family
engagement, adoption, family finding, independent living and
prevention. Also responsible for ensuring compliance with
contractual requirements regarding state and federal child
welfare measures. Provides direction to and leadership of
program operations, thereby ensuring all programs are
conducted consistently with the agency’s mission, goals and
strategic plan.

SENIOR LEADERS:
Nikki Barber, MPA Directs and supervises Family Permanency teams in provision
Family Permanency Director of case management services for children and families. Brings

child welfare expertise centered on the safety, permanency and
well-being of children and families and independently performs
duties as a valued member of the Senior Leadership Team.
Megan Miller, MA Directs and supervises Family Permanency teams in provision
Family Permanency Director of case management services for children and families. Brings
child welfare expertise centered on the safety, permanency and
well-being of children and families and independently performs
duties as a valued member of the Senior Leadership Team.
Tami Nebesniak, MS Directs and supervises Family Permanency teams in provision
Family Permanency Director of case management services for children and families. Brings
child welfare expertise centered on the safety, permanency and
well-being of children and families and independently performs
duties as a valued member of the Senior Leadership Team.

Aly Ott, MSW Directs and supervises Family Permanency teams in provision
Family Permanency Director of case management services for children and families. Brings
child welfare expertise centered on the safety, permanency and
well-being of children and families and independently performs
duties as a valued member of the Senior Leadership Team.
Nicole Seymour, MPA Provides operation management for the Family Engagement
Family Engagement Director team, including the Intake and the Family Triage teams.
Responsible for partnering in the implementation of the
Coordinated Response Initiative and related strategic actions.
Brings child welfare expertise centered on the safety,
permanency and well-being of children and families and
independently performs duties as a valued member of the
Senior Leadership Team.
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Name & Job Title
Anita Patterson, MS
Ethics, Risk & Compliance Officer,
and Security Administrator liaison
with DHHS for subaward

Primary Work Assigned
Oversees the Compliance Program to ensure compliance with
the organization’s policies and procedures. Reviews and
evaluates compliance issues/concerns within the
organization. Collaborates with other departments (Program
Audit, Finance, Legal, and Human Resources), as well the
executive team and senior leadership, to implement
compliance programs across the organization. Reports to the
General Counsel and has a direct reporting line to the Board of
Directors. Serves as the assigned Security Administrator for all
of PromiseShip sites who will act as the liaison between
PromiseShip and DHHS and will be responsible for all
requirements outlined under item 3 in Section V, subdivision K.
Information System Requirements of the RFP.

Project Team Leadership

PromiseShip’s project team for the DHHS Full Service Case Management for Child Welfare Services
subaward is comprised of highly educated and skilled professionals who have extensive experience in
their respective roles. Collectively, the project team has decades of experience working in child welfare
and human services serving as senior and executive leadership at nonprofit and for-profit companies.
Bios of each of the project team leaders is provided below:

1) David Newell, CSW, ACSW, President and CEO, leads the organization and the project team.
Newell has more than twenty-six years’ social services experience in direct service and
leadership roles, as well as twenty-six years’ experience as a therapeutic foster, adoptive,
and birth parent. Currently, Newell serves as the Chair of the Nebraska Children’s
Commission, having been appointed to the Commission for two consecutive terms by the
current and former Governors. Newell is an alumnus of the Annie E. Casey Foundation’s
Children and Family Fellowship Program and an alumnus of the Alaska Humanities Forum’s
Leadership Anchorage program. He is a current member of the National Association of
Social Workers and the Academy of Certified Social Workers. Newell’s previous experience
includes serving as regional vice president at EMQ FamiliesFirst (2006-2010), executive
director at Denali Family Services (1999-2006), and Chair of the Alaska Behavioral Health
Association (2002-2005). Newell holds a Certificate of Nonprofit Management and a Master
of Social Work from the University of Alaska Anchorage, and a Bachelor of Science in
education from Southern lllinois University at Edwardsville. He is also a licensed social

worker in Nebraska and New York. On May 24, 2019, Newell will step down from his role as
President and CEO of PromiseShip to pursue an opportunity in another state. At that time,
Ron Zychowski, MBA, will assume the role of President and CEO.

2) Ron Zychowski, MBA, Senior Director of Executive Operations, joined PromiseShip in September
2018. On May 24, 2019, Zychowski will become the next President and CEO of PromiseShip when
David Newell steps down from the position to pursue an opportunity in another state. Zychowski’s
proven track record spans more than 40 years of senior leadership positions in a variety of
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3)

4)

5)

disciplines, with more than two decades spent directly in human services leadership positions. He is
well-versed in assisting private organizations and publicly-funded systems of care transform to
improve performance, with a focus on organizational capacity, production management, and real-
time/forward-looking outcome measurement. Zychowski has experience developing and executing
multi-million dollar budgets, including the complex state and federal funding streams affiliated with
child welfare services. After serving 25 years in the United States Army, Zychowski began his human
services career in Florida as a Center Director for the Head Start Program, followed by eight years of
senior leadership positions with the Florida Department of Children and Families, serving in three
different districts and the state’s largest region. Zychowski led the transition of Florida’s child
welfare system from a public system to a community-based system of care. Additionally, Zychowski
has served as CEO for three different community-based care lead agencies in Florida. Zychowski
joined Eckerd Kids in 2009, initially overseeing Eckerd Kids’ transition as the lead agency for
community-based care in Florida’s Pasco and Pinellas counties, and later for nearly 30 different
services and programs nationwide. Zychowski retired from Eckerd Kids as the Chief Quality and
Performance Officer in 2016 and was subsequently elected to the Board of Directors.

Lynn Castrianno, PhD, VP of CQl & Data Management, oversees the technology, quality assurance,
and data management teams. Castrianno has more than 20 years of experience in child welfare
research, evaluation, and data management. Prior to joining PromiseShip, she worked with various
non-profit agencies in developing and implementing performance outcomes through data
management and data analysis including oversight and management of a national benchmarking
study of foster care. Castrianno also served on the board of the Foster Family Treatment Association
and has been an active member of the FFTA Research Committee for the past ten years. Castrianno
received a Ph.D., Master’s degrees in Psychology and Legal Studies from the University of Nebraska-
Lincoln, and a Bachelor’s degree from the State University of New York at Buffalo.

Robin Chadwell, MSW, LCSW, VP of Network Services Innovation, leads the Network Services
Innovation Team. Chadwell has dedicated her career to working with children and families in various
capacities, including residential care, educational settings, case management, service provider, and
administrator. She has been intricately involved with service development and implementation
since 2001 and served in increasing administrative capacities since 2003. Chadwell has extensive
experience in foster care services, including recruitment, licensing, support, and program oversight
and development, having been involved with Nebraska Child Welfare reform since 2008 when DHHS
launched Safety and In-Home Services. Chadwell has served as a Program Director for foster care
and in-home services, a Director for Case Management, and as Operations Support Director at
PromiseShip prior to her current role. Chadwell received her Bachelor’s and Master’s degrees in
Social Work from the University of Nebraska at Omaha.

Viv Ewing, PhD, VP of Administrative Services, leads the human resources, training, team support,
communications and grant development teams. Her professional career has been in both corporate
and not-for-profit organizations, including serving as Executive Director of the Alzheimer’s
Association of Nebraska, Director of Government Affairs for Habitat for Humanity, Assistant
Operations Director for The Salvation Army Kroc Center, Human Resources Manager at ConAgra
Foods, Sr. Director of Human Resources & Administration at Omaha Housing Authority, and Human
Resources Representative at OPPD. Ewing’s community leadership spans several years and has
included service to many organizations including: University of Nebraska Medical Center Board of
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6)

7)

8)

9)

Councilors; University of Nebraska Alumni Board; College of Public Affairs Advisory Council;
President of the Literacy Center Board; Governor’s Judicial Selection Committee; Nebraska Children
Event Committee; Vice Chair Immanuel.Pathways Participant Advisory Committee; President of the
Hope Center for Kids Guild; American Red Cross Board; Sienna Francis House Board; Catholic
Charities Mental Health Committee; Holy Name Home & School Association President; Omaha Table
Talk; and President of the Human Resources Association of Midlands. Ewing received her Ph.D. from
the University of Nebraska-Lincoln in Community & Human Resources, a Master’s degree in Urban
Studies, and Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration from the University of Nebraska at Omaha.

Stacy Giebler, CPA, Chief Financial Officer, leads the Finance team. Giebler began her career in 2005
at KPMG, a Big Four accounting firm, gaining experience and expertise as an independent auditor of
government and not-for-profit entity financial statements and Single Audits. She joined PromiseShip
in October 2009 shortly after the organization was founded, expanding the Finance team as the
organization continued to grow. Stacy received her bachelor’s degree in Accounting from the
University of Nebraska at Omaha, is licensed as a Certified Public Accountant (CPA), and is a member
of the American Society of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA).

Monika Gross, ID, General Counsel and VP of Legal, leads the Legal, Risk and Compliance teams.
Gross has been the legal counsel for PromiseShip since March 2011. Prior to joining PromiseShip,
Gross was vice president at Fidelity National Title Group, attorney for the Nebraska Department of
Health and Human Services, and was in private practice in Nebraska, Georgia, and New York. Gross
is a member of the Nebraska State Bar Association, and the State Bar of Georgia. Gross received a
Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Nebraska-Lincoln and a Juris Doctor degree from the
University of San Diego School of Law.

Melissa Nance, MS, VP of Programs, leads the Family Permanency team and oversees all case
management services for court involved and non-court involved children and families. Nance
launched her career as an Integrated Care Coordinator working to enhance the lives of children and
families in Douglas and Sarpy counties. Nance joined PromiseShip in 2009 as a Family Permanency
Supervisor where she guided case managers to increase safety and well-being of children in care.
She was later promoted to a Family Permanency Director with a greater emphasis on staff and
program development, and eventually took the lead as Senior Family Permanency Director. In
August 2018, Nance accepted the Vice President of Programs position. Nance received a Bachelor’s
degree in Psychology and Sociology from Creighton University, and a Master’s degree in Human
Services from Bellevue University.

Nikki Barber, MPA, Family Permanency Director. Barber has been a Family Permanency Director at
PromiseShip since October 2017. Barber has been with PromiseShip since 2012 and has also held
positions as a Family Permanency Supervisor, a Family Permanency Specialist, and a Family Finding
Specialist. Barber received a Bachelor’s of Science degree in Criminology from the University of
Nebraska at Omaha and a Master’s degree in Public Administration from Bellevue University.

10) Megan Miller, MA, Family Permanency Director. Miller has worked in the juvenile court system for

over fifteen years, serving in both child welfare and juvenile justice. Miller’s passion for continuous
community improvement is the foundation of her leadership abilities. Her knowledge of the child
welfare system lends to her ability to identify areas of improvement and create system process for
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improved outcomes. Throughout her ten years of employment at PromiseShip, Miller has served as
a Service Coordinator, Family Permanency Supervisor, Operations Project Manager and Family
Permanency Director. Miller received a Bachelor’s degree in Human Resources and Family Science
from the University of Nebraska-Lincoln and a Master’s degree in Human Services from Bellevue
University.

11) Tami Nebesniak, MS, Family Permanency Director. Nebesniak has been a Family Permanency
Director at PromiseShip since 2016. She has served in various positions at PromiseShip, including as
a Family Permanency Supervisor, Intake Coordinator, and Family Service Coordinator. Nebesniak has
dedicated her career to working with children and families in child welfare for the past nineteen
years, including direct care in group homes, foster care worker, case manager, child abuse hotline
worker, as well as supervisor and director level positions. She received a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Psychology from Stephens College at Columbia, Missouri, and a Master of Science degree in
Counseling Psychology from Capella University at Minneapolis, Minnesota.

12) Alyssa Ott, MSW, Family Permanency Director. Ott has been a Family Permanency Director at
PromiseShip since September 2018. In this role, Ott oversees seven permanency teams, three of
which are in Douglas County, three of which are in Sarpy County, and the complex case team that
serves children and/or families who require enhanced advocacy. Ott’s personal daily mission is to
build strong, collaborative teams around each family that PromiseShip serves to improve outcomes
for families in both Sarpy and Douglas counties. Ott received a Bachelor of Arts degree in Psychology
from the University of lowa and will complete a Master of Social Work degree from the University of
Nebraska at Omaha by the end of 2019.

13) Nicole Seymour, MPA, Family Engagement Director. Prior to her current role, Seymour was a
permanency supervisor and then a manager at PromiseShip for six years. During that time Seymour
was responsible for developing and implementing specialized teams and initiatives, all with a focus
on improved and innovative service delivery to children and families experiencing crisis. Seymour is
driven by creating long-standing, respectful, and collaborative relationships with children, families,
and professionals with the intent of creating positive and sustainable systematic change. Seymour is
a strong advocate for child well-being and uses her experience and knowledge to engage all levels of
stakeholders to ensure families are empowered to not only use their voice, but that they are
respected as an expert. Seymour received Bachelor’s degree in Liberal Arts and Professional
Applications and a Master’s of Public Administration from Bellevue University.

14) Anita Patterson, MS, Ethics Compliance & Risk Officer. Patterson has 20 years’ experience in
organizational compliance. Prior to joining PromiseShip, Patterson worked in the Healthcare
Industry as a Corporate Compliance Officer where she served as the Joint Commission
Administrator, Risk Manager, Performance Improvement Manager, and Safety Chair. In those roles,
Patterson helped successfully resolve complex OSHA and Joint Commission findings and patients’
complaints. She also served a as Controller for the Nebraska Public Health Laboratory Full Scale
Emergency Exercise, created an interdisciplinary task force resulting in a reduction of risk for
employees and patients, and developed a Risk Rating Scale to quickly identify probability of
occurrence and severity of consequences, resulting in a 20% decrease in Incident Reports, and led
the Total Quality Management sub-committee of the Board of Directors. Patterson has served on
multiple Boards and Executive Committees, have conducted leadership seminars for women and
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children, and has served in many volunteer roles. Patterson received a Bachelor of Science degree in
Business Administration and a Master of Science degree in Organizational Performance from
Bellevue University. Patterson is also a graduate of the UNMC Great Plains Public Health Leadership
Institute.

Interface and Support Functions

In Relation to internal Operations

PromiseShip is dedicated to providing high-quality full service case management services for children
and families involved in the child welfare and juvenile court systems in Douglas and Sarpy Counties.
PromiseShip is structured in such a way to ensure effective governance, communication, and daily
operations between its core units. The Board of Directors sets expectations for the organization and the
Executive Team implements the Board directives in collaboration with staff throughout the organization.

Each Executive Team member oversees a core functional unit of PromiseShip that works collectively
towards our shared vision of building connected communities, filled with strong families, who are self-
sufficient and empowered with great hope for the future. The core program units of PromiseShip and
their interface and support functions are shown in Table 10.

Table 10. PromiseShip interface & Support Functions

CORE PROGRAM UNITS INTERFACE & SUPPORT FUNCTIONS
Program Operations: e Interfaces with Network Services Innovations to:
o Coordinate case transfers from DHHS/IA to PromiseShip
Will be responsible for o Identify and coordinate service referrals to appropriate community
delivery of all case providers
management services for o Coordinate access and use of Provider Network services by
children and families children/families
referred by DHHS. e Interfaces with CQl/DM to:

o Ensure accurate data entry into NFOCUS and FAMCare

o Correct data errors

o Monitor outcome data indicators

o  Assist with COA reaccreditation process
e Interfaces with Finance to:

o Submit proper documentation for case management expenses
e Interfaces with Legal, Risk & Compliance to:

o Adhere to all policies and procedures

o Comply with subpoenas

o Provide documentation and testimony for grievances and legal suits

filed by families, providers or other stakeholders

e Interfaces with Administrative Services to:

o Recruit and hire qualified case management applicants

o Attend all required training

o Address employee issues
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CORE PROGRAM UNITS INTERFACE & SUPPORT FUNCTIONS
Network Services e |Interfaces with Program Operations by:
Innovations: o Ensuring seamless case transfers from DHHS/IA to case managers

Will be responsible for
oversight of the initial case
transfer process from
DHHS/IA, as well as
management of the
network of service
providers and the service
continuum.

o Monitoring and managing network of community-based providers
o Working with providers to identify and fill gaps in the continuum of
services for children and families
Interfaces with CQI/DM by:
o Communication with Provider Network regarding FAMCare changes
and updates
o Engages Provider Network to participate in annual stakeholder
survey
o Involvement in Provider meetings
o  Assist with COA reaccreditation process
Interfaces with Finance by:
o Ensuring accurate and complete provider billing in FAMCare system
o Providing accurate and complete documentation to support provider
billing in FAMCare system
Interfaces with Legal, Risk & Compliance for:
o Contract development and administration for Network and non-
Network service providers
o Service provider compliance with contract terms and conditions
o Resolution of grievances related to service provider performance
Interfaces with Administrative Services

Continuous Quality
Improvement and Data
Management (CQI/DM):

Will be responsible for
continuous quality
improvement,
accreditation, and data
management functions, as
well as oversight of the IT
and business applications.

Interfaces with Program Operations by:
o Monitoring accurate and timely data entry and documentation of
case management information
Monitoring progress towards data outcome indicators
Ensuring secure access to case management data
Providing access to IT systems, resources, and business applications
Managing document imaging and management of all case
information
o Providing reports to case management supervisors and directors to
assist with managing caseloads, case issues, and data outcome
indicators
Interfaces-with-Network Services Innovations by:
o FAMCare system management and enhancements to meet changing
needs
o Creating data reports about UM and Provider Network
Interfaces with Finance by:
o Creating data reports from FAMCare
o FAMCare enhancements to meet billing needs
Supports Legal, Risk & Compliance by:
o  Conduct quality assurance reviews
o Conduct root cause analyses
o Provide records and other support for subpoena requests
Interfaces with Administrative Services by:
o  Providing data for communications
o Developing process improvements for HR
o Provides CQl training and supervisor training for new hires

O O O O
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CORE PROGRAM UNITS INTERFACE & SUPPORT FUNCTIONS ]

o FAMCare training for providers and staff

Finance:

e Interfaces with Program Operations to:
o Provide timely and accurate financial reporting and budget analysis
o Process prompt payment and case management expenses
o Develop internal controls and processes for timely and accurate
reimbursement of employee mileage and expenses
e Interfaces with Network Services Innovations to:
o Process prompt payment of provider services billing
o Provide timely and accurate financial reporting and budget analysis
o Develop internal controls and processes for timely and accurate
reimbursement of employee mileage and expenses
e Interfaces with CQI/DM by:
o Testing billing functions in FAMCare when enhancements and
upgrades are made
o Assist with COA reaccreditation process
® Interfaces with Legal, Risk & Compliance to:
o Provide timely and accurate financial reporting and budget analysis
o Process prompt payment of legal expenses
o Coordinate responses to regulatory bodies
e Interfaces with Administrative Services to:
o Provide timely and accurate financial reporting and budget analysis
o Support accurate recording, acknowledgement, and investment of
funds received through grants and fundraising endeavors

Legal, Risk and
Compliance:

e Interfaces with Program Operations to:
o Manage PromiseShip policies and procedures and ensures
compliance therewith
o Respond to and ensure compliance with subpoenas and other forms
of legal process affecting case management activities
o Provide legal advice and representation to program operations staff
related to case management activities, including juvenile court
o Respond to grievances lodged by children, families, and service
providers related to case management activities
o Track incident reports and prepare reports and recommendations
e Interfaces with Network Services Innovations to:
o Manage PromiseShip policies and procedures and ensures
compliance therewith
o Perform contract development and administration for network and
non-network service providers
o Review service provider compliance with contract terms and
conditions
o Resolve grievances related to service provider performance
o Track incident reports submitted by service providers and prepares
reports and recommendations
e Interfaces with CQl/DM to:
o  Assist with COA reaccreditation process
o Develop and monitor policies and procedures
e Interfaces with Finance to:
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CORE PROGRAM UNITS INTERFACE & SUPPORT FUNCTIONS ]
o Manage PromiseShip policies and procedures and ensures
compliance therewith
o Coordinate responses to regulatory bodies
o Coordinate implementation of new business practices impacting all
PromiseShip employees
* Interfaces with Administrative Services to:
o Manage PromiseShip policies and procedures and ensures
compliance therewith
o Coordinate responses to regulatory bodies
o Provide legal advice and representation to human resources staff
related to employment law matters
o Collaborate on employee-management relations activities
o Collaborate with training staff to provide legal and testifying training
for case management staff
o Coordinate implementation of new business practices impacting all
PromiseShip employees
o Trackincident reports related to employee conduct and safety and
prepare reports and recommendations
Administrative Services: e Interfaces with Program Operations to:
o Recruit and hire qualified case management applicants
o Attend all required training
o Address employee issues
e Interfaces with Network Services Innovations to:
o Recruit and hire qualified team members
o Provide initial and ongoing training for staff
o Communicate important messages and information to staff and
Provider Network
e Interfaces with CQI/DM to:
o Assist with COA reaccreditation process
o  Provide special training for CQI/DM staff
o Provide expertise/knowledge of N-FOCUS and any enhancements or
changes to system
o Assist with recruitment and hiring process for team positions
o Develop and disseminate important messages and information to
staff
e Interfaces with Finance to:
o Provide timely and accurate financial reporting and budget analysis
o Support accurate recording, acknowledgement, and investment of
funds received through grants and fundraising endeavors
e Interfaces with Legal, Risk & Compliance to:
o Manage PromiseShip policies and procedures and ensures
compliance therewith
o Coordinate responses to regulatory bodies
o Provide legal advice and representation to human resources staff
related to employment law matters
o Collaborate on employee-management relations activities
o Collaborate with training staff to provide legal and testifying training
for case management staff
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CORE PROGRAM UNITS INTERFACE & SUPPORT FUNCTIONS

o Coordinate implementation of new business practices impacting all
PromiseShip employees

o Track incident reports related to employee conduct and safety and
prepare reports and recommendations

The core operational units will work collaboratively and collectively to ensure we deliver high quality,
full service case management services for children and families in the Eastern Service Area.

In Relation to the State/DHHS: PromiseShip’s President and CEO, will serve as the primary point of
contact with DHHS. He will be responsible for the deliverables of the Full Service Case Management for
Child Welfare Services subaward, ensuring that DHHS's vision is realized and that priorities are
communicated to the project team.

PromiseShip will work with DHHS to develop a structured process for assuring regular communication
occurs. This will ensure our organization has clear direction from DHHS, is able to seek clarification and
create solutions, and can provide timely responses to any questions or clarifications that may be
needed. PromiseShip will build on the relationship that has been cultivated with DHHS over the past ten
years to ensure continued success of the public-private partnership with DHHS in meeting the needs of
the child welfare population in the Eastern Service Area.

Members of the Executive Leadership team will establish a schedule to meet regularly with DHHS
leadership counterparts to promote consistency for children and families during project implementation
and to ensure that project strategies across all subaward deliverables align fully with those of DHHS and
promote improvement across all systems that serve children and families in the Eastern Service Area.

Emphasizing continuous quality improvement and transparency throughout program implementation,
PromiseShip’s leadership team will continue meeting regularly with DHHS to evaluate services and

refine protocols, as necessary.

Reporting Relationships

Emphasizing close relationships with DHHS, community-based service providers, stakeholders, and the

children and families we serve, PromiseShip’s reporting relationships underscore local decision-making.
The organizational charts included as Figures 8 through 14 illustrate the reporting relationships for the

Project Team and their subordinates.

PromiseShip team leaders will promote teamwork among all operations areas. Qur emphasis on

inclusive leadership fosters a structure in which we embrace collaboration to encourage a diversity of
thinking to improve the results we will achieve for DHHS and the children and families we serve.
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Figure 9. PromiseShip Program Operations Structure
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Figure 11. PromiseShip Financial Operations Structure

President
& CEO

Documentation
& A/P
Supervisor

A/P & Billing Accounting Staff
Supervisor Manager Accountant

A/P & Billing A/P & Billing
Specialists Specialists

Figure 12. PromiseShip CQI/Data Management Structure

President & CEO

' 1
| (3 | | 1 | 1
CQI/COA IT& Busmess Senior ReRaTt Dota Technical Special
Accreditation Applications Business Developar O, Project Projects
Director Manager Analyst % M Manager WELERL

I'—J_—l

CQl Specialists Recgrfjs s T Specialists
Supervisor
Records Software
Specialists [ RHDGPIS
s Specialist

Business
Analyst

TECHNICAL PROPOSAL | CO-3 Page 82 of 385



RFP 5995 Z1
PromiseShip. ATTACHMENT 6: BUSINESS REQUIREMENTS TRACEABILITY MATRIX

Figure 13. PromiseShip Legal, Ethics, Compliance & Risk Structure
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TRANSITION AND IMPLEMENTATION: TI-1

Requirement
| The bidder should submit a preliminary implementation plan with its proposal. The plan must
describe the Subrecipient’s plan to comply with all the provisions of the RFP. The plan must also
address staffing, facilities, and other operational issues as identified in the RFP, including tasks,
deliverables and milestones necessary to implement the program.

BIDDER’S RESPONSE:

Includes references to the following subdivisions in Section V. Project Description and Scope of Work:
e L. Retainage and Performance Measurements
e M. Reporting Requirements
e N. Capacity Building Component

Preliminary Implementation Plan

PromiseShip looks forward to further discussions with DHHS about PromiseShip’s ongoing readiness to
provide all the requirements in RFP 5995 Z1 and resulting subaward for Full Service Case Management
for Child Welfare Services in the Eastern Service Area. What follows is a Preliminary Implementation
Plan that outlines what is already in place and operational at PromiseShip related to the mandatory
requirements, as well as expected action steps necessary between the award date and operational start
date of January 01, 2020, related to adjustments and changes that will occur to transform case
management and service array functionality and the PromiseShip organization as a whole to best serve
children and families in the Eastern Service Area. Some of the transformational changes will persist into
future years.

PromiseShip staff have extensive knowledge, skills, abilities, and experiences with development,
planning, implementation, monitoring and evaluating action steps and strategies, programs and major
system reform, such as those contained within this Preliminary Implementation Plan. Staff have been
involved for over a decade in the DHHS Program Improvement Plans (PIPs) related to the federal Child
and Family Service Reviews (CFSR) and other DHHS improvement strategies. That experience will aid in
successful implementation planning, such as the one being proposed for implementation of this full
service case management and full service array subaward.

The Preliminary Implementation Plan is intentionally designed as a “working document.” As with all
plans, additional information and data will become available, or legislation or policy changes will
influence, or breakthroughs in the field will occur that require adjustments, modifications or significant
changes to the action steps. Thus, the plan is a “living, breathing” document subject to change, but
serves as a roadmap for the approximate 6-month period between awarding of the subaward and the
operational start date.

The implementation activities included are not an exhaustive list. Rather, they are meant to show some
of the more critical activities at this preliminary phase based on what is known at this time.
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This plan is predicated on the assumption there will be a full six (6) months for implementation to occur
between the time of award and the operational start date. If the timeframe of the DHHS subaward
process would need to be altered, so too must the timeframe of the Preliminary Implementation Plan be
altered accordingly.

The Preliminary Implementation Plan is laid out in a Microsoft Project Plan format for ease of use,
timeframes, and effective communication about the status of the activities. Since PromiseShip has been
delivering case management and a service array in the Eastern Service Area for several years, the
majority of the plan activities associated with startup have already been completed.

Two Phases of the Implementation Plan

As previously mentioned, PromiseShip is able to “hit the ground running” as the major infrastructure
components are already in place and fully operational. These activities are shown as Phase 0 of the
Preliminary Implementation Plan to afford the reader information about what is already in place and
operating at the current time. Phase 0 activities are those major components necessary to start up and
become operational, such as: staffing, training, facilities, and IT. Phase O activities are already
completed, or expected to be completed, by July 01, 2019.

Phase 1 activities are enhancements and new initiatives that are necessary to support the
transformation of the State of Nebraska Child Welfare System. Phase 1 activities are expected to be
started and either completed, or in progress, by December 31, 2019. Some activities in Phase 1 will carry
over into future years as they are transformational change initiatives that require a multi-year approach.

Below is a summary of the high-level plan activities and a brief explanation of the high points within the
plan. See Appendix 5 for an outline of the detailed activities associated with Phase 0 and Phase 1 of the
Preliminary Implementation Plan.

PHASE 0
Activities included in this phase are completed, or are expected to be completed, by July 01, 2019.

Facilities

Provide the adequate facilities, equipment and supplies for staff to maintain an effective, efficient, safe,
and healthy environment to enable a productive high quality child welfare service delivery.

The major plan components for the Facilities are as follows:
e Locate and obtain Office Space leases in Douglas and Sarpy County.
e Plan and coordinate the purchase of initial and ongoing Office Equipment and Supplies
e Plan and coordinate the services and equipment required for ISP, Phones, Printers and Internal
Local Area Network Servers.
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Staffing

Recruit, hire, onboard and retain the appropriate staff to carry out the requirements of the full Case
Management and Full Services Array contract for the Eastern Service area for DHHS.

Case Management staff is inclusive of front line case managers, supervisors, managers/administrators,
directors. Support functions are inclusive of Human Resources, Information Technology, Legal, Risk
Management, Continuous Quality Improvement/Quality Assurance, Communications, Utilization
Management, and Training.

The major plan components for the Staffing are as follows:
e Develop and Implement Human Resources Policies and Processes for Case Management Front-
line and Support Staff
¢ Develop and Implement Employee Retention Strategies for Front-line and Support Staff.
e Recruit, hire and on-board Case Management front-line staff and support staff

Training

Train the Case Management front-line staff, supervisors, directors and the organization as a whole in the
principles of Cultural Humility, Trauma Informed Care, Structure Decision Making and Family Cen<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>